13 June 2012

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC.
Attention: Ms. Janet A. Encarnacion
Head, Disclosure Department
3" Floor, Philippine Stock Exchange Plaza
Avyala Avenue, Makati City

Gentlemen:

Please find the revised 2011 Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) of GMA Network Inc. in
compliance with the SEC’s letter dated May 18, 2012 received by our office on the 28"
of May 2012.

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

V4

AYAHL ARI AUGUSTO P. CHIO
Vice President
[nvestor Relations and Compliance

GMA Network, Inc.
GMA Nerwork Centar. EDSA comer Timog Ave., Diliman, Quezon City 1103 Philippines = Teil. No - (637 082-7777 » Website: www.KSMA tv
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June 13, 2012

Corporation Finance Department
Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA,

Greenhills, Mandaluyong City

Attention:  fustina F. Callangan
Director

Ee : GMA Network, Inc.’s
Amended Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A)

Gentemen:

GMA Network, Inc. (the “Company”) filed its
2011 Annmual Report (SEC Form 17-A) on April 27, 2012.
In your letter dated May 18, 2012, which we received
May 29, 2012, you directed us to amend the same in
accordance with the remarks in the checklist attached to
the letter. The required disclosures in the checklist were
not reflected in the Company’s original filing since it
adopted the format of its previous submissions.

Thus, in compliance with your letter dated May
18, 2012, we hereby submit the Company’s Amended

2011 Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A), with the
amendments thereto underlined for your convenience.

Thank you very much.
Very truly yours, /

i

Vifna
RONALDO P/ MA

STRILI
Vice-President for Finance

GMA Nehvorl, Inc.
GMA Network Center, EDSA comer Timog Ave., Diliman, ezon City 1103 Philippines « Tel. No.: [632) 982-7777 = Websife: www IGhA N
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SECURITIES ARD EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A, 48 AMENDED
ANRNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THEZ SECURITIEE REGULATION CODE ARD SEC"S"E‘Q}?% 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPRINE
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<, INC.

m@rporﬂnan or omann’auoa

For the fiscal vear ended: Decamber 31, 2011

SEC tdeniification Number 5213 3. BIR Tax ldentification No. 0006-817-218-000
Exact nams of issusr gs specified in ifs charter GMA NETWORK, INC.

PHILIPPINE 8. (SEC Use Oniy}

Province, Couniry or other jurisdiction of 3 Hindustry Classification Code:

GMA NETWORK CENTER, ERSA CORNER TIMOG AVENUE, DILIMAN, QUEZON CITY

Address of principai office r—’asfal Code

(632) 982 7777
issuar's telephons number, including arsa cods

I

NOT APPLICABL

Former name, former addrass, and former fiscal vaar, if changed since last report,

RSA
Fitle of Each Ciass Number of Shares of Common Stock
Ouistanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding
Common Stock 3,381.047,000
Freforred Stock 7,480 507 184
11. Are any or all of these securities lisied on & Stock Exchange.
Yes[v 1 No [ ]
i | hersin:

if ves, state the name of such stock exchange anc the classes of securiiies listad

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE / COMMON STOCK



12, Check whather the issuer

a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunaer or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11{a)-1 thereunder, and Seciions 28 and
141 of The Corporation Code of the Philippines du;ing the preceding tweive {12} months {or for
such shorter period that the registrant was required (o file sush reporis)

Yasv]Nol]
(k) has been subject fo such filing requiraments for the past ninsty (80) days

Yes [v i Na ]

13. Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by nor-affifiates of the registrant

State the aggregate markst vaium of the voiim stock held by non- aﬁii%ates of the registrant, The
agaregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock was
soid, or the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of 2 spe cmed date within sbay (80)
days prior {6 the date of filing. If & determination as to whether & particular person or entity is an
affiliate cannot be made without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregat
market value of the commaon stock held by nor-affiiates may be calculated on the basis of
assumptions reasonabie under the circumstances, provided the assumptions are set forth in
Form. {See definition of “sffiliate” in “Annsx B

ﬂ)

=y

Market Value = PhP4T.04 B {as of April 19, 2012)
APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN INSOLVE PVfSUS?:E%SI@?% OF
PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:
t4. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reporis reguirad to be filed by Section
17 of the Code subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court

or the Commission.

NOT APPLICABLE
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ART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

item 1. Business

GMA Network, inc. is & free-to~air broadeasting company orincipally engagsd in tslevision and
radic Droaauaatsng the production of programs for domesiic and international audiences, an:
other relaled businesses. The Company derives the majority of fis revenues from advartisin
relaied o teievision broadcasiing.

t{.) . O

The Company’'s Congressional television broadcasting franchise was renewed on Fx arc
19892 through Republic Act 7252, which allows it {0 operate radio and isievision facilifies i 'ﬂ the
Philiopines for 25 years. GMA Network has 48 VHF (45 GMA ownad and 1 affii tate) ans’ 27 =
TV stations throughout the Philippines with its signal eaching approximatsly 87% of

courdry's Urban TV Moussholds (Source: 2011 AGB Nisisen Total Philippines Estabiishment
Survey).

in 2071, GMA Network, inc. grabbed and mainiained leadership in nationwide TV rafi ngs. The
Company's historic TV ratings ftriumph, however, was not enough to boost is financial
performance as GMA posted decreases in both gress revenhuss and nst incoms.,

GMA Network garmered a nationwids avera age household audience share of 34.2%, up by 3.1
perceniage poinis over its nearest competitcr. GMA iiKSW s&¢ maintained fis TV ralings
somzr‘ancs in its ftraditional bailiwick areas of Mega Maniiz and Urban Luzon in 2011, The
Network, its programs ancg personalitizs alse reapad verious local and intermational awards

within the vear.
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GMA Network's international operations continued to expand during : ¥ oA
closed 2011 with 281,309 subscribers, up by 7% over 2010, In Se {)tem: 2;‘2 , GMA launched
its thirg internafional channe!l, GMA News TV memauonai,

GMA Supsiniamize JOINT VENTURE AND AFFILIATES

The Company's subsidiaries and affiiaies are involvaed in media-reiated services such as movie
making, sets and props construction, film syndication, music and videc recording, new medie,
online gaming, post production services, and marketing, which compiement the Company’s core
television and radio broadcasting business.

The following table shows the Company's holdings in its principal subsidiaries and affiliates as
of December 31, 2011

COMPANY OWHNERSHIP PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Subsidinries

GMA New Media, inc. (NMD 100% Converging Technology

Citynet Metwork Marketing and 100% Teievision entertainment production
Productions, Inc.
GMA Network Fiims, inc. 100% Film production

LES)



GlviA Woridwide (Philippinas), inc. 100% - Intgrnational marketing,  handling foreign  program
acquisitons  and  infernational  syndication of the
Company's programs

RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. | 100% Music recording, publishing and video distribution
{GMA Records)
Scenarios. inc. P00% Design, conswuction and maintenance of sats for TV,

stage plays and conceris

Script201C.  inc.  {formerly  Capitalex | 100% Design, construction and mainienance of sets for TV,

Holdings, Inc.)” stage plays and concerts

Alta Produsfions Group, Inc. 100% Pre- and post-production services

GMA Marketing & Productions, inc. 100% Exclusive marketing and sales arm of GMA’s airfime

Mediamerge Corporation™ 100% Business deveiopment and operations for the Company's
oniine publishing/advertising initiatives

Affitiates

ING7 interactive. Inc. 50% A joint muitimedia news  and  information  deiivery
company of the Fhilippine Daily inquirer, inc. ang GMA

Phitippine Entartainment 50% Operation of Pep.oh, an enteriainment Portal

Fortal, inc. (PEPP

X-Fiay Oniine Games, Inc. 50% A parinership betwaen 1PVG Corp. and GMA New Media,

{(X-Playy™ Inc. which focuses on designing, operating anc
maintaining casual onling gaming and casual oniine

¢ gaming-reiated portals

Mont-Adre  Realty and  Development | 48% A real estais hoiding company

~ e

Corp.

RGMA Networl, nc. A% General management programming, ressarch and event
management services for the Companv's radio siations

Notas:

™ Indirectiy owned through Citvnetl Network Marketing and Froductions, Ine,

" Indirectiv owned through GMA New Media, inc.

™ On April 26, 2007, the Company's Soard of Uirectors deciared iis shareholdings in Moni-Aire as subject to sale fo any

interestad buyer. in the event the Company does nof find o wiling buyer, the same shall be declered as dividends fo the
stockholders of record as of April 26, 2007

PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED NEW PRODUCT OR SERVICE

17 4

Apart from launching GMA News TV International overssas in the second half of 2011
{.8) th he fiscal vear

e Company had no new pubiiclv-announced product gr service during the f
coveared by this report.




O FTION
Ths Company currentiy competes for audiences
brcadcasi stations, radio stam Nng, Newspapsers, m

dvertising Wrthsn mml" respaciive markets.

fhe Foliowing table pre

senis m a or broadsoasiin

¢ adveriising revenuss directly with
agazings, cable television, and ou

g networks in the country:

othar

Helolely

2019 Retings & Audienss GShars

{Total day; GAR=12MN}

hatwork Description
Megs Mania Urban Luzon
18.2 15.6 41
GMA
367 37.8 34.2
. . 0.a 10.8 2.8
Radic and TV broadcasting network and '
ABS-CBR muttisnediz company. Tounded in 1853 and is the
first television sialion in the Philippines. " o
4.9 6.4 311
GMA Network's sister channel. {tis programmesd 4 ie i 15
by GMA. Kamg, 1.8 (= 1.7
GRTY GQTV
OV was re-launcned as GMANEWS TV Audienee: 58 54 ag
{GNTV) on February 28, 2011 Share : -
o . ~ -
Ratings = 3.8 g4
Third-oldest TV ngtwork in the country, with main
broadeast facilities in Movakches, Guezoen City, On
TVE March 2, 2010, Mediaguest acquired 100 percent
~ ownarship of the Associated Broadcasiing
Company and Frimedia inc., the broadcasting 17.6 16.8 15.6
firm's major biock aifrtimer.
4.3 0.3 0.3
Radic Prilippines Network (RPN 8} is a Philip,
VHF felevision network of the Government
Communications Group., On November 28, 2009,
- ¢ A ne nectwork re-branded again under the new name
ETC (RPN)/ SOLAR | In€ namwork re-branded ag
s oiar TV on RPN,
TV (RPN}
. 0.8 0.8 0.7
“*Gotar TV went off air on February 28. 2011 and Share
was refaunched as ETC (RPN} on March 2, 2011,




2011 Ratings & Audience Share
. Total day; BAM-1ZAN
Metwrark Description { ¥: BAN-IZHIN
fegs Mantle | Urban Luzon Urbae
Mationz
Sister network to the main ABS-CBN Broadcasting 14 1B 1§
a e a Corporation, airing programming amed 1owards
dic 23 R BT e
Studio voung adults, such &5 North American imporis and
other English language programming. 3.4 2o LA
Fousahodn
e \ e 2 ). o
Mational sy called Maharlika Ratings 0 &2 0.z
Broadcasting <. and later the People's
Metwork tng {PTVE A . - i
Share 0.5 .5 0.5
intercontingnia! [ = - "
Broadoast oA R " e ) Katings 6.5 G 0.4
casuny IBC-13 is 8 VHF TV station of ine Government
Carporation nizations Grour launched in 1875 by
ngdisto,
(1BC 133 T 0.2 1.8
1 i
Southarn On danuary 1. 2008, Solar Entertainmeni :;;n;;"“‘ 0 0« G
Broadoasting Corporaiion's enteriainment channel ETC atred on i
Network this stafion.
TV { 41 58BN was faunched as Talk TV {SBNYon March 0.1 ¢ G.1
x F 3 f \
(ETC on SBN} *= 3, 2011,
Houssnold .
Ratings a G 0
mind ) UTY is & UHF, free rietevision channe!
RUTV (2™ Ave.) JTv is unpﬂr,'frm 1o &l tgtevision ﬂnarzne
owned and operated by Rajah broadeasting
Nework, inc. owned by Ramaor "RJ" Jacinto. o G4 sy}
Solaris also programming 2 Ave.

RELATIVE SIZE AND FINANCIAL AND MARKET STRENGTH OF COMPETITORS

Tha Company considers ABS-CEN as its longest and prime competiior. foliowed by TVS, ABS-
CBN is the largest broadeasting company_in_the Philippines in terms of product and sarvics
range and financial asset base. lis broadcasiing operations contributs less than 50% of its fotal
ravanue oensratsed, foliowed by iis cable and satzlliie businesses with a share of neariv 40%.
itz other bhusinesses, which comprise movie production, new medis veniures. publishing anc
other consumsar products and sarvices, make up about 5% of toial sales. In comparison. GMA
is the sacond larcest and oldesi broadcasiing company in the region and derives more than
£09% of its business from broadcasting. The Companvy's international operations providas cicse
to 10% of gross revenuas while cther businesses which inciudses film production. new media
sarvices, and other services fill in the remaining 5%.

In more recent vears, 2 ihird maior plaver came into the picture in TV 5 which was formerly
krnown 2s ABC 5. H was re-launched in 2008 a3 TV & afler reaching a2 parinership with MPE
Brimadia. inc. (MPB). a local companv backed by Media Prima Berhad of Malavsia — with MPB
producing and sourcing mest of the enterisinments .programs of the channel. On Oclober 20
3006, Meadia Prima divesied its share in TVS, selling it to Mediaguest Holdings inc.. the

&
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broadcasiing division owned by the icial Trust Fund of the Philippine Long Distance
Telaphone Company (PLDTYL  In the r"rst hall of 2010, zlong with dramastic changss in
proarammine. TV 5 branded itsell as the "Kapaild” nsiwork paralle! io ABS-CBN's "Kapamiive”
and GMA's "Kapuso™ brands.

GMA effectively compsies with thesse two main competiiors and ’ihe ?es?t of the indusiry plavers
bv anriching the lives of the Filininos evervwhere with sups Enferizinment and m
rasponsible delivaery of News and Information. The Company prides *v:seh in launching the firs
avar fres-{o-ail Naws channel with the launch of GMA News TV under f“nann»—i 11 during the
first guarter of the vear, The Cc}rnmamr hag likewise proven its competitiveness bv grathing the
number one spot in nationwide TV ratings since earlv 2010, mainiaining s |ead up o present,
thue providing the much neaded leveraas o generste adveriising revenues, =-mam,ai ~wiss, the
Company isads boih competitors in most kKev financial indicators, from aross profit margins, net
mcome marains, fo debi-eauily rafies, with GMA remaining debt fres for the pest couple of
years

,wr

INTERNATIONAL DUSTRIBUTION

Tha Company's tslevision programs are distribuied cutside the Philippines in ¢
through iis subscriplion-based internaticnal channels — GMA Pinoy TV, GMA Li
News TV international — and the other is through GMA Woriawsa»« (Philippinas
wholly-ownsd subsidiary of the Company. GWI| distributes GMA's locally pro :sz, ¢ programs
through worldwide syndication sales to broadcasisrs/companies in China, Souinaast Asiz,
Africa, and Curope.

Ghis Pinoy TV

The Company operates GMA Pinoy TV fhrough which if offers subscription-based programs
iﬂtﬂrnatéonaiEy Launched in 2005, GMA Finoy TV d livers to an intarnationai audience the

Company’s most popular news and public affairs and general entertainment programs.

GMA Pinov TV is currently availabls in 50 states in the U.S. including Alaska anc Hawall, plus
Puerio Rico and Washington DC; Canada; Japan; Guam; 48 countries in urope, Saipan; | ur“zg
Kong: Singapore; Papua New Guinsa; Australia; New Zealand; the British E:‘sdlan Terriiory of
Diego Garcia: Madagascar; Malaysia; 18 couniries in the Middie East including the key
territories of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, United Arab Emirates, Qatar, Bahrain, and Kuwait;
and 11 countries in North Africa. GMA Pinoy TV aims fo establish global exposure and
nresence for the Network that will bring the company’s programs fo Filipino communities arounc
the world.

Under the carriage and !;cansmg agresments with infernational cabie carmiers, the Company
cenerally recsives a portion of the subscription fees and is aiso allocated a certain number of
advertising minutes through which the Company may sell adveriising spots, which it does

|



through its subsidiary, GMA Markeling and Productions, inc. (GMPI). GMPI also participates in
joint promations with various carriers Tor the marketing of GMA Pinoy ;‘f.

Ag of December 2011, GMA Pinov TV'e subscribsr bass close
over the 2010 closing subscriber number of 273,317,

> at 281,308 — 2 7 % increzse

£

CGMALIFETV

Three vears after the success of GMA Pinoy TV, GMA Life TV, GMA Network's second
international channs!, was B.ununeﬁ More than just offering mainstream anieriainment, GMA

Life TV engages moare viewers with its exciting line-up of hesari-warming and innovative
orograms that feature the Filipinos' lifestvie and inferesis

GMA Life TV is available in the United States, Canada, Guam, Japan, Australiz, New Zaaland.
Papua New Guinsa, the Brilish indian Ocean Terrifory of Disgo Garcie, Madagascar, Maiaysia,

1§ countries in the Middle East, 11 countrias in E‘uori:;i Africz, and 48 counfries in Surops, As of
December 2011, GMA Lite TV's subscriber base closed at 114,471

GIA NEWS TV INTERNATIONAL

In September 2011, GMA Network began distribuling GMA News TV Internations! in order o
provide overssas Filipinos with the éat st, moest comprshansive, and most credible news
soverage from the Philippines, It offers internationally acclaimead and award-winning news ang
pubiic affairs programs with 7 to 8 hours of originai content daily.

it is now avaliable in Guam, Japan, Australia, New Zsaland, the UAE, and Madagascar. in
2012, it is expacied 1o be launchad in North America.
CONVERGING TECHNOLOGY
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NM! assumed an aciive role in the online publishing industry at the start of 2011 by organizing
some of the Philippines’ lsading media companies o coliaborate foward the adoption of global
standards and best practices in onlfine publishing, beginning with the appointment of a2 common
provider for thair third-party audience measurement system. The onling publishers that took
part in the initiative were: ABS-CBN interactive, inc., BusinessWorid Publishing Corp., NMI,
tnguirer Intsractive, Inc., Philippine Enterainment Portsl, PhilStar Global Corp.. and Summit
Fublishing Co., inc.

NM! spearheadsd the inilislive in recognition of the need for 2 common measurament standard
ic help the industry fc grow, given that the Internet audience is both global and fragmentad.

Likewise, il aims o give the industry a boost by providing adver isers with reliable and
indepsndent metrics 1o aid them in their mediz planning decisions. The group chose Effsclive

Measure (=M}, an Ausirglian company. as its preferred audience measursment solufion

providar

2011 also saw NMI deepen it ;;am rship with YouTube, Googie's online videc-sharing portal.
initially sealed in 2008, the deal fo create an official GMA Channs! on YouTube was the first of
its kind in Asia. This parinership was recenily expanded o include long-form caich-up content
and sacure live streaming. This means viewsars in seleciad terrifories will soon be able to waich
at their leisure full episodes of their favorite entertainment and naws programs, as well a2 catct

the live broadcast of cartain shows of the Kapuso network, GMA conient will be made available
through Google Servicas on all platforms, including mobiie, tablets and Smart TVs.

i

0

irt its mobile iechnology business, Nivil unveiled in March m. GMA vy, a light varsion

wanyy, GMANawes v (it gmansws v/ des ggn g for easy viewing on rmobite mhone as
growing number of Fliipines access the website while on-the-go. The company also C}nvelo
iwo new applications for mobile, enabling users 1o downioad the latest news at t
convenience. GMA News Online applications are now available for Android smariphones and
tabiets and for iPhone users as well. This makes GMANaws tv the only tocal news website io
have its own applications for both Android and iPhone operaling systems.
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On thes brosdoast

MOVIE PRODUCTION

GMA Network Films, Inc, wa tablished in August 1985 fo produce maovies that cater 1o both
the local and international markeis. its movie productions have reapad both crifical acciaim and
commercial success. in 2011, GMA Fiims co-produced th Regal Films the Valentine movie,
My Valentine Girlse. Other movies produced in 2017 were Tempiation Island, Tween
Academy Class of 2012 (with SMDC) and The Road whéch was picked up for North American
theatrical release and digital distribution. GMA Fiims® Melre Manile Fiim Festival movie entries
were Panday 2 {(with Imus Productions) and My Househusband (with Regal Films).

BMUSIC AND VIDEC RECORDING

RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. (GMA Records] was incorporated in Sepiember
1097 and bscame operational in 2004 afier the Company decided to reactivate its musical
]



recording business through the "GMA Records" label.  Since resuming operations, GMA
Records has leveraged the Company's talent and media resources, reisasing albums of various
artists. It also partnered with sister company GMA Fiims and other major fiim production cutfits

to release their films on DVD. Likewise, it has "atroc:ucac; the network’s fop rating programs and
blockbuster TV series into the home video market worldwide through GWI.

GMA Hecords works with GMA Naw [‘f»"—h:i'ia and other local-based content providers and
aggregators io (ake advaniage of new revenue streams, particularly in the emerging market of
digital music downioads. The company alsc sacursd non-exclusive mobile, web and kiosk-
based dsals with different content providars worldwide o continuousiy exploit the potentials o
its music and video asselis.

GMA Records publishes music and adminisiers copyrights on behalf of composers. GMA
Records is also actively pursuing publishing deale, building on #ts current catalog of original

e i a
lsaring houss and a source of music for the
a

compaositions.  GMA Recorgs serves as &
it is also 2 member of FILSCAP, the Filipine Socisty

Company's television and fitm productions.
of Composers, Authors and Pubilishers.

STAGE DESIGN

Scenarios, Inc. was incorporaied in July 18285 and iz engaged in iransportation and

warehousing services.

Script201d, Inc. was formally establisheg in early 2010 as & subsidiary of Citynat Network
Marketing and Productions, inc. %* engages i co cepmal design and design execuiion through
tabrication, construction, sei-up and dis smantiin ng of sais, and creation of props. it alsc providss
other reiated services such as live performancas and avenis managemeni, sales activation and
promoiion, and tradeshow exhibits

cript2018, inc. is also engaged in fransportation, hauling and trucking servicas to further fulfil
the nesds of iis clients. Othser business units of Script204f, inc. ars aansram sguinment
renial, and facility support services to various GMA departmenis.

POsT PRODUCTION

Alta Productions Group, Inc. was esiablished in 1988 as a production house primarily to
prcvlaa production services for the Network. Until the laie 1990s, it operated a sateliite studio in
Miakati, producing award-winning News and Public Affairs P Hregrams for GMA Channe! 7.

Today, Alia Productions Group's cors business is audio dubbing and mixing for broadcast. s
fully digital audio recording and mixing studics is in sync with the Neiwork's pro@uvmon
reguirements and broadcast standards. Asids fmn" dubbing foreign confent into the local
vernacular for sziring on the Nefwork, Alla Productions Group also dubs stalion-produced
content info English for international consumption.

in addition, Alia Produclions Group's shoof and video post-produciion depariment produces
TV s, broadcast content, and documentarias for both local and international clients. Etu creative
group also provides concept development, staging, and activation services for various clienis’ on-
ground activilies



Alta Productions Group is proud 1o be one of the few produciion houses Capab of servicing the
compiete specirum of shoot and pestproduction reguiremenis all under ons roof, From

conceptuaiization, creatives, shoot, post-production, all the way to execution.

MARKETING AND SALES OF COMMERCIAL AIRTIME

GMA Markefing and Productions, inc. (GMP!) was esiabiished in August 1980 and is ths
exclusive marketing and sales arm Tor the Company's commercial {elevision and radio zirlime,
GMPL, 2 whollv owned subsidiary of the Company, provides the link beiwaen the Network and
the adveriisers and adve rlising agsncies

GMPi provides the Company's clients with services such as multi-media local and global madia
packages, promofional programs and mﬂée-naﬁs and creative proqucts. Parg :)' GhMPl's sales
and marketing strategies are the integrated mulii-platiorm packages, customized on-air and on-
ground media solutions, brandsd enteriainment, anc other adverlising and media-ed
promotionzsl campaigns.

DEPENDENCE UPON CUSTOMERS

The brozdeasiing business of the Company gensrates revenuss mainly from the sale of
regional and national advertising lime o agencies/advertisaers and other biockiime procucers,
No sinale customer accounts for tweniv (20%) peorcant ar more of ’me Companv's ioial
consolidatad revenuas.,  The ton 30 agsncies/agdvariisers comprise isss than 80% of ihe
Companv's business with the iop sdveriiser accouniing for tess than 8% of revenuss. Th
Companv s not crifically depsndent upon 2 single or few customars fo provide and snsur
sustainability of iis operations and financial vigbilitv.  Maijor exsiing contracis incluas sinim
sales with requiar agencies znd adveriisers such as Unilevar Philippines. inc.. Nesle
Philiopines. Inc.. P&GE Distributing (Phils.) inc.. Unilab Group, Monge Nissin Corporation,
Starcom. Mediavest, Slarlink Communication Searvices, Masscom, ing.. Zenith Oplemediz,
iediacom, Maxus and Mindshare Philipninas,
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TRANSACTIONS Witk AND/OR DEPERDENCE ON RELATED PARTIES

Plzass refer o Mom 12 of the report (p.54),

FRANCHISE. LICENSES AND GOVERNMENT APPROVALS

The Company s 2 aranies of a congressional franchise fo consiruct install onerais and
mainiain for commesarcial purposes and in the public interest radic and ielevision broadcasiing
stations in the Philippines. s franchise was granied through Republic Act Ng, 7282 and has &
term of weniy-five (28) vears from the date of iis approval or from March 20, 1982, The
Company  also  operaies  and  maintains  various  radio/TV  siations  nationwide  under
licenses/permits issued by the National Telecommunications Commigsion,
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The Companv has also applied Tor regisiration of i3 service marke {visibie sions canable of
distinguishing s services) with the inteliectual Property Office (1IP0) and has complied with ths
orovisions of Renublic Act No. 82932 on ths law on seprvice marks for this purnose. A Cartificate

of Registration of Service Marks granied in favour of the Company remains in forcs for 2

unpublished works under Republic Agt No. 8204 and Presidential Decree No. 48 A Ceriificate
of Copyright Registration has 2 term of oroleciion of Fifiv (50) vears from publicaiion of ths

Work,

he Company has also entersed intc sevaral licenss sarsements Tor its businsss of orogucing
ielevision programs aired over iis local and internsiional channsis and progducing t=sievision
series based on g licensed properiv. The said ficense agreements are for periods betwesn thres

EFFECT OF GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS ON BUSINESS

The foregoing franchise. licenses or permits. sarvice marks, copyricht reaistraiion and
governmeant approvals wers obiainad by the Company in accordance with the reguirements of
applicable laws and rules of reqguiafory agenciss,

The Companvs gompliance with the above-meniionsd govarnment requigiions are

indispensable to #s businssses. which are arimarilv, radic ang fslevision broadcasting,
recording. fitm oroduction and other information and enterainment business.

AMOUNT SPENT ON DEVELOQPMENT ACTIVITIES

The total capitalized cost for the Company's Meadia Assst Management Svsiem {MAMSY which
will anable ideniifiad operating groups o access, shars. and archive contant in pure dals Tomm
3nc allow the Network to dsliver content o 2 multiplicitv of distribution plafforms in varving
formats. amouniad to about FP200 million as of december 31, 2011,

[

Furthermore. the companv approved spacific budoet for the cperstion/mainisnance  an
updarade of the foliowing siafions in 2011




New Stations for 2611 Approved Budast

Pk}

TV-44 Jals-ials 28 B
TV-48 Mt Caniao 33.82W
13 low powear UHF 22 33454
Total B4 G540

Ungraded Siafions in Approvad Budosi

20711 {PhF)

TV-2 Kalibe 12.18M

TV-1Z Belangas 18.TM
TV-13 Virse 10.530

TV-7 Santiago 9.8
TV-7 Nags 40.680M
Total 90,040,

COSTS AND BEFFECTS OF COMPLIANCE WITH ERVIRONMENTAL LAWS

Ghia Network complies with various environmenial laws such as R.A 8748 {Philippine Clean Alr
Act of 1299 R A BO6S (Toxic Substance and Hazardous Wasies) under DENR and H.A. 8278
{Philinpine Clean Water Act) undsr the Laguns Laks Deveicoment Authority,

Ealiowing are the details of the Company's compliance with the abovemeniionad environmenial

jaws:

1. R.A 8748 - The Company has g Permit to Opsrate for the gensrator sel instelled in the GMA
Network Center. The parmit costs around P 12, 500.00, vaiid for five (5) vears. As a
reguirement in the permit. the Companv submits guarierly self moniforing reporis_on e
consumead fuel of the asnerator sets. in addition, all generator seis undergo annual emissio
tests conducted by DENR's accredited 3% partv group. The emission tesis cogt around P75,
000.0C for the & units.
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2. KA 6860 — All generated hazardous wasies such ag ussed engine ciis, busted fluorescent
lamp (BFL) smptv paint cans. contaminated rags  and others are freated,  recvoled
and appropriatelv disposed of with the DENR's accredited 3" party hazardous waste treatment
groun. The annual cest for the freatment of hazardous wasie is around P84, 500.00.

5oL - e

3, RBA 8275 — GMA has a Discharge Permit from the Laguns Lake Development Authority
(LEDA)Y o opsrafs s Sewape Treatment Facility (STRY in the GMA Natwaork Ceniar, Ths
annual permit cosis P 20

in_addiiion, the Company incurred aporoximaisly (10, othar permits ang
lizenses required by governmentsa! reculafions such sz, bul not limiled to. spagial land usse

nermits, DENR-EMBE permits, sic.

EMPLOYEES

s of December 31, 2011, the Company hes 2157 regular and orobalionary ema'oveﬂ
2.28% growth from 2010, The Companv also sngsosed 72 803 tajents in 2011, 14.3
increase from ths previous vear. GMA ?\mtw i, Inc. recoonizes one labor union. ’m& u!\ff—‘-i
Natwork, inz. Empiovess Union.  The Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) for the 5 vear
cvele covering 2009 2014 took effect in Julv ?_GOQ. Economic benefits were negotiated based
on g 3 vear and 2 vear perjod. The economic bensfit jor the last two vears is dus for negotiaiion
in June 2012
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The classiication of the Compnanv's smplovees, including the number of emplovess i
andicinates fo have in the ansuing walve (12) monihs. are presenied balow:

EMPLOYEE DISCLOSURE

&S OF DEC, 2L, 2012 Estimated
2081 adgtl Total Y2012
Rank and File ® 1,215 137 1,282
Non-Rank and File 887 186 1,072
Officars R 2 57
TOTAL 2,157 325 2482

* Covered by Cofiective Bargaining Agreement {LBA)

1

Thare were no sirikes nor observad strikes and dispuies between the labor and management in
the past three (3) vears
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MAJOR RISKS INVOLVED N THE BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANRY AND ITS
SUBSIDIARIES

Please refer to the discussion undsr Risk Managemeni, Part IV of the report (5. 501,

item Z. Properties

As of December 21, 2011, the Company's fotal property and eguipment and real nroperty
amounied o P4, 682.2 miliion. The property and equipment had sz book valus of P3,2525
milfiory, while its real properties had a fair marke! valus of P1,409.8 million (based on an
indepsndent appraisal repoit as of December 31, 2000).

The foliowing are the principai properiies of the Company:

¢ The Channel 7 compound located in Barangay South Triangle, Diliman, Quszon City,
which contains several buildings, including the GMA Network uai’}tvi’ building;

¢ The GMA Networi Center Studios, & four-storey builiding with an arez of 4,053 square
meter property adjacent to the GMA Network Center at GMA Network Drive cor.
=D8A, Diiman Quezon City which houses two state-of-the-art siudics, fechnical
facililies and offices;

¢ The GMA-7 Anfennsz
Quezon City, which contains the TV and FW Transmitier bJ!BC}h and the
Uplink building;

¢ The GMA Flest Center iocaied on the sast comer of Mother ignacia
Sergeant Esguerra Avenue, Barangay South Triangie, Diiman Qu City; and

« Properties in the key areas across different regions:

Tower in Tandang Sore Avenue, Barangsy Culiat, Diliman
Satellite

Luzon

¢« Land in Barangay Malued, Dagupan City, where the Company’s radio and television
studios are ipcated;

« A 51,135 square meter properly in Panghule, Obando, Butacan, where an AM
transmitier site, & two-storey buiiding, a ganseat house, and an AM tower are situated;

e A 2,000 sguare meter properly in Barangay Com\,pcmn Peguefa, Nags City, where
& TV relay fransmitier and an FM transmitier site are locatad: and

¢ A 10,000 sguare meter propserty in La Trinidad, Bengust where an FM fransmitter
sife and a one storay buiiding ars situat

« A 2000 square meter property in Bayubay Sur, San Vicenie, liccos Sur whers &
building for TV Station will be constructed.

V§$ayas

« Land iocated in Nivel Hills, Barangay Lahug, Cebuy ui'y confalning & mutliilevsl
building which houses radic and television coeration facilities;

» Land in Barangay Tamborong, Jordan, Guimaras where an FM radio and television
transmitier is located;

»  Land in Aita Tierra, Jaro, lloilo City where radio and talevision studios are locaiad:

¢« Land in Barangay Jibao-an, Favia, liollo where an AM transmitier site and building
are iocated;

¢ Land in Barangay Sia. Monica, Puerio Princesa City, Palawan whars & PEF‘\I'SIOP
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relay transmitter site and building are located: and,
¢  Land in Barangay Buiwang, Numancia, Akian where & television relay transmiiter siie
and a buiiding are iocatsd.

Mindanac
¢« lLand in Bo. Matina Hills, Davao City where an FM and television transmitier building
and studic complex are located;
« Land in Barangay San Isidro, General Santos City where z television relay
transmitier site and a building are located: and,
« Land in Barangay Cabatangan, Zamboanga City where z {elsvision relay fransmitier
site anc a building are locaied.
The properties owned by the Company are currently unencumbserad and are fres from any
existing liens.

The Company also lsases land, building and studio/office space in various iocations around the
Philippines under lease agreements for periods of between thres and 25 years. The lesss
agresments may be cancelled at the Company’s oplion. Renial expense of the Company
reiated o this amounted to P15.3 million for the year anded Dacamber 31, 2011,

Reoional Brogdeast Stations

GMA owns regional broadcast siations in various parts of the couniry. Originating TV stations
are stand alone transmitter, studio and produciion facilities capabie of producing and airing live
and/or taped programs as weli as plugs and advartising within their (local) service arsals
independent of, or in conjunction with the national feed. Satsliiie TV stations are similar to
originating TV stations except that they are not equipped with live production capability outside
of news bulieting. Sateliite TV stations are also capable of broadcasting local plugs or
advertising within their respective (local) service areas either independent of, or in conjunction
with national program feeds. TV relay stations are limited to fransmitter and signal receiving
facilities and only re-broadcast programs/content received from originating or satellite TV
stafions with which they are asscciated; either via sateliite or other receiving methods.

The following are GMA’s felevision and radio stations throughout the Philippines:

LIST OF GMA’s OPERATING TV STATIONS

NG | STATION . ADDRESS

CONTACT NUMBER

LUZON

TEL. NQ./ MOBILE PHONE

TV-7 Metro Manila

Brgy. Culiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon
City

{027831-9183 / (02) 024-
2497

TV-11 Metro Maniia

Brgy. Culiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon
City

(02} 831-8183 7 (02) 824~
2497

TV-27 Metre Manila (UHF)

Brgy. Cuiiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon

(02) 831-8183 7 {G2) 824-
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City Z487
I i F i ~

5 Tv-5 locos Norte i;géf; San Lorenzo, San Nicolas, Hloces 0918-5328580

CTV-27 Hocos Norte (UHF 'S zo, S licolas, liocos
j 27 Hocos Norte (UHE) i;gr}te an Lorenzo. San Nicolas, liocos 0918-5328580

| Nor
SR i

3 TV-48 Hocos Sur Mt. Caniac, Bantay, liccos Sur 09158832841
4 | TV-10 Benguet Mt. Sto. Tomas, Tuba, Bengust 0015-4417080
TV-22 Bangust (UHF) Mt Sto. Tomas, Tuba, Benguet 0915-4417080

5 | Tv-10 Olongapo ; Upper Mabayuhan, Olongape City 0827-2570496
TW-28 Olongapo (UHF} ‘ Upper Mabavuhan, Olongape City 0827-25704498
TV-12 Batangas ’ Mt. Banoy, Bo. Talumpok East, = smnoan

8 Batangas City 0915-86832860
TV-26 Batangas (UHF} kt. Banoy, Beo. Talumpok zast. S E nnAnA

Ratangas City 0815-8832860
‘7 TV-7 Naga Brgy. Concepcion Pequefia, Naga City 0915-4417071
TV-28 Naga {UHF} Brgy. Cencepcion Pequafia, Naga City 0915-4417071

8 | TV-12 Legaspi Mt. Bariw, Tstanze, Legaspi City (3815-8832867
TV-27 Legaspi (UHF) Mt. Bariw, stanza, Legaspi City {0015-8632867
TV-12 Puerto Princesa, Mitra Rd., Brgy. Sia. Monica, Pueric 0RQ TR

. iy ; Q30 i’

o Palawan Princesa, Palawan 0e39-2755280
TV-27 Puerto Princesa, Mitra Rd., Brgy. Siz. Monica, Puerio oo A
Palawan (UHF) Princesa, Palawan 0938-2755280

10 | TV-6 Brooke's Point, Palawan | Poblacion, Brooke's Point, Palawan (0838.2755280

11 1 TV-7 Masbhaie Brgy. Finamurbuhan, Mobo, Masbate 0508.2405510
TV-27 Masbate (UHF) Brgy. Finamurbuhan, Mobe, Masbats (808-2405510

12 | TV-13 Catanduanes Brogy. Sto. Nifie, Virac, Catanduanes 0806-7524547

2 i iFaci @ ide |
13 TV-13 Oce. Mindoro Bpnhaulo 3t San Jose, Occidenta 0891-3504571
Mindoro
TV-26 ’ (UHF ifacio St., Jose, Occidental
TV-28 Oce. Mindoro (UHF) Bgm acic St, San Jose, Gocidenta 0921.3594571
Mincoro
147 TV-5 Aurora Purok 3, Brgy. Buhangin, Baler, Aurora 0920-2803500
15 | TV-7 Abra Brgy. Lusuac, Pefarrubia, Abra 0898-4473168
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L TV-13 Aparri, Cagayan

Hi-Ciass Bldg., [De Rivera St

| Poblacion, Aparri, Cagayan

0908-3848771

17

TV-7 Tuguegarac, Cagayan

Phil. Lumber Bidg., Washingion 5t.,
Tugusgarac, Cagayan

18 | Tv-8 Coron, Palawan ! Tapias Hili, Coron, Palawan Q828-6982107
49 TV-7 Batanes Brgy. Kayvaluganan, Basco, Batanas 0G28-T4A33472
08282804278
TV-7 Romblon - Triple Peak, Sta. Maria, Tablas, .
= , ' go6- 4

20 Romblon 0826-4812081
TV-7 isabels Heritage Commercial Compiex,

21 Maharlika Hi-way, Brgy. Malvar, 0815-5727845

Santiago City, tsabela

22 1 TV-5 Mountain Province Mt Amuyac, Barlig. Mountain Province 0815-2415450

23 | TV-44 Jalgjala Mi. Landing, Jalajala, Rizal 0915-8632874
VISAYAS

24 | TV-7 Cebu Bonbon, Cebu City 00154417075

TV-27 Cebu [UMF)

Bonpon, Cabu City

09154417075

TV-6 Hoilo

Bo. Tamburong, Jordan, Guimaras

0915-4417084

TV-28 lioiio (UHF)

Alta Tierra Subdivision, Jaro, lioilo

00715-447 7084

8]
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TV-11 Bohoi

TV-10 Tacloban

TV-26 Tacloban (UHF)

Banai- Hills, Brgy. Boo!l, Tagbilaran
City

Baspear, Tigbac, Tacloban City

Basper, Tighao, Tacleban City

0818-2502675

0919-3898212

28 ] TV-12 Ormoc, Leyie Brgy. Alie Vista, Ormoc City 0912-8880848
22 | TV-8 Borongan Poblacion, Borongan, Eastern Samar 0g21-2802154
30 Tv-5 Roxas City Brgy. Miiibili, Roxas City, Capiz 0021-8878181 / 0846-
48126879
TV-27 Roxas City (UHF) Brgy. Milibill, Roxas City, Capiz 0821-8678181 / 0948-
4812870
’ 31 | TV-5 Dumaguete Barric Looc, Sibulan, Negros Orienial 0806-5229430

TV-28 Dumaguete (UHF)

Barric Looc, Sibuian, Negros Oriental

0908-5228490

32

TV-1( Sipalay

Sipalay Municipal Buiiding, Sipaiay,




| Negros Occidental

TV-5 Calbavog City

Purck 2 San Mateo St Brgy. Matobato,

Del Norie

QAR TADE
33 Caibaveg City, Western Samar (948-7005868
34 | TV-Z Kaiiho New Busuanga, Numancia, Aklan 0825-4358822

| TV-27 Kalibo (UHF) MNew Busuanga, Numancia, Akian 0826-43580922
- | TV-13 Bacolod Security Bank Bidg., Rizal St cor. = "
3 . ; ey 01 5- 2864
v Locsin St., Bacoiod City 0915-863286
MINDANAD
36 TV-5 Davao Shrine Hills, Matina, Davao City 0915-4417082 / 0822
3282480
TV-27 Davao (UHF) Shrine Milts, Mating, Davao City 0815-4417082 / 0826~
3282480
a7 T2 ML Kitanglad Mt. Kitanglad, Bukignon (0915-8832863
TV-12 Cagayan De Oro Maijasag Heights, Brgy. Cugman. ats -
38 Cagayan de Oro City 0o16-86328675
R VIR, It T M= 'i"-"fslé.;:' J man, ooan =
IV-35 Cagayan de Oro (URF) | Malasag ‘je ghis, Erg; Cugman, 0045-8832875
Cagavan d& Oro City
a9 TV-8 General Santos E&;Uﬂe_?;SL:, Brgy. San isidro, General 004 5-8632871
Sanios City
R o < 3 = ary ¥ 1 lei ener R
TV-26 Gen. Santos (UHF) Nunsz St Brgy. San Isidro, General 0515-8632871
Santos City
- . . bt -
20 TV-12 Cotabato (R_j?iona, Government Center, Cotabato 0G20-3557385
TV-27 Cotabate (UHF) é;\?l@ﬂai Government Cenier, Cotabato 0990-3537395
41 1 FV-8 Zamboanga Brgy. Cabatangan, Zamboanga City (0815-8832870
TV-21 Zamboanga (UHF) Brgy. Cabatangan, Zamboangs City 0815-8632870
- i ial , iz City, Mi ' =
42 Tv-5 Ozamis Bo. Malaubang, Ozamis City, Misamis 0028-6773008
Occidental
TV-22 Ozamis (UHF) Bo. !‘\/f'aiaubang} Gzamis City, Misamis 0928-6278996
Occidental
43 TV-4 Dipoiog Linabo Feak, Dipolog City, Zamboanga 092144068587

TV-26 Dipolog (UHF)

Linabo Peak, Dipolog City, Zamboanga
Del Norte

0521-4406867




44 | TV-10 Surigao ! Lipata Hills, Surigac City 0e18-8085052

TV-27 Surigao {UHF) Lipata Hilis, Surigao City 0812-8085052
~ | TV-12 Jolo Ynawat Bldg., Hadji Butu 31, Jolo, Suly Q918-7922420 /1 0%28-
45 . o
7628282

T2 T dag fas ol Ml Brov Taelai i

46 VeZ Tanaag Capiol ﬁlaEr._ Srgy. Teigje, Tandag 5820.2050515

Surigaoc del Sur

47 | TV-3 Pagadian Mt Faipalan, Pagadian City 0805-5888017

TN-28 Pagadian (UHF) Mt Falpalan, Pagadian City (e08-6888017

TV-11

Higan
48

3/F Kimberly Bldg., A, Bonifacio cor.
isidoro Emiliz Ave.. Tihangs Hi-Way,
figan City

™

1| TV-7 Butuan®

BEEIRAATE STATION

| 8T Bidg., Montillz Bivd., Sutuan City

(085) 342-05

7
i

1/342-70
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“Affiiiate siations are nof owned by the company - they are usualiy indspendently owned by iocal Filipino business people wito re-
broadcast the Company’s originating signals during specifisd time blocks for negofiated fived fees.

GMA’s RADIO STATIONS

[ AREF. ERED, CALLSIGN POVIER ADDRESS
LUZON
METRO MANILA 97.1 mhz. 594 fpwis i ‘ 35kW | GMA Comptex, EDSA cor. Timog Ave., Diliman, Quazon
khz. DZBE ARS 1 BOkW City
BAGUIO 92.7 mhz. DWRA Fivt 10kW | 2/F Baguio Midland Courier Blog. 16 Kisad Rd., Baguio
City
DAGUPAN 93.5 mhaz. L DWTL v 10k | Claveria Roac, Maiued District
Dagupan City, Pangasinan
—LEGASPI 96.3 mhz. DWW Fivi 10kW | 3rd level A.Bichara Siiversreen Entertainment Center,
Magallanes Si., Legazpi City
LUCENA 91.1 mhz. PWQL Fi 10kW | 3/F Ancan Bldg., Merchan Street |, Lucena City
_NAGA 1015 mhz DWOW M 10RW | 4/F DMIG Bldg., Penafrancia 5t. Naga City, Camarines Sur
PALAWAN 8909 khz. DYSP A Skw Solid Road, San Manue! Puerto Princesa City, Priawan




| 97.5 mhz DYHY LEM | oBkw
| ;
i
TUGUEGARAD | 89.3 mhz DWW | FM 10kW | &/F Villabianca Hotel Paviaui $t. cor Pallue Rd., Ugac
i : Morte Tuguegarao, Cagayan
WVISANAS
BACOLGE 107.2mhz. DYEN P/ A0lW | 2/7 lomabo Centre Penthouse Rizal cor, Lacson Sta.,
Baroindg Chy
CEBU 280 khz. 85.5 DYSs AN 10w
mhz. DYRT M 25kW | GMA Skyview Complex Nivel Hilis, Lahug, Cebu City
HOWo 1323 khz DYst AN 10kw Phase 5, Alte Tierra Village daro, fioflo Jity
93.5 mnz DYMK Fii 10kW
KALIBD 92.9 mhe. DYRU P Skw Torres-Oiivia Bldg. Roxas Ave. Bxzension, Kalibe, Akian
WHRDAMAD
CAGAYAN DE GRO 160.7 mhz. OXEX Fivi 10kw | 2/F Marel Realty Bidg., Pabave corner Hayes St. Cagayan
de Qre City, Misamis Oriental
ILEGAN Relaved over
DZBE
DAVALD 103.5 mhz. ! DXRV Fivi 10K Fenthouse, Amesco Bldg. Damasc Suazo 5t, Uvanguren
§ Cavao (ity
1125 khz DG AR 10K
GENERAL SANTOS 102.3 mhz. DXCS By 10k 3/F PBC Bldg., Cagampang 55 Gen. Santos City

PROPERTIES INTENDED FOR ACQUISITION

As ot the preseni,
el

the Company doas nol intend ioc acguire any predetermined property within
the naxt twalve (12)

months.

item Z. Legal Procesdings

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved, from time fo time, as plaintiff or defendant in
litigation arising from fransactions undertaken in the ordinary course of ifs business. Describad
below are the pending material iitigation of which the Company and .its subsidiaries or their

T
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i
indicated below will not have a material adverse effect an its operations or financial condition.
None of the Company's affiliates, or their property, namely, RGMA Network, Inc., Philinpine
Entertainment Portal, inc. and Mont-Alre Reaalty and Devsiopment Corporation, ars invoived in

£

any material pending litigation as of Decambear 31, 2011,

Tax Cases
he Company fiied a Petition for Review on Sepiamber 22, 2004 against the Commissioner of
internal Revenus (“"CIR”} to dispute ife assessment for deficiency taxes for the year 2000 in the
{otal amount of 218.8 million based on the alieged failure by the Company o remit and withhoid

1

Value Added Tax ("WAT") dus on income payments io foreign suppliers anag for deficiancy in

final withholding taxes, faillure o pay withholding tax on dividends and interest thereon
13 t

€
< o
-
s I 6

8
failure to pay in full the inferest on withholding fax deficiency on pavment of infsrest on forel
lcans. The Company raised the defenss of prescription, arguing that the dividends declared
individuals in the year 2000 came from retained eamings for the vear 1887, The Company als:
argued that it had aiready paid its liability for the alieged deficiency for withhoiding tax on
pavments to foreign companiss on program righis and deficiency for final withholding tax on
interest and foreign loans.

o
O

&

The Court of Tax Appeais ("CTA") promuigated an adverse decision on July 26, 2007, The
Company filed a Petition for Revisw with the Supraeme Court questioning the said CTA dacision,
Howsaver, ths Supreme Court denied the Pefiion. The Company filed z mofion for
raconsideration which was likewise denisd by the Suprems Courl.  in the meaniime, ths
Company's application for abatement with the BIR has been denied. Thus, the Company was
constrained o pay to the BIR its correspaonding ax liabiiities for vear 2000,

&

On 12 September 2011, the Bureau of internal Revenue (BIR) issued & Cerliticate of Approval,
ceriifying that the Company’s appiication for abatement/canceliation (based on Section 2.7 of
the Revenue Reguiations No. 13-2001) of the Delinquency Interest in the total amount of
210,313 855,45 on iis Final Withholding Tax on Dividends for the Taxable Year 2000 has bean
accepted and approved.

Labor Cases

There is & pending case for illegal dismissal fiied by Jally Vinluan against Scenarios, Inc. On
April 26, 2001, a judgment was rendered by Labor Arbiter Salimathar V. Nambi in favor of Mr.
Viniuan ordering Scenarics, inc. 1o pay him the amount of 2119,180.37 represeniing back
wages, separation pay, salary differential, service incentive isave pay, and 13"-month pay.
Scenarios, Inc. only isarmned of the case when the sheriff of the NLRC served the writ of
exacution issuad theraein. As such, Scenarios, inc. immaeadiately fiiled a notice and memorandum
of appsal, & motion {o quash and/or recall writ of execution, and an urgent motion {o iift the
order of garnishment. On August 20, 2003, the NLRC issued an order remanding the case to
the Labor Arbiter for proper sarvice of summons but this was subssquently overruled by the
Court of Appeals. Scenarics appealed this decision to the Supreme Court. In & Decision dated
Sepntember 17, 2008, the Supreme Court denied the Petition. Scenarios file¢ & motion for
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reconsideration which was denied in 2 subsequent resolution by the Suprems Court. The case
will revert back to the NLRC for exacution of the decision of the Labor Arbiter.  Howsver, we
have contested the computed award for Mr. Viniuan before the Labor Arbiter.

There is another pending case for illegal dismissal, unfair labor praciices, non-payment of
overtime pay, holiday pay, premium pay for holiday and rest day and night shifi differential and
service incentive leave pay filed by Carles Pabriga, Geoffrey Arias, Kirby Campo, Amold
Lagahit and Armand Catibug. The complainants were engagsd on various dates from 1983 1o
1987 to replace regular empioyees of the Company’s Csbu stalion who were on leave or
otherwiss unable to work. On August 24, 2000, the Labor Arbiter dismissed the compiainis for
illegal dismissal and unfair labor practices, but directed the Company to pay complainants their
proportionate 13™-month pay. On appeal, the NLRC held that the compiainants wers regular
empioyees with respect o the parficular activity they were assigned until the aciivity ceassd o
exist and that they were entitied tc separation pay, 13“'month pay, night shift differential and
service incentive leave pay. The complainants claim that by virtue of this ruting, they are
entitled o payment of a total of approximaiely £1.5 million as of March 2007. The cass is
presently pending before the Supreme Court on appeal of the Company.

There is also a case for illzgal dismissal filted against GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.
(“GMPI"), another wholly-owned subsidiary of GMA Network, and its officers, Lizelie Maralag
anc Leah Nuyda initiated by Corazon Guison, 2 former Sales Director of GMPL  The
compiainant claimed that she was unceremoniously terminated from her employment sometime
in May 2010 and is entilied to reinstatement as well as payment of full backwages, unpaid
commissions and salaries, moral and exemplary damages and atiorney’s fees. On January 31,
2011, the Labor Arbiter rendered & decision finding for compiainant Guison and orderad the
respandents to pay P807.007.50 as backwages and P1.681.000.00 as separation pay, as well
as attorney’'s fees. The respondanis timely filed their appeal before the Nalional Labor
Retations Commission (NLRC) in March 11, 2011, in a Decision dated November 15, 2011, the
NLRC reversed the Labor Arbiter’s decision and dismissed the complaint of Guison.

infringement Cases

The Company’s officers, Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jdr., Marissa L. Flores, Jessica A
Sohe, Grace deis Pefaz-Reves, John Oliver Manalasias, Jdohn Doss and Jans Doss wers
named as respondenis in a criminal case initiated in June 2004 for copyright infringement
before the City Prosecuior’s Office of Quezon City and the Department of Justice (“DOJ™). Ths
case was subsequeantly consolidated with the Company’s counter charge or libel.

The respondents were charged in their capacities as corporaie officers and employeas of the
Company responsibie for the unauthorized airing of ABS-CBN’s exciusive live coverage of the
arrival in the Philippines of Angelo dela Cruz, 2 Filipino overseas worker previously held
hostage in lrag. Aside from seeking to hold the named respondents criminally liable for
infringement and unfair competition, ABS-CBN soughi damages from the respondents joinily
and severally in the aggregate amount of 2200 million.

On July 27, 2004, the Company and cerfain of ifs officers filed a case for libel against cerain
officers of ABS-CBN for statements made in their programs insider and Magandang Umaga
Bavan relative {o the incident involving the dele Cruz feed. The Company also sesks damages
in the aggregate amount of 2100 miliicn.
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In 2 Resolution dated December 3, 2004, the DOJ dismissed the compiaint for libel against the

BS CBN officers and employees and dropped the charges against the Company's officer
except tor Ms. Dela Pefia-Reves and Mr. Manalastas against whom the DOJ found probabie
cause for violation of the Inteliectual Properiy Code. 25-CBN filed a2 motion for partial
reconsiceration of the resolution on the grounds thal the other named rsspondenis wers
erroneously exonerated. The Company filad a pefition for review with the DOJ with respect o
the finding of probable cause against i‘\fzs el Pefia-Reyes and Mr. Manalastas and the
dismissal of the case for libel which was ¢ med On August 1, 2005, the DOJ reversed the
fiscal’s resclution finding probable cause against Mr. dels Pefia- Raues amd Mr. Maralastas and
diracted the fiscal o w;tharaw the Information. ABS-CBN filed & motion for reconsid at%on.
Mesanwhile, the DOJ issued & Resolution dated September 15, 2005 d nying the Lscmm ny's
Fetition for Raview and ‘uime inat ABS-CBN's officers and emplovees dig not commit fibal. The
Company filed & motion for reconsideration.

=y

On June 29, 2010, the DOJ issuaed 2 Resolution granting both the Company's and ABS-
Motion for Reconsideration, and directing the filing of information against ARS-CBN's office
and empioyees for iibel as well as the filing of information for inftingement against th
Company’'s officers and employvees
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The Company elevated the DCJ's June 28, 2010 Resolution directly to the Court of Appeais vie
a Pelition for Cerliorari docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 115751, On i\iovambet g, 2010, the Court
ot Appsals issued a decision granting the Carzmanvs Petition for Certiorart and reve smﬁ tha
DOJ Resolution dated June 2 . 2010 and reinstating the DCJ Resolution dated August 1, 2008
which ordered the withdrawal GE information for copyright infringement. ABS-CBN fiied a motion
for reconsideration with the Court of Appeals, which was denied. ARS-CBN filed s Satition with
the Supreme Court and which is still pending, io datfe.

Libe! Case

A complaint for iibal ayamSa Miguel Enriquez, as well 25 an action for 220 million in civi
damages against the Company, Miguel Enriguez. and several others, was m ed by Rob
Lyndon Barbers, et al., for an episode of the program Imbestigador, concerning the wid @sp read
sale of kidneys in Siargao Isiand. The complainants alieged that they ware made the subjsci o
various imputations of wrongdoing in the episode in question. The complainants seek dam age
in the amount of 215 million for the malicious imputations: £2 miliion in moral damagss; 2
million in exemplary damages; and #1 million in attorney's fees and expenses of litigation.
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While the criminal case has been provisiona Iy dismissad, the civil case has been withdrawn by
piaintiffs and ordered dismissed by the RTC of Quezon City.

Chvif Cases

A complaint jor damages was filed by Dolores Dominge, a Bureau of Customs ("BOC”;
employse, sgainst the Company, Migus! Enriguez, Carmeis Taf‘*gg,o and Arnold Clavio
sometime in 2003, The case arose from the airing of an episods of Imbestigador, Saksi and
other programs, concerning two BOC employess who acguired motor vehicies disproporiionaie
to their salaries as government employees. The plaintiff sesks moral damagsas in the amount of
#400 thousand; nominal damages in the amount of 220 thousand; exemplary damages in the
amount of 220 thousand; aftorneys fees in the amount of 250 thousand as well as the cost of
suit. The RTC of Manila ruied in favor of the Company and dismissed the complaint by plaintiff.



Another case for damages was filed by Ronaido Virole against Miguel Enriguez and the
Company. Ronaldo Virola filed a case for damages arising from the airing of imbestigador
episodes showing the interviews of “Myra” and “Chona” who accused Virola of placing drugs in
their drinks before molesting them. The said Imbestigador episodes aiso showad the raid
conducted by operatives of Task Force Jericho of the Depariment of interior and Local
Government who applied for a warrant to ssarch the residence of Virola, The complaint sought
£800 thousand in moral damages, 300 thousand in exemplary damages, attorney’s fees in the
amount of 2100 thousand and the cost of suit. The RTC of Caloocan ruled in favor of the
Company and dismissed the complaint by plaintifl. Plaintifl has appealsd the irial courls
dacision to the Court of Appeals.

On June 25, 2008, Mary the Quesn Hospital filed & case for damages against the Company,
Mike Enriguez as well as cerfain other members of the show, imbestigador. The hospital
alieged that the show damaged its reputation by faisely accusing them of iliegaliv dstaining &
patient for failure to settle hospital bilis. The hospital claimed a total of & 5.5 milion in moral,
exemplary and temperate damages, as well as costs of the suil. The plainiiff is in the process of
presenting its evidence.

Another case involved the Company and members of the show imbestigador, stemmed from a
story involving a police officer ailegediy extorting money from arrested drug depsndents, which
uliimately led to his arrest. On September 4, 2008, the complaint sought to enjoin the airing of
the story relating to his arrest by filing 2 case for injunction. However, the plaintiff's application
for restraining order was denied by the RTC of Quezon City. Plaintiff then filed an amendsd
complaint io include a claim for damages. The plainiiff is still presenting evidence before the
trial court.

A petition for indirect contempt with damages was filed against GMA DYS| Supar Radvo and
other individual respondents alleging that they violated the sub judice rule by commenting on
[ssues in an ongoing case on Saksi sa Gab-l. Peiitioner praved for damages in the amount of
about half a miliion in damages. However, petitioner has relented and withdrawn the Petition for
contempt as against the Company. Thus, the trial court dismissad the Pefition,

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to & vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year covered by this report.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Market information

Stock Prices GMAT

Pericd in 2011 Highest Closing Lowest Ciosing




20 7.18 6.67
3Q 6.99 .47
40 £.66 5.20
Stock Prices GMAF
Baried in 2011 Highest Closing Lowest Closing
1G 7.01 6.52
20 710 68,70
30 7.10 .38
40 8.55 6.03

The Company's commaon shares and Philippine Deposit Recsipts have been listed with the
Philiopine Stock Exchange since 2007.. The price information as of the ciose of the latest
practicable frading date April 18, 2012, GMAT's closing price is 2 2.10 for GMA 7 and 28.92 for
GMAPR {(PDRs)

Holdars

There are 1,870 hoiders of commen equity as of March 31, 2012, The foliowing are the top 20
hoiders of the common egquity of the Company:

Mame of Shareholders No. of Common Shares i?;ﬁg??j;;gfgﬁ;?zp
GMA Holdings, Inc. 881,558,300 25.61%
Group Management & Davelopment, inc.  789.613,38¢ 23.47%
FLG Managementi & Deveiopment Corp. 683,329,027 19.73%
M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, inc. 453,882,095 13.49%
Television international Corp. 334,378,037 9.94%,
PCD Nominee Corp. 216,414,966 8.43%
Gozon Development Carp. 14,033,854 0.42%
Gozen Foundation inc. 4,514,351 00.13%
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr, 4,007,006 0.12%
Alagria F. Sibal -?,093.252 0.03%
Anna Teresa Gozon-Abrogar 1,058,060 0.03%

]
Lo}



Mame of Sharshoiders Nu. of Common Shares Pfrcentage of Ownership |
of Total Common Shares
Felips 8. Yaiong
1,025,000 0.03%
Jose Mari L. Chan 872,000 0.02%
Judith Duavit Vazguez 588.000 0.02%
Jose P, Marcelo 501,498 0.061%
Nita Laure! Yupangco 346 127 0.01%
Jose O, Laurst v 345,127 U0.01%
Susans Laurel -Delgado 348,127 0.01%
Horacio P. Borromeo 328,735 0.01%
Jaime C. Lava 284,000 0.01%

“

The following are the top 20 hoiders of the Company’s preferred sharas as of March 31, 2012

Name of Shareholders Ko, of Preferred Shares szrcentageﬁof Dwr}ershipi
of Total Preferred Shares
Group Management & Development Inc.  2,625,805,308 25.0130%
FLG Management & Development Corp. 2.181,898,644 29.0838%
M.A. Jimenez Enterprises 1,508,8978,826 20.1210%
Telavision intemationai Corp. 1,111,861,610 14.8251%
Gozon Development Corp. 46,245 308 (.6166%
Gozon Foundation inc, 15,020,670 G.2003%
Alegria F. Sibal 2,623,806 0.0350%
Josg P. Marcelo 1,203,554 0.0160%
Sotero M. Laurs! 830,708 0.0111%
Nita Lauret Yupangco 830,706 ¢.0111%
Jose C. Laurel V £30,708 0.0111%
Juan Miguel Laure! 830,708 0.0111%
Susana Laurel-Deigado 830,700 0.0111%
Ma. Asuncion Laurel-Uichico 830,766 0.0111%
Horacic P, Borromsao 784,164 0.0105%
Francis F. Obana 106,120 0.0014%
Eduardo Morato 38,028 0.0005%
Antonio Gomez 36,420 0.0004%
Jose N, Morales 30,420 0.0004%
| Baul Sim _ 30,420 (.0004£%

The informalion pressnted does not relate {o an acguisition, business combination or other
reorganization.

Dividend information
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Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payabie
at such times and in such amounis as the Board of Directors shall determine, sither in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Direciors
shall determine. The declaration of siock dividends, howsver, is subiect fo the approval of at
least twe-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the
Company shail be declared. The Company has no contractual resfrictions which woulg limit its
ability fo dedlare any dividend.

Dividend History of the Company

Year Amount Date Declared Tvoe of Bividend
2605 B 218,521.203.5 =abruary 17, 2005 Cash and Property
2005 B 3,0006,000.000.0 October 11, 2005 Stock
2006 £ 1,150,006.000.0 June 13, 2008 Cash and Fropsrty
2007 £ 1,500,000.000.0 March 18, 2007 Cash
2007 8- 375,000,000 April 28, 2007 Steck
2007 = 1,000.000.000.0 Jdudy 2, 2007 Cash
2008 2 1,294.183,001.0 May 21. 2008 Cash
2008 2 1,701.068.453.0 April 2, 2009 Cash
2010 P 2,187.088.296.56 March 25, 2610 Cash
2010 B 1.215,048,08%.20 Cctober 28, 2010 Cash
2011 B 2. 187.088.296.56 March 11, 20141 Cash
2012 B 1,844,075.374.72 March 28, 2012 Cash

The Company's Board of Directors has approved & dividand policy which wili entitle hoiders of
the Common Shares o receive annual cash dividends sguivaient to & minimum of 50% of the
prior vear's nel income based on the recommendaiion of the Board of Directors. Such
racommendation will take inic consideration factors such as the implementation of business
plans, operating expenses, budgets, funding for new investments, appropriate ressrves and
working capital, among others. The cash dividend policy may be changad by the Company's
Board of Directers at any time,

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Secuyriiies

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurrea within the past three
Vears.

ltem 6. Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

The Management Discussion and Analysis provides a narralive of the Company's financial
performance and condition that shouid be read in conjunciion with the accompanying financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepiad in the Philippinss.
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As discussed beiow, the Company’s financial statements do not show any losses from operation
and hence the Company has not taken any measures to address the same.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The Company uses the following measures {0 assass its parformance from period to period.

Ratings

The performance of 2 program and/or network as a whole with respect to household ratings i
the primary consideration for an advertiser in the Philippines to determine whether to advartis
on a given program and/or network. AGB Nielsen, a media ressarch firm, provides ratings to th
Company on a subscription basis.
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Load Facior

l.oad factor refers to the amount of advertising minutes aired during the breaks in 2 program as
& percentage of the total minutes availabie for advertisement. The load facior is an indication of

a program or 2 timeblock’s ability to sell advertising minutes. Load factor statistics are internally
generated, although ceriain third parties monitor such statistics.

Signal reach/coverage

The ability to reach g greater number of viewers is g part of the Company’s strategy io provide
its adveriisers with more value for their advertising expenditures. The Company freguently
assesses s signal strength and coverage by conducting in-house fisid intensity survays and

iesis.
Subscriber count

Subscriber count is the key performance indicator for some of the Company's inifiatives o
diversify ifs revenue base beyond adveriising revenues. The number of subscribars o GMA
Pinoy TV and to the Company’s ancillary media servicas, such as those provided by GMA New
Media, form the benchmark for msasuring the success of these services. The Company makes

infernal assessmenis 1o determine the market potential for each new initiglive and ssts a
subscriber count target accordingty.

Cost control

The Company is continuously searching for ways to controf costs and to improve efficiency. The
Company has established systems and procedures to monitor costs and measure efficiency and
has taunched various iniliatives and activities in raigfion o these efforis.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL RESULTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

The objactive in grabbing the much coveied isadez'éhip in the national raiings game was finally
attained by the first quarter of 20611 — & fitling reward to the unrelenting efforis pourad into vieg &
‘ 8



mulfitude of regional synergy initiatives and in continuously striving to dsiight our customers with
innovative programming. This upper hand was instrumeantal in mitigating the advarse impact
developments in the international market particularly in the second half of the vear which led 1o
significant cutback in ad spend by major advertésare.

The Company ended the vear with consolidate i 213,083 million, ranslating
nto a 7% growth from regular advertising ang o’fher revenus sCUrces ve. g vear ago, after
strippmg the impact of some B2,054 million worth of political advocacies and advariisemanis in

2010's fop line. inciusive of the Wmd fall from the 2010 national and local slections,
consolidated gross revenues fell short by 9% year-on-year. The absence of this considarabls
contribution from pr’or vcarfs election campaign coupled with cost increases drove consaolidated
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net incomes o setfle 1,718 miliior or skightly over a billion lass than comparable period.
2071 2010 nc/(Dec)| %
income Data (in millions Php) b (in millions Phip) | (in miliions Php)
Gross Revenues
Television and radic airtime 11,881.2 13,1927 (1311.3) -10%
Production and others 1,201.6 1,106.8 94,8 g%
13,0828 14,2995 (1.2167) 9%
Less: Revenue Deductions
Agency and marketing commmissions 18941 22044 (310.4); -14%
Co-producers' share 31.7 8.0 48.3) -60%
1,925.8 2,284.4 (358.6)] -16%
|Net Revenues 11,157.0 12,0151 #5871 7%
Production Costs 5105.6 £,593.2 51170 11%
Gross Profit 60521 74219 (1,369.8) -18%
General and Administrative Expenses {(3.875.3} (3,732.6} (146.7)] 4%
Interest Expense and Financing Charges (1.5) (3.8) (7.7) 203%
Interest Income 28.6 772 487y -63%
Other income 56.1 31.4 347 79%
income Before Income Tax 22460 73,7942 (1,548.2) -41%
Provision {or Income Tax 530.9 973.4 (4425% -45%
Net Income L7711 28208 (1,305.7) -39%
Earnings Per Share
Basic {1.353 0.580
Diluted 0.353 0580
Revenues

Consoiigated gross revenues for the year, comprised of airfime ravenuss from ielevision and
radio, subscription revenues from international operations, and other ravenues from
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subsidiaries, climbed B837 million or 7% more than the B1Z,
recurring adveriisements ana other sources a vsar age.

I\)

48 miliion top line generaied from

2011 2010 Inc/ (Dec) %
Gross Revenues | (mowriilions Phip)| (in millions Php)| (in millions Php)
Gross Revenues
Television and radio airlime 118812 11,1389
Producton and ofhers 12016 11068
130818 12,2457
Add: Political advertisements - 70538
13,0828 14,2993

Alriime revenuss ended at B11,881 mililon for 2011 up 7% than 2010's fop line from reguiar
adveriising. Inclusive of political ads in 2010 however, 2 0% drop eguivalent 1o B1,217 million
was reflected in total gross revenues for this vear

Core channal, GMA-7 postad an improvement in iis regular adverlising revenuss of 8% or B828
miflion vs. same pericd in 2010, Regional TV sales were likewise upbseat in 2011 with the lzad
in nationwide ratings giving the much nesded push. Thus, RTV ended with a 21% hike ysar-on-
year on recurring ad piacements, Not io be left behind, Radio operations once again proved ifs

staadiasiness growing reguiar saies by 15%, fikewise ben if*m"‘ from the improvemant in
ratings standing in the radio b?oadcast industry. Lastly, the nswly reformatiad Cr—@ I {from QTV
to GNTV) also sieadily gainsd g d as i solidified the main compslence of the Nelwork as 2
repuiable source and provider of ba;anc—ed news and information.

Meanwhiiz, revanues from international operations, subsidiaries and other scurces finished off
with a 8% climb ve. last vear. GMA's international channels, led by GWMA Pinoy T\u GhMA Life
TV and the recenfly launched third channsl GMA News TV recorded an increase in subscriber
take up of 7% with mors than 280,000 subscribers by the end of 2011, Of this number, some
115,000 are alsc subscribers of GLTV.

Expenses

Spending-wise consolidaied operating expenses reachsd B8,684 million for the year, climbing
[~

8% or B85S milliion compared fo 2010, Total direct costs {cash and non-cash ;rouuwkson cosis)
escalated by 11% while general and administrative expenses (GAEX) grew by only 4%,

Total direct cost for 2011 reached BS, 105 million, B512 million or 11% higher vs. ias{ year.
Cash production cost hiked by B644 miliion or 16% over last year coming from the foliowing: a. )
generally higher costs of in-house produced scaps, in particular Captain Barbell and the
irailblazar epic-serye Amaya; b.) annualization of an addilional daily soap in the aﬁamoen
"eo;af*irzg co-produced program Daisy Siefe; c¢.) reformatiing of Ch-11 from QTV to GNTV
entailing more station-produced shows vis-&-vis rented maisrials; and gensral increases in
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) 2013 2014 Inc/(Dec) e
Production Costs {in millions Phpl | (in millions Php) | (in millions Pl
Talent fees 27764 2,330.5 4459 19%
Rentals and outside services 7635 638.9 1044 16%
Other program expenses 1,036 G105 841 10%
Sub-total - Cash production cosés £,563.2 3,818.9 64d.4 16%
Program vights amortization 3175 463.9 {14c.3)r -32%
Depreciation and amortization 224.2 2165 7%
Sub-fofal - Non-cash production costs 541.7 674.3 ~20%
Total production costs 53105.0 459372 119

The hike in cash production costs was partly offset by the reduction in non-cash production cost
by B33 miliion or 20% between comparable periods. in particular, program rights amortization
dropped by B146 million or close fo one-third of 2010 cost resulling from the aforementioned

repackaging of Ch-11 fc mostly station-produced shows.

2071 2010 Irc/{Dec) %]
General and Administrative Expenses (irnymiliions Plpi i (in willions Php) | (in millions Php)
Personne! costs L7LEZ 1,626.1 281 5%
Cuiside services 6€7.0 6673 (0.3)-0.05%
Facilides costs 458.0 4450 151 2%
Taxes and hcenses 2114 1010 281 11%
Oithers 484.2 4575 287 &%
Subtotai - Cash GAEX 3.534.9 33852 1496 4%
Depreciation and amortization 294.2 2955 23 1%
Amortizaton of software costs 25.7 20.2 551 27%
Provision for doubtiul accounts 245 30.6 6.0y -20%
Subtofal - Non-cash GAEX 3444 3473 2oy 1%
Total GAEX 3,879.3 37326 146.7 4%

On the other hand, the increase in consolidated GAEX was kepl at bay at 2147 million or oniy
4%. Personnel cost was the main driver for this year's climb, ending at 5% or 288 million more
vs. last year. The annual salary adjustments from the collective bargaining agreements (CBA)
of rank and file empioyees and meril increasses of confidential emplovess as well as the
augmsantation in manpower comptement during the year accounted from the principal reasons
for the growth in tha account.

Cutside services comprised of advertising and promotions, managsement and professional fess
and sales incenfives finished on par with last year. Additional spending in advariising and
the

consuliancy fess were negated by the decline in saies inceniives attuned fo the reduction in
iop line this vear.
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Utilities and repairs and maintenance which made up Faciiities costs inched u;} by 3% or %?75
million between comparabie periods. The constant ascalation in power rate not only in Meb
Manlla but in the regions coupied with increase in consumption due to full um:atrcsr of vin
Company's facilities were temperad by the reduction in charges for corractive maintenance
repiacament of machine/broadcast equipment paris.
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Taxes and licenses were moderately higher by B20 miliin

on a
age. The growlh in local franchise tax using the 2010 ?O‘E toal ag hass
influisnced the increase in the accouni, coupled with 2 ona-time payment for prior vear's tax
assessment,

Other cash GAEX also ended up by BZ27 million or 5% mainly owing o aggregaie incraases in
research and survey, renial faas anc’ su D scription and renswal 1o various software licenses and
agreements,

Meanwhiie, non-cash GAEX for the year dippsd by B3 miliion or 1% vear-on-vear, Ths increase
in amortization of software costs was negated by the dediine in depreciation and lower provision

Tor doubtful accounts on trade recsivables.
interest and financing charges on shori-ferm loans

interest expense and financing chargas totaled B11 million, compared to B4 million in 2010,
translafing into an additional interest expense of BS milion from a year ago. Shori-term
borrowing during the year was mainly ussd to bridge the timing difference bawssen cash inflows
and opserating expensas

interest incoms from short-term invesimenis

in the meantime, interast income from shori-term investmeants significantlty deciined o B2
million, down §3% or B49 miliion from last year's B77 million. The resulting deciine in i
income was mainly on account of the reduced cash posifion and shori-term placement during
the vear brought about by lower nat income.

et Income

The year ended with sarnings before income, {axes, deprecigiion, and amortization of 83,080
miliion, and nat income after tax of 1,715 million.

stance Sheet Accounts

Consoiidated assets tofaled B12,381 miliion, eguivalent to a2 5% reduction from last
vears B13,042 milion. Considerabie decline was seen in Trade and other recaivables-nat from
25,532 miliion in 2010 to B4,181 miliion at the end of this year. The B1,341 million or 24% drop
i the account was a combinaiion of the slowdown in revenues compounded by aggressive
collection efforts this vear.

a]f

Trade days-sales-ouistanding (DS0) improvad to 120 days at end-2011 vs
close of 2010.
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The deciine in net income pulied down financial indicators of the Company fo a lower leval this
year faliing between 6 to 10 percentage points, but nevertheless remaining compstitive industry-

wide,

Equity setlied at B9 827 million as of December this year, % lowar than last vear's B10,298
million resulting from the lower bottom line recorded during this vaar.

2011 2036
Cash Flows (in pllions Phy) | (in millions Phn)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,104.3 2,703.7
Net cash used in investing activities (834.4) {259.8)
MNet cash used in financing activities {2,199.1} {(3,403.8)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents £.8 7y
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {24 4} {967.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear 14324 2,200.2
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of year 1.208.0 1,237 4

Operating Activities

Netl cash from operations regisiered at 83,104 miliion this vear. This resulted from income
before income tax of BZ,248 million adjusted mainly by depreciafion expenss of B518 miliion,
pension expense of E71 million, inferest income from bank depaosits and shori-term invesiments
of B2S miliion and amoriization of software costs of B28 million apart from the changes in
working capital. The primary components of the changes in working capital include the B1,339
million reduction in trade and other receivabies owing fo lower fop line compounded with mors
aggressive collection efforts, parily offset by the B172 mililon rise in program and other righis
from higher acguisition vis-a-vis usage, as the reformatted Ch-11 congentrated on station-
produced programs vice a mix of in-house and canned shows and P30 million hike in prepaid
expenses.

Net cash usad in invasting activities amounted to B834 million, coming primarily from the 8903
million additions to property and equipmeni anc E35 miliion worth of sofiware costs. Thess
wars offset by the B12 million decrease in other noncurrent assets as well as the B24 million
proceeds from sale of property and equipment and investment properties.

Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to 22,129 million basically for the cash dividend

payout amounting to B2,188 million during the year plus some B11 miliion in interest expanse.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL RESULTS



Marking 60 years in broadcasting, GMA Netwark, Inc, has emerged ic become one if not thx
most profitable company in the industry. For the last ten years the compounded annual growt!

rate in tarms of net income stood at a remarkabie 28%. The Company siood resolute all ths
yvears even i the face of economic difficullies here and abroad and sl compeiition from its
maost formidable rival and most racently with the aggressive entry of 8 third big channel,

@ (D _5“ &D

it was vet another challenging vear for the Company in 2010, with financial resulis scarin
during the election ssason and later on experiencing sstbacks in the face of advertising 1 ’E
negotiations and ratings challenges, V‘\fnsie ihe Company sieadily regained Hs foothoid fowar
the end of the yeaa obstacies encounterad during the third guarier ook ils il as yeas‘—"toﬁ
consolidatad net income sstiled only 2 tad higher than 2008's performance.

(D U} & ‘{)

2010 2009 Inc/(Decy %
income Data (in millions Php) | (in millions Php}| (in millions Phip]
Gross Revenues
Television and radio airtime 133827 12,6918 5011 4%
Froduction and others 11066 1,G79.3 275 3%
34,2995 12,7709 528.0 4%
Legs: Revenue Deductions
Agency and marketing commissions 12044 2,060.0 1444 7%
Ceo-producers' share 80.0 2104 {130.4)] -62%
22844 22704 140 1%
Net Revenue 120181 11,5003 5314.6 £%
Producton Cosis 45232 4,2904 3029 7%
Gross Profit TAZLY 7.2106.2 2118 5%

General and Administrafive Expenses (3,732.6) (3452.0) (2806 8%
Interest Fxpense and Financing Charges (3.8} {8.9) 511 -37%
Interest Income 77.2 57.8 1951 34%
Other Income 3i.4 31.8 04y 1%
income Before Income Tax 3,784.2 3.838.9 447y 1%
Provision for Income Tax 9734 1.020.6 47.3y 5%
Net income 28208 281853 261 061%
Earnings Per Share

Basic $.580 0.580

Diluted 0.580 0.580
Revenues

Consolidated gross revenues for 2010, comprised of aitime revenues from television and radio,

subscripiion revenuss from international operations, and other revenuss from subsidiaries,
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wrapped up at 14,300 million, more than half a billion or 4% higher than ithe B13.771 million
recorded in 200€.

2010 2009 tne/ (Dec) %
Gross Kevenues (fin miillions Php) | (in millions Phyp) | (in miliions Php)
Television and radio airfime 13,1827 12.691.6 5011 4%
Production and others 1,106.8 10793 275 3%
14,2995 13,7709 328.6 4%

Airtime revenues drove the increase buoyed by political acvertisemenis during slection period
which totaled B2.054 milion acress all plafforms in contrast ic BS38 milion in political
advocacies booked in 2008. Channel 7 remained the lifeblood of the Company, contributing
85% of tolal revenues. Airtime confribution from this piatform slightly improved by 2% year-on-
vear. Radio’s airtime revenues on the other hand jumped 43% driven by political ad placements
and sustained revenue growth even towards the end of the vear. International operation’s top
line which has sisadily provided an additional source of revenues grew by 8%, backed by the
continuing build up of subscriber base. The revenue growth would have been higher at 14%
stripping the impact of the appreciation of the pesc during the ysar. GMA's international
channsis — GMA Pinoy TV (GPTV)} and GMA Life TV (GLTV) — both recorded double-digit
growth in subscriber base by end-2010. GPTV's subscribers were over 273,000 as of the
mentioned period, up 16 percent vear-on-vear. Of this number, 125,000 are also subscribers of
GLTV, increasing subscriber take-up by 17 percent from 2008,

Expenses

Total operating expanses grew by B583 milion or 8% year-on-vear, ending at B8, 328 mililon vs.
E7.742 miliion in 2008, The climb was mainly propelied by the increase in production cosis and
advertising and promotions particuiarly in the regions.

Production-related expenses hiked 7% or B303 miliion with cash production costs increasing by
B350 milion or 10%. Non-cash production costs partly mitigated the rise by ending 8% or B57
mitlion lower. The growth in cash production costs was mainly on account of the non-recurring
elsction coverage expensas. Apart from this, additional programs were produced, particularly in
the weekday late afternoon grid, replacing canned materials and the long-running co-produced
program Daisy Siete by mid-year. Moreover, the Network took a big leap in refurbishing its
weekend flagship entertainment variety program, Parly Filipinas repiacing S.0.P., which
sveniually clinched higher ratings against its rival program. The weekday telebabad biock
fikewise carried higher costing programs vis-&-vis their counterparts last year. in 2010, Survivor
Philiopines featured ceiebrity castaways with an equally new host in the person of Richard
Gutierrez, entailing higher cost than 2009's Survivor edition.

The escalation in cash production costs was partly offset by the reduction in program rights
usage arising from the aforementioned changes in the programming mix, wherain slois
previcusly occupied by Koreanovelas were replaced by in-house produced programs.
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2010 2009 inc/(Dec) %
Production Costs {in milfions Php) | {in millions Php} | (in wmiliions Pip)
Talent foes 2,330.5 21001 2051 11%
Rentals and outside services 658.9 6131 458 7
Other program expenses 9245 8435.1 8441 10%
Sub-total - Cash production cosis 391885 3,553 359.6 10%
Program rights amortization 463.9 5244 (60.6)] -12%
Depreciation and amortization Zig.5 206.6 39 2%
Sub-total - Non-cash production costs 674.3 731.60 (36.7),  -8%
Total production costs 4,593.2 4,290.4 3026 7%

Meanwhile, consolidated general and administrative expenses (GAEX) sealed the 2010 #3,733
million, B281 miliion or 8% more than in 2008, The spike in advertising and promotions due o
the continued promotiona! biitz in the regions accounted for mare than one third of the
escalation in GAEX. The hike in sales inceniives owing fo 2010's slection revenuess likewise
added io the increase in general and adminisirative expenses.

2010 2009 Inc/(Dec) %
General and Administyative Expenses (tn mitllions Phy} i (in willions Php) | (in millions Phy)
Personnel costs 1.626.1 16121 14.1 1%
Outside services 667.3 512.2 12511 30%
Facilities costs 4450 2490 G4.0 27%
Taxes and licenses 1813 1914 01y 0.1%
Others 457.5 4114 46.1 11%
Subtotal - Cash GAEX 5,385.2 3,076.1 3092 0%
Depreciation and amortization 286.5 3521 (556 -16%
Provision for doubtiul accounts 38.6 8.2 224 275%
Amortization of software costs 28,2 15.7 446 29%
Subtotal - Mon-cash GADX 347.5 37539 (286} -8%
Total GAEX 373286 34520 280.6 8%

Personnel costs amounted to 81,626 miliion, almost at par with 2008’s spending. Despite
growth in manpower base and salary adjustments, the negligible movement in personnel costs
in 2010 was due to the presence of a non-recurring signing bonus in 200¢ resuliing from the
thres-year collective bargaining agreement and highar bonus rate in 2008,

Qutside services, consisting of advertising and promotions, managemsnt and professional fees,
and sales incentives, soared by B155 million or 30% compared o prior year. &xtensive
promotional efforts particularly in the regions in the pursuit of gaining nationwids leadership in
ratings drove advertising and promotions fo grow by 38% or 112 miliion more than in 2009.
Sales incentive likewise shot up attuned fo the influx of political ad placements earfier in 2010.
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Utilities and repairs and maintenance which comprisad Faciiiies costs rose 27% or B84 million
in 2010, The jump in utiliies consumption mainily resulied from the power rate hike not only in
Metro Manila but in the regions as well. The signai-strengthening enhancements in regional
infrastructure likewise necessitated addifional power congumption.

Taxes and licenses ended flat at B121 miliion vear-on-year. The growth in franchise iax and
increase in royalty tax aligned with the improvement in GMA intermnational's subscription
revenue were offset by the reduction in real property tax payments and one-time adjiustment in
annual NTC supervision fee.

£

miliion vs. B411 miliion. The growth was influenced by higher fess incurred in res
survey services and increases in security and janitorial fees,

COther cash GAEX was likewise up by 848 miliion or 11% comparad fo 2008, ending at B458
o

Meanwhile, non-cash GAEX for the 2010 dropped 8% or B29 million wrapping up at 8347
million on the back of lower depreciation. Major broadcast eguipment were fully amoriized this
year causing the reduction. This was partly negated by booking additional provision for doubtfu!
accounis in 2010,

interest and financing charges on shori-term loans

interest expense and financing charges dipped by 57% to a mere B4 miilion in 2010 from 2009s
B2 miliion. Shori-term borrowings in 2010 was significantly rimmed down as the Company was
awash with cash especially during the eariier parf of that year from political adveriisaments anc
was able {0 sustain its operations with internally generated funds.

interest income from short-term investiments

While interest and financing charges dropped, interest income from shori-term investments
grew to E77 million, up B19 miliion or 34% from 2008. Shori-term piacemanis ware ralatively
higher boosted by higher collections due to pay-before broadcast policy for election-reiated
placements.

Met Incoms

The impact of iotal operating costs ouipacing the growth in revenues was miligaied by
additional coniributions coming from non-operating incoms in 2010, Thus, bottom line setlied
ahead of 2008, albeit by barely 0.1% at B2,821 million compared to B2,818 miliion in 2009,

Balance Sheet Accounts

Consoiidaied assets totaled B13,042 million, eguivaient fo & 5% reduction from 2009 B
13,684 miliion. Cash and short-term investments were down 44%, declining from £2,200 million
by end-2009 to B1,232 million as of ysar-end. The significant drop resulied from a second
tranche of cash dividend payout of B0.25 per share fo ali shareholders amounting to 81,215
million in December 2010, apart from the regular dividend distributed in May of the same year -
anothar milestone for the Company. :
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Trade days-sales-outstanding (DS0O) stood at 145 days at end-2010 vs. 149 davs
2008,

Despite & siowdown in net income, financial indicators for the Network remainad robust. Refurn
on assets improved o 22% from prior year's 21%, while return on eguity ended at 27% vs, .
in 2009,

Equity settied at 810,289 million as 0‘5 Decembaer 2010, 5% lowsr than 2000 B1£ 880 million
caused by the aforementionad higher dividend payout during the vear
20 2009
Cash Flows (i miilitons Php) | (in miliions Phy)
Net cash provided by operating activities 17637 28225
Net cash used in investing aciivities 259.8) (602.4)
Net cash used in financing activities {3,403.8) {1,700.7)
iffect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents 7.9} (7.2)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {9678} 5123
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12002 1,688.1
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of vear 12324 22000
Operating Activities
Nat cash from operalions registered gl EZ 704 million in 2010, Thés astlted from the incoms
I
O1

ult

bafore income tax of B3 784 million adjusied by depraciaiion expanse of B507 mi Emm pension
axpense of B84 million and inferest income from bank deposits and ano -term investments oT F
77 million apart from the changes in working capital. The primary compeonenis of the changes in
working capital inctude the BZ225 million Increass in trade and other receivables and B21
million climb in prepaid expanses which were partly offsef by the net movement resuliing in
drop of B82 million in program rights as the Company’s program rights usage for the vear w
higher compared to the ieve! of acquisitions made.

i
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investing Activities

Net cash used in investing aclivities amounted fo F260 E"{Hﬁli)f} arising mainly from the B428
million additions to property and sguipment foliowad by B31 million worth of sofiware cosis.
These were offsat by the P87 miliion decrease in other noncurrent a2sseis as well as the BLE
million representing collection of advances o associates and joint veniures and B50 miliion
nroceeds from sale of property and equipment and investmant propertiss,

Financing Activities

by

or e recors-nign

Nat cash used in financing activities amounted o B3,404 million basically
cash dividend payout amounting to B2 400 million during the ysar.

EY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

.  Trends, demands, commitments, evenis or uncerainties that will have & material
impact on the issuer’s liguidity.
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V.

Vi,

vil.

s of December 31, 2011, thers were no known trends, demands, commiimenis,

evenés or uﬂwriamties that will have a material iImpact on the issuer’s iquidity.

reut of contings ancial obligation that iz material 1o the

Events that will trigger d
ng any default or a fw, tion ar an obligalion

company, includin

Az of December 31, 2 “s’i there wars no m\fnms which may trigoer & direct or
contingant financial atson that is matarial to the Company.

Miaterial Qﬁ{}a;anse»sheu tranaabzsaﬁs arrangsmanis onga{*ms(r“ fuding
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entifies or othar persons created during the reporting period

Thare were no matenal off-batance shest ransactions, arrangsments, obligations
{inciuding contingent obnca"iamﬁ and other relaiions of the company with
unconsolidated entities or ofner persons created during the reporiing period.

Material commitments for capital expendituras, the ganeral purpose of such
commitments and the expacied sources of funds for such expandiiures.
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- 2012, the parent company has aliotted BS7 r caphal expanditures

ol f
his will be financad by internaliy-generated

Any mowrﬁ trends, events or unceriainiies that nhave had or that are reasonabiy
sxpected to have & material favorable or unfavorable | : at
ales/revenuas/income from continuing oparations.
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GMA Network’s results of operations depend largely on the ability to ssli airtime for
advertising. The Company's business may be affiecied by the general condition of
the economy of the Phiiippines.

Significant slemenis of income or loss that did not ariss from the Company’s
continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2011, there ware no significant elements of incoms or foss that
dig not arise from the issuer's continuing cpearations.

Causes for Material Changss in the Financial Statements

Balance Sheet (December 31, 2011 vs. December 31, 2010}

¢ Cash and short-term invesimeants dropped Z% io B1.208 million at year-and
which is atiribuied to this year’s result of operation.

¢« Program rights increased by 31% o E730 million mainly due to higher
acguisitions vis-&-vis usage. :

« Net book valug of propariy and eguipmsent up by 13% to B3,253 milion as
additions to fixed assefs went bavond asset retiremenis and depreciation.
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« There were no ouisianding inferesi-bsaring loans as of end-Decamber 2010 and
2011

« Trade payabies and other current liabiiities slighily decreased by 4% o B1,818
miliion vear-on-year.

¢ The 81% drop in incomes {ax ra*rable raguifed from iower provisions for incoms
tax made during the yvear atiuned o er incoms earnad during the v

e« (Obiigation for program rights droppad by 47% o B4D million as olal paymenis
made were higher than acquisiions on account during the ysar.

« Pansion Hability increased by 24% 1o B313 miliion as contribution ic refirement

und in 2011 was lowsr vs. the sams period

oty

rind l2st vear.

will. Ssagonal aspecis thal hao & material effect on the financial condition or resuits of
opserations.

There are no ssasonal aspects that had & material effect on the financial condition or
results of operations,

interin Pariods
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The Company currenily cannot make available the financial information for the first guarter of
ts =

i

2012, The Company however, undertakes to submil its SEC Form 17-Q on or before May 13,
2042 and to make the same available upon reguest during the Company’s Annual Stockholdars’
Meeting

fam 7. Financial Statements

Refer to attached copy.

tem & Changes in and Disaoresmenis with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

The Audit Commitiee reviews the fee arrangemeanis with the exiernal auditor and recommends
tha same to the Board of Direciors. The Companv's Audit Commitias was formed in 2007 and
was formally oraanizad during the iatter portion of ihat vear. The members of the Aucit
Commities are as foltows:

Dr. Jaime C. Lave {Chaiman)

ef Justice Arfemic V. Panganiban

Anns Teresa M. Sozon-Abrogar




Judith D, Vasguez

Laurs J, WesHsall

he Audit Commitiee has recommendad the appointment of Svein Gorras Velavo and CZ‘
emnal suditor of the Com amy. he Svcip Gorres \/ﬁ;avo & Co. has acke a
same gecounting firm is baing recommendad for

0] _()
ol

amsamf@ e e mal auditors singe 18584, Th
b2 schaduled a”‘mu:’I mesting.

The Companv has not had anv disagreemenis on acscouniing and financia! diseio
curreni_exiernal audilors during the two mosi recent fiscal vears or anv subsag:
nariod.

Sycip Gorres Velavo & Co. has no shareholdings in the Company nor anv right._whsther legally
enforceabie or nol o nominale persons or o subscribse for the securities in the Company, The
foregoing is in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accouniants in the
Philippines set bv the Board of Accountancy and aporoved by the Professional Reaulsfion
Commission.

AUDIT AND AUDITED RELATED FEES

ne aggregaie fees billed for sach of the last two vears for professional services renderad by
Sveip Gorres Velavo and Co., amouniad io P8.0 milion both in 2011 and 2040 fthese includad
the Tzes related to financial audit and sarvices for genaral tax compiiancs’,
TAX FEES
There was no spachiic engagement availed by the Companv for purely fax accounting,  The
fotal feas of P8.0 million alreadv lmiuo d basic fax review,
Al OTHER FEES
Othar than the foregoing services. no other product or service was orovided by the extarnal

guditor to the Company.

PART Hi - CONTROL AND COMPERSATION INFORMATION

ffem & Z}a ectors and Executive Officers of the lssuser



Board of Direciors. Officers and Senior Management

Under the Ardicles of incorporation of 'i'*'w Company, tha Board of Uirectors of the Company
comprises nine directors, two of whom mncdependent. The Board is responsibie for the overal!
managemernt and direction of the Campan} and meaeis rﬂauiafiv svary quarter and other timas
as ne;:essa"y o be provided with updates on the business of the Company and consulted on

the Company's maierial decisions. =)

T
i

e directors have g ferm of one vear and are slscie
annually at the usmpams stockhoicers meeting. A director who was elected o fill & vacancy
holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of March 31, 2012, the

Company's Board of Directors and Senior Management are composad of the following

Boarg of Directors Senior Managemen!
Year Year
Diraciors and Senior o . e Position - Position
5 ¢ B : Pogition ! i Sge
Nianagement ationaiify osition was Postion was Age
Assumed Assumed
i | e Chairman/ P A Evorne i _—— R o
Felipe L. Gozon Filiping Direcior 1675 Chief Executive Officer 2000 72
Judith 0. Vazguez Fitipino Director 1988 N/& /A 48
- . s N o cenifohia T
Gilberto R, Duavit, Jr. Filipine | Director 1908 O;eis;yen foniet Operating 2010 48
Anna Tergse M. Gozon- i Uirector/ Assistant ‘ ~
iAbrogar fipino Corporate Secretary 2600 NIA NIA 40
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Filipino Director 20062 N/A N/A 47
Laura J. Wastial Filipino Director 2002 N/A NIA 44
. . s Diractor/ Executive Vice President =
oo = _ o 1 55
Felipe 5. Yalong Filipine Corporate Treasurer 2002 201 5
Roberte ©. Parel Fitipinc | Corporate Secretary 1983 N/A NiA 58
) = _ " Senior Vice President, News
LF F 1A / L ! 4
Marissa L. Flores ilipino NIA N/ &, and Bubiis Afaire 260 47
Artemio V. Panganiban Filipino independent Dirscior 2007 N/~ 2007 75
Jaime C. Laya Filipine | independent Director 2007 N/A 2007 i

The following are descriptions of the business experiences of the Company's directors, officers
and senior managsment

Feline L. Gozon, Filipino, 72 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the
Network's Chief Executive Officer.

Atty Gozon is e Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Beio Gozon Sima Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
Aside from GMA Network, Inc, he is also Chairman and CEC of GMA Marketing and
Productions, Inc. and GMA New Meadia, Inc.; Chairman and President of FLG Management ang
Dﬁvaiapmant Corp.; Chairman of Alta r-'roquctgor‘c Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and
Froductions, Inc., Moni-Aire Reaity and Development Corp. FPhilippine Enfertainment Porial,
inc., and RGMA Network, inc.; Vice Chairman of Malayan Savings and Morigage Bank; Direcior
of, among othar companies, Gozon Development Corp., Jusiitie Realty and Management Corp.,
Antinolo Agri-BLsi;"sess and Land Development Corp., Sagitiarius Condominium Corp. and
Fresident of Lex Realty, inc. He serves as Chairman of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso

Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Maha!l Ko Foundation, inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian
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School Foundslion, Ino.; Chairman and President of Gozon Foundation: and Trusies of
Bantayog ng mge Bayani Foundation,

Atty. Gozon is & recipient of several awards for his achievement in iaw, media, pubiic servics,
and business, mﬁuczma the prestigious Chief Justice 5{38uldi Awzard given by the Chisf Justice

of the Philiopines (1981), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philinpine Bar Association
(1980 & 1883}, CEO of the Ysar given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entreprensur —
Philippines (2004) by Emst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malaban Award for Laga! and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005, and
People of the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s
Power 100 (2003 to 2010). Gozon was aiso seiected as a member of the Advisory Board for the

2010 Asian Teiaevision Awards (ATAS
Atty. Gozon earmed his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines and his
Masier of Laws degres from Yaile University Law School. He was admitied to the rm 1862,

oiacing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberte R, Duavit, Jr., Filiping, 48 vears oid, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of
the Network. Hs has bsen a Director of the Company since 1899 and is currently the Chairman
of the Network’s Executive Com”mhee. Agide from GMA Network, Inc. he is the Chairman of
the Soard of GMA Network ""—”Eims, inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and Vice Chairman of the
Deard of GMA Markeling and Productions, Inc. He also serves as President and CEC of GM’&
Holdings, inc., Scenarios, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, inc., Fiim Experis, Inc.
Dual Management and hvesrments, inc. Me is the Presiaent/COC and Dirscior of Gro p
Management and Davelopment, Inc.; President anﬁ Director of MeadiaMerge Corp., "gzynai
ia.
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Network Markeling and Productions, inc.; Director of RGMA Networlk, Inc., GMA New Medi
inc., Alta Productions Group, inc., Optima Digital, In E , Monte-Aire Realty and Devsi apm
Corp., and Pacific Heighis Sporis and Resort, Inc. ~se aiso serves as the President a
Trustee of GMA Kapuse Foundafion, Inc., President of Guronasvon Foundation, inc. (Termerlx
LEAF) and iz 2 Trustee of the HERO Foundation.

(1
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Mr. Duavit holds 2 Bachsior's Degras in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimensz, Filiping, 47 vears old, has besen z Director of the Company sincs
2002. He is currently the Senior Vice President of GMA Marketing and Productions, inc., and
the Chiel Exscutive Officar of Alte Productions, inc. He is & Diractor of RGRMA Na‘{w e, ne.,
GMA New Media, inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Worldwide, inc., besides alsc being 2 member
of the Board of Directors of Malavan Savings and Morigage Bank, and Unicapital Sscuritiss,
fnc. He is aiso a Director of Nuvoland Philippines, a real-esiate development company. He is g
Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc

He was educated in Los Angeles, Caiifornia whare he obftained z Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He ais i ter’
Dagres in Managemasant from the Aslan inslitute of Managemsnt.

-

Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 55 years old, is the Execulive Vice Prasident and Head of the
Corporate Services Group crF GMA Network, the, He has been & Diracior of the Company sincs



2002, Aside from GMA Network, inc., he also ssrves as Direcior and Corporzie Trsasurer of
GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Network Films, inc.; Director of Unicapital, inc.,
Majalco Finance and Investments, Inc., and GMA Marketing and Productions, inc., Corporais
Treasurer of RGMA Network, inc., Mediamarge Co;k,; Executive Vice P;’ﬂs%:im- t of RGMA
Marketing and Produstions, ing; ano. Comorate Treasurer of the Board of Trusiess of GMA

Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

He obtained & af*hﬂiar of Science degree in Business Adminis razzon WMaior in Accounting from
the Philippine Schoot of Business Administration and compisisd the Managsment Daveiopment

d
i na
Program at the Asian Institute of Managameant. He is a Certified Pubé‘ Accouniant.

Atty. Anne Teresz G, Abrogar, Filiping, 40 v oid,
since 2000, Alty. Anna Terese M. Gozon-Abrogar graduaisd
ang high school at Colegio San Agusiin.  Shs gradusted cum laude, BS Management
Enginsering from Ateneo de Manila University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degres from
the University of the Fhilippines where she graduaied valedictorian, cum é tater
blained har Master of Laws from Harvard

She is a junjor pariner in Belo Gozon Eimz Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associals
Professor in the University of the Philippines, Coliege of Law whera she taught taxation.

She ig currently Programming Consuliant (© the Chairman/CE20 of GMA Network, inc. and the
Fresigent of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwids, Inc. Shs is & irust o
Foundation.

Judith Duavit Yazguez, Filipine, 42 years oid, has been a Director of the Company sincs 1858,
She iz 2 member of the following special commitiess: Audit & Risk Commitize and
Compensation & Remuneration Committes. Moreover, she siis on the boards of the following
GMAT subsidiarizs: RGMA, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., GMA Worldwide, Inc., and GMA
Films,inc. She is 2 member of the Buard of Trustess of the GMA Kapuso Foundalion, inc.

Judith is an acknowledged visionary and industry mover in Philippine information and
Communication Technology space. in 1985, she laid the nation’s first fiber in the Ceniral
Business District of Makati and Gavaiaaﬂc the country's first ICT ready intelligent skysc apﬂr -
the 45-storey Pzak Tower, which boasts the largest neuiral telecommunications tower in the

city.

Judith i3 the founder and chairman of PHCOLO, Inc. - the premie
telecommunications and Internel Ssrvice Provider companies on four piatiormas: fixed-
cabis, wirsizss and satellite.

rinferconns f"és'“e site of
ne fiber,

Hear successfut and visionary efforts in the field of Information and Communications Technology,
have eamed her the moniker "Godmother of the Philippine internel,” & position in
Computerworld's iist of "Philippines’ Most Powerful in ICT" and in 2011 “IT Execuiive of the
Year’ by the Philippine Cyber Press.

Her philanthropic endeavors include Asian institute of Management's irst Professorial Chair for
Entreprensurship and suppori fo the University of the Philippines’ Schoot of Economics, among
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others. International organization membershins include the Asiz Pacific N

Center, Pacific Telecommuni c:auoma Council, it:::: Clinton Giobal | hzatzves ocundation, Young
Presidents'/Worid Worid Presidenis’ Organization and ofher local business o rganizations. She
has served the Management Association of the Philippines as a member of the Board of
Governors, and is s Senior Lecturer for Entreprensurship at tne Collzge of Busi
Administration, University of the Phiiippines

Natwork information

Judith holds & Bacheior of Sciancs
Fhiiinpines and is an alumna of

iH
and Asian institute of Management.

October 2011, she was elected 1o the Board of Direstors of ICANN — the tnternat O rporation
ssignad Names and Numbers- governing body of the Giobal internat. ICANN coordinates
unique identifiers, which permif the Internat o function as & single infrastructure: Domain
> s, IP addresses and Port Assignments, Judiih is the First Asian Femaie slecied to this
august and povxmm interational body. She is member of the foliowing ICANN boarg
commitiees. Audit, Risk, and Structural improvements. Tligible o serve ICANN for 3 terms,
Judith’s first term as a voting board member ends in 2014,
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Laura J. Wesifall, *supzno 44 years oid, h bv & Director of the Company since 2000, She
hsid the foltowing positions in the Company enlor Vice President of Comporate and Strategic
Planning and Senior Vice Pressdenl Tor Finance. in addition, she has served as Chairparson

n

and President of GMA New Meadia. Prior {o 5ormm the Company, she WO’"KS\J for BDO Seidma
— Los Angsiss, an intermnational audit and management consulling firm. She currently holds
various poesitions in the Majent Group of Companiss and serves as aua!u Membear of Cofies
Bean and Tea Lear Philippines, Bronzeoak Clean Ensrgy, Inc., and Malayan Bank, She aiso
serves as Beard Member and Treasurar of the Musso Pambate roundaéion.

She holds @ Masters Degree in Public and Private Management from Yale Univarsity and
Bacheior of Science degree in Accounting from the University of Southern California. She is
Certifiad Public Accountant (CPA) in the State of California

n W

Chief Justice Artemic V. F‘aﬁgambaﬂ, =ilipine, 75 years old, hes been an Independent
Girscior of the Company since 2007. in 1895, he was named & Justice of the Supreme Court
and in 2005, he was apsosmed Chief Justice of the Philippines — a position he heid uniil
Dacember 2008. At present, he is also an independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Meiro Pacific Investments Corp., Manila Eiectric Company,
Rebinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, inc., f\fmitm Facific Tof‘way Com., Patron Corporation,
Eank of the Philipping islands, Asian Terminals, and Jolibee Foods Corporation. He is also &
Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, independent Adviser of Phiiippine Long Distance
Telephoneg Co., Chairman, Board of Advisers of Nezrabank Faungation, Chairman of the Boarg
of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, inc., and Msmber, Adv‘sef‘y Soard of the Warld Bank
and of the Asian instituiz of Managament Governance Council. He also ie 2 column writar of
The Philippine Daily Inguirer.

Jpon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plague of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme Court as the "Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Cantury;” and an Award of
Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, fawver, civic
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ieader, Catholic lay worker, business enfreprenaur and youth lsader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from varicus governments, civic clubs. consumer agsociations, bar
groups, religious movemenis and other non-government organizations, both local and
international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, "With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and "Most Qutstanding Studen!” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar sxaminations. He is likawiza
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degreas from various universities.

Dr. Jaime C. Lava, Filipino, 73 years old, has been an indapandent Director of GMA MNetwark,
inc. since 2007, He 15 the Chairman of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank}, Director of
Fhilippine Ratings Services Corporation, Philippine AXA Life Insurance Company, inc., Avala
~and, inc., and Manile Polo Club, inc. Me also serves as Chairman of Don Norberio Ty
Foundation, inc.; Trustee of De la Salile University — Tafl, 8t Paul University-Quszon City,
Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Mussum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum and
Fundacion Santiage, inc.

He was Minister of Budgst, 1875-1981, Minister of Education, Culture and Sportg, 1984-85;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governar, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984:
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. Hs was faculty member of
the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the Collsge of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. tn 1886, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Lid. {(Ceriified Pubiic
Accountants and Management Consuliants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMC
internationall he served as the firm's Chairman  until his  retirement in 2004
He earnsd his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 1857; M.S. in indusirial
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1961; Ph.D. in Financial Managemsnt, Stanfor
University, 1 s a Certified Public Accountant.

Aity. Roberte O. Paret,

Company since 1983, He is & Pariner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion &
Luciia. His practice arsas includs labor relations, natural resources and inieliectual property. He
is & Director of Time-Life International Philippines, Capitalex Holdings Philippines, Ipilan Nicke!
Corporation, Nickel Laterite Resources, Inc., Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nicke!
Corporation, Ulugan Resources Holdings, inc., Nickeline Resources Holdings, Inc., THMM
Management inc., Skyway O and M Corporaiion, and Assetvaiues Holding Company, inc.;
Director and Corporate Treasurer of Selenga Mining Corporation; Corporate Secretary of Alta
Productions Group, inc., Scenarios, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc., GMA
Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Hinoba Holdings (Philippines), inc. and Hinoba-an & Sipalay Holdings,

inc.

Filipino, 58 ysars old, has been the Corporate Secretary of the

He graduated from the University of the Phiiippines with a Bachelor of Arts degras in Philosophy
and a Bachelor of Laws degres. He was admitied to the Philippine Bar in 1081, Afty. Parel
further pursued legal studies through short programs at the Center of Amsrican and
international Law and the Southwesiern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attendad a
raining program on Industrial Property Rights held by the Japan institute of invention and
Innovation and the Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokvo, Japan.
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2004, She joined the Com

current postion.

The Rotary Club of Manila recognized heras 7
2004, she was awarded the presiigious TOYHh
lMianagement

The News and Public Affairs group mdm
infarnational awards, notably the New York Fe

Awards, Asian TV Awards. GMA News and
broadcast network which has won highiy—covet
2010) — wicely considered as broadeasting and

Besides overseeing news and public affairs programs in GMA Channsl 7, it is also under
Flores’ lsadership that GMA News Oniine was put up in 2007, and GMA News TV (i
Network’'s news and public affairs channel on free T

She samed
Journalism.

Bachelor's degree

Significant Emploves

Although the Company anc iis key subsidiaries
individual and colisclive confribuiions  of

il

parlicular empiovas.

Familv Relgtionships

Judith D, Vazguez is the sister of Gilberfo R

Laura J. Westfall are SIbEmgs Anna Teresa i\fl UG’@OE}-AS"GQEF is the daughier
Felipe L. Gozon's sister, Caroiina L. Gozan-dimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo

&ozon.

Jimenaz and Laurs J. WesHall.

involvament in Certain Legal Procsedings

To the best of the Company’s knowladge, during the
been no occurrence of any of the foiowma avenis which are maaenai o an evaluation
ability or integrity of any direcior, person nominated to beco

confrof person.of the Company:

Fiores, Filipino, 48 years olid, is the Senior Vice President fo
inany in 1887 as
documentaries and speacial reports and held the positions of Assistant Vi
Affaire, Vice President for Production — News and Public Affairs befo

al the University of the Philippines, where

their
personnel, the Company and its key subsidiaries are not dependent on the services
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affairs
Public
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e Any filing of an insolvency or bankrupicy pefition by or against any business
person was a general partner or execuiive officer, either at the time of the
within two years prior 1o that time:

of which such
insclvency or

= Any conviclion by final judgment in & criminal procseding, domestic or forsign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic
viclations and other minor offenses;

= Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction,
domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanentty or temperarily enjoining, barring
suspending, or otherwise iimiling involvement in any ityps of business, securiiiss
commedities, or banking activitieg; and,

Any final and exscutory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction {in a civil action), the SEC, or comparabie foreign body, or g domestic
or foreign exchange or eisctronic marketplace or seli-raguiatory organization, for violation of
a securities or commodites iaw.

Rasignation of Diractors

No director has resigned or declined ¢ siand for re-slec !C}u fo the Board of Directors s
date of the last annual mesaling of the Company becauss of a disagresment with the Company
on matiers refating to the Company’s operations, policies ano‘, practices.

ftem 10. Executive Compensation

1

(2} CEQ and Top 6 Compensated Execuiive Officers:

)

xacuiive officers:

(D

The following are the Company’s highest compensatad

Mame and Fosition

Felipe L. Gozon Chairman and CEC
Gilberic R, Duavit, President and COO
Jr
Felipe 8. Yalong Executive Vice President. Comporate Services Group
Warissa L. Flores Senior Vice President, News and Public Affairs
" Wilma V. Senior Vice President, Entertainment TV
Galvante
: Migus! C. Senior Vice President, Radio Operations
Enriguez
Anmnual 13th Month Other i
. - o Totat
Year sataries & Bonuses Compensat
fon {in .
. .. - {in
{in {in

" Ms. Galvante refired from the Company on February 24, 2012
? Mir. Enriquez retired from the Company on September 28, 2011
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Thousands!  Thousands} thousands  Thousands)

2008 76.616.1 80,7113 i 57,327.4
_ 2010 TOITZ.2 70.854.1 & 180,126.4
& highest compensated ’
officers 2011 80,5857 53,6424 g 1342281
2017
{estimats) 83.003.3 58,2817 138.254.8
2008 112,862.3 127.830.¢ g 240,583.2
2010 118,183.7 147,828.8 4 2358825
Aggregate compensation - = = :
e 20113 147.812. 1, 338.5 ; 201,851.0
paid to al officers and 76125 84,338 £ 201,851.0
directors as 2 group 2017
{estimate) 1223170 87, 712.C 210.028.0

{2} Direciors and other Sxecutive Oificers

gction 8 of Aricle 1V of the Company's By-Laws provides that as compensation of the

directors, the Members of the Board shall receive and aliocate vearly an amount of not

mare than two and g hall percent (2.5%) of tha net income after income tax of the

corporation during the preceding year. Of the said 2.5%, one percent (1%) shall be

allocated o the members of the Board of Directors to be distribuied share and shars
o)

iy

alike, The remaining one and z half percent (1.5%) shall be aliocaiad {o the mambers o

A

the Executive Commitice 10 be distribuied shars and shars alike.

Emploves Stock Ownership Plan ("ESGFT)

Uitive

9]

The Company has no outstanding oplions or warrants held by its CEC, the namead axa
officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

tiem: 11, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
1,

The security ownarship of certain record and beneficial ownears of mors than 5% as of March 3
2012 are as foliows:

Titie Wame and Address of Racord / Mo. of shares  Percent
Chizenshig
Of class Beneficial Owner Beneficial heid Owned

50



1Common GMA Foldings, Inc.
Unit 30 Tower One, Gne McKiniey Piace, Filipino PCD Nominee B861,588.300  2563%
Bonifacio Global City Corporation
Comman Group Management & Development Inc. * The Record
Owner is the
No. 5 Wiison St., San Juan, Metro Maniiz  Filipino Beneficizgt 782,873,388 23.50%
Owner
Common  FLG Management & Development
Corporation”
Unit 2. 2/7, Building 2, 8" Avenue, The Recor: 883,828,027 18.75%
Bonifacic Globa! City, Taguig, Metro Cremeris ne
Manita Beneaficial
Ownear !
Common  M.A. Jimenez Enferpriseas, Inc. The Record
Owner i3 the
! 2fF Sagittarius Condominium, M. V. Delz Fikping Beneficial 453,882,085 13.50%
Costa 5t, Salcedo Village, Makati Ciy® Crwner
Common  Television intemational Corporation’” The Record
Owmer is the
2/F Sagittarius Condominium, H. V. Dela Filipino Beneficial 334.378.037 0.95%
Costa 3t., Saicedo Village, Makat City Owner
Totai Common Shares
3,163,504 848
92.34%
Prejerred  Group Management & Development inc. The Record
Cwner is the
No. 5 Wilson 8t San Juan, Metro Manila Filipinc Beneficial 2,525 805,308 35.01%
Owner

® The Board of Direciors of GMA Holdings, inc. has the powsr (o decide how the shares ownsd in the Company are to be voied and
has authorized Felipe L. Gozon and/or Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. to votg on the company's shares in GMA Network, inc.

“ The Board of Directors of Group Management & Development, inc. has avthorized Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. o vots on the common

and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, inc.

% The Board of Direciors of FLG Management & Development Corporation has authorized Feiipe L. Gozon to voie on the common
and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, inc.

® The Board of Directors of MLA. Jimenez Enterprises, inc. has authorized Joal Marcelo G, Jimenez and/or Laura J. Westfall 1o vote
on the common and preferred sharas of the company in GMA Natwork, Inc.

7 The Boarg of Directors of Television International Corporation has authorized Jos! Marcelo G. Jimensz andfor Laura J. Westfall to
vote on the common and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, inc.

I3
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Preferrad  FLG Managemeni & Development The Record

Caorporation Owner is the
Unit 2, 2/7, Building 2. 8" Avenue, Filipino Beneficial 2,187,888 644 28.00%
Bonifacio Giobal City, Taguig, Metro Owmner
Manita
Preferred  M.A. Jimensz Enterprises, inc. The Record
Owner is the
2 Sagitiarius Cc;m ominium, M.V, De s Filipino Beneficial 1.508.878.82¢ 20.92%
Costa 5t, Salcedo Village, Makati Ciy Crwher
Preferrad  Television intemational Corporation The Record
Qwner is the
2/F Sagittarius Condominium, K. V., Deia Fiiiping Reneficial 1,111.861,690  14.82%
Costa 5L, Sakcedo Viliage, Nakatf City Owner

Total Preferred Shares

7,425,344 ,388

98.04%

;

GMA Hoidings, Inc. is 99% owned by Gilberto =. Duavit, Jr., Felipe L. Gozon and Josl Marcsic
G. Jimenez. The shares of the Company ownsd by GMA Holdings, inc. are coversd by
Fhilippine Deposit Receipts ("PDR”} which give the holder the right to delivery or sale of the
underlying share. The PDRs are jisted with the Philippine Stock Exchangs.

Group Management and Development, Inc.,, FLEG Management and Development Corporation,
M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. and Television international Corporation are significant
sharsholders of the Company.

=y

scurity Ownersiip of Management as of March 31, 2012

As of March 31, 2012, the Company's direciors and senior officers owned an aggregats of
7.888.356 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 0.23% of the Company's issusd and
outstanding common capital stock and 27,294 preferred shares eguivalent o 0.00% of the
Company's issuad and oulstanding prererrﬂa capital stock.

! i " Record/ | He.of Mo.of .
| ! ! Percent of N i Parcent of |
! ! P o Bengficial | Common . Freferred | . ;
Stockholder Hame | Position | Citizenship i | shares Gommon Shares ‘ Floermed |
i i ‘ " Shares e Shares |
I ; {R/B} } Heid Heid | |
; i i i | i
| I |

(9
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Anna-Teresa M. Director/Assistant — -, 1.058.003 0,035 ; o
Guzon-Abrogar Corporais Secratary o e e € 0.00%
. ) Director/Pres. and -
Gilberto R. Duavit Jr. cos Filipino B 4£.007.008 0.12% iz 0.00%
L Divector/Chairman S I , o
Fetipe L. Gozon and CEO Fiipino RIB 3.187 C.00% 26,880 0.00%
Jeel Marcelo & | - _ . i
Simenes | Drector Fiiping RiB 325,603 0.01% & 0.00%
7 : !
Jugdith D. Vazguez Director Fiitning R/B 586,158 0.02% 378 0.00%
|
Laurs J. Westall . Director Fiitptno R/E 2 0.00% & 0.60%
Felipe S, Yalon Disclonmxeculive Filipine RIB 1025.002 | 0.03% 61 Goou
S o, L 3 [RVFavN 2 NG SR B 5}
P 4 Vics-President ; Ao tlie . ’
Jaime C. Laya Independent Director Filiping R/B 294.000 0.01% G 0.00%
Ariemio V. Panganiban indepanaent Director Filipime RiE 588.00 0.02% O 0.00%
Sentor Vice
Marissa L. Fiores Presiden: — News Fiiipino R i nong none nong | nong
and Public Affairs

Woling Trust Hoiders of £% or mors

The Company is unaware of any persons holding more than 5% of shares undar a voting trust
or simiiar agreemeant.

Changes in coniol

There are no existing provisions in the Arficles of incorporation or the By-Laws of the Company
which will dslay, defer or in any manner prevent a change in contro! of the Company. There
have besn no arrangements which have resuliad in 2 change in control of the Company during
the period coverad by this report,

Lt
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ltem 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Advances to Affiliates

The Company has, from fime to time, made advances o ceriain of its affiiiates. The advances
are non-intarest bearing.

As of Decamber 31, 2011, Alta Tierra Resourcas, inc. had advances owing to the Company in

the amount of 24 million. Alte Tierra Resources, Inc. is a real estale holding company. Alia

Tierrs’s oufstanding shares are 8.2% owned by Majent Management and Davelopmeni
Corporation, and 81.8% by Group Management and Developmeant, inc.

Asg of December 31, 2008, the Company made advances to RGMA Network, ins. in the amount
of 82253 million for RGMA's working capital reguirements. On February 21, 2008, the
Company's Board of Dirgciors approvad the conversion of a portion of such advancas in the
amount of 2168 million into 7,205,882 shares of RGMA with a par vaiue of 21.00 per sharg,
represeniing approximately 48% of the ouistanding capital stock of RGMA. The SEC approved
the conversion of the advances into equily on February 6, 2007, As of the dale heraof, RGMAs
outstanding shares are 48% owned by the Company, 17.8% ownad by Rache
owned by the Jimenez family through Teievision intarnationa!l Corporation and
the Gozon family through LG Management and Development Corporation.

e

advances for working capital 2s of December 31, 2010 and 2011,

-

Espiritu, 17.8%
5.2% ownead by
There were no

!
“+
3

The Company alsc made advances o Mont-Aire in the amount of B121.4 million as of
December 31, 2004, OF such advances, the Company converted the amount of F38.3 mitlion
into B38.3 miilion worth of common shares of Mont-Alre. Simuliansously, the othar sharshoiders
of Mont-Aire, namely, Group Management and Deveiopment, inc., Television international
Corporation and FLG Management and Development Corporation converied advances in the
aggregate amount of B23.5 million made by them o Mont-Alre info B23.5 million worth of
common shares of Moni-Aire. The SEC approved the conversion of the advances info equity on
February 17, 2008, The Company owne 48.0% of Mont-Aire, with the remaining 51.0% being
cwned by the Duavit familty, Gozon family and Jimenez family. Moni-Aire iz g real estate holding
company whoss principal property is 2 5.3 hectare propsrty locaied in Tagaviay, Cavite. Such
oroperty is not used In the broadeasting business of the Company. As of December 31, 2010
and 2011, Moni-Aire has had advances owing to the Company in the amount of 284 5 miliion.
Pleage see Note 18 of the Company's Financial Siatements,

Agreements with RGMA Nefwork, inc. ("RGMA”)

The Company has an exisiing agresment with RGMA for the lsfier o provide general
management, programming and research, evenis management, on-air moniforing of
commercial placements, certificatas of performance, billing and coliection functions, and local
sales service for the 25 radio stations of the Company. RGMA s paid management and
marketing feas basad on billed sales. Please see Noie 18 of the Company's Financial

taterments.



Agreements with GMA Markefing and Productions, Inc. (“GMA Marketing”)

The Company entered into & markeling agreement with its wholly-owned subsidiary, GMA
Marketing wherein GMA Marketing agreed to sell ielevision advar’[iss’ng‘ spots and airime in
exchange for which GMA Marketing will be eniitied ic & marksting fee and commission. Pleass
see Note 18 of the Company’s Financial Statements.

The Law Firm of Beio Gozon Eimea Paret Asuncion & Lusils

The Company and the Law Firm of Beio Gozon Eims Parel !&swulor‘ & Lucha (“5@39»%”)
egntered info a retaine ag sment in 1983 uncer which BGEPAL was engaged by the Company
as Iis exiernal counsel. As such extermnal counssl, the Law Firm of Belc Gozon Eims Parel
Asuncion & Lucha Lidlidle > ali cases and legal matters refered to it by the Company. Other than
Falipe L. Gozon, whe is part of the Gozon Family, one of the principal shareholders of tha
Company, and director of the Company since 1875, some of the lawvers of Beio Gozon Eime
Parel Asuncion & Lucila eventually assumed certain pesitions and functions in the Company
gither in their individual capacilies or as part oi the functions of tns Law Firm of Belo Gozon
Eima Parel Asuncion & Lucila as the Company’s extamal counsel. Pisase see Note 19 of the
Company's Financial Statemenis.

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Yem {3, Corporate Governance

GMA Network, inc. is commified to the principies of good governance and recognizes thsir
imporiance in safeguarding shareholders’ inleresis and in enhancing sharsholder vaius, The
Company has adopled a Manual on Corporate Governance fo insfitutionalize the Company's
adherence ic these principles. This Manual clearly sets out the pmu:pres of good marugemu £
and defines the specliic responsibiliies of the E‘soam the Board Commitiees, and managament
within the over-all governance framework.

EE

The Board of Direciors, ied by the Chairman, Atlly. Felipe L. Gozon, S"iE‘Oﬂgiy advooat
accountability, transparency and integrity in all aspecis of the business and commiis themsaiv
to the best praciices of govemance in the pursuil of the company’s mission and vision.

To ensure adherence {0 corporate govemnance, the Board designated & Compiiance Officer who

is also the Vice Prasidant for Internal Audit, Atty. Eduardo F. Santos. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and reguirements of
good corporate governance

 Board of Directors
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Compiiance with the principles of good governance starts with the Company's Board of
Direciors. The Board is responsibie for oversight of the business, dstermination of the
company’s long- term strategy and abjectives, and management of the company's risks by
ensuring the company’s iniernal controls and procedures. The Board of Direciors ensures z
high standarg of governancs, and promotes and proiecis the interesis of the Company, its
stockholders and other stakeholders,

!

he Board consisis of ning cirectors, two of whom are independent direciors. Al nine members
ft he Board have the expertise, professional experience anc background that aim w a tharough
ssion and deliberation of issues and matters affecting the Company.

The two indspendent direciors — former Chief Justice Arfemio V. Panganiban and Dr. Jaim
Lava — have no relafionship with the Company, which would intarfare with the exercis
ingependent iudgment in carrving our the responsibiiitias of & direcior.

o
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The Board comprises the foliowing members

Name Position

Felins L. Gozon Chairman and CEQ
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Fresident and CO0O
Anng Teresa G. Abrogar Uirector

Joel Marcelo G, Jimanez Diracior

Judith D, Vazguez Dirsctor

Laurs J. Wastsll Diractor

Feline S, Yaiong Chrector

Artemic V. Panganilban independent Diractor
Jaime C, Lava | indepencent Dirsctor

Board Performance

Directors attend regular meeiings of the Board, which are held every guarter and other timas as
necessary, and the Annual Sicckhoiders’ Mesating (ASM). In ifs mastings, the Board reviews tha
nerformance of the Company and its subsidiaries, approves plans, budgets and financial
statements, sels policies and guidelines for manzgameni, and discusses matters requ'*’ma‘
Board attention and approval. The Board met five {5) timas in 2011, The atiendancs of the
individual directors at these meetings is duly recorded as follows:

Director's Kame Reguiar and Special Meetings
FPresent Absent
Felipe L. Gozon 5 0

L
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Gilberic K. Duavit,.Jr. 5 0

Joet Marcelc G. Jimensz 5 G
Felipe 8. Yalong 5 0
Anna Teresa M, Gozon- Abrogar g o
Judith D, Vazouez 5 ¢
Laura J. Westiall 5 0
Artemio V, Panganiban 5 o
Jaime C. Lava 5 o

All dirsctors have individually complied with the SEC's minimum atiendance reguiremant of
50%.

The Chairman, Faiipe L. Gozon, presiced over all the Board mestings jor the vear. He likewise
presided over the Annual Stocknolders’ Meeting, with all the members of the Board In

Board Remuneration

The amended by-laws of the Company provides that the Board of Direciors shall be entilied 1o

an amount of not more than two anad a half percent (2.5%) of the nel income after incoms 18X 0

the corporation during the preceding vear and per disms for every board meeting attendsc. O

the said 2.5%, ons parcent {1%) shall be distributed squally among the members of the Boarg
“

d
of Directors, while the ramaining one and a half percent (1.5%) shall be distribuied equally
among the members of the Exacutive Commitiee.

—

oo

Committees and Meetings of the Board of Directors

Four commitiees were esiablished to ald in complying with the principies of good governance
and address issues requiring the Board's atiention:

Executive Commities

The Executive Committee (Excom) consists of three members which includes the Chairman of
the Board and CEQ Feiipe L. Gozon, President and COO Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Director
Joel G. Jimensz. Mr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. serves as Chairman of the Commiites, it acls on
matiers delegaied io it by the Board of Directors. The Excom acts by a majority vote and in
accordance with the authority granted by the Board. All actions of the Excom are reported 16 the
Board for ratification at the mesting immediately following such action. '



Nomination Commitise

The Momination Commities is chaired by Felipe L. Gozon and compoesed of four mambers that
include an independent director in the parson of former Chiel Justice Artemic V. Panganiban as
Vice Chairman, Gilberio R, Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcslo G. Jimensz, as members. The mission
of the Nomination Commities is fo provide the shareholders with an independent and objecsiive
avaluztion and assurance that the membership of the Board of Directors s competent and wil
foster the long-term suceass of the Corporation and secure iis competitiveness. Tha Nomination
Commitiee assists the Board of Directars in its responsibility in ensuring that all nominses to the
Board of Directors are competent and gualified o be nominated as Director based on internal
guidelines. This is to ensure that (a) there is & proper mix of competent directors that woulc
continuously improve shareholder's value; and, {b) Directors will ensure a high standard of bes?
praciicss for the Company and its stakeholders. '

Compensation and Remuneration Commitiees

The Compensation and Remuneration Commities consists of Felipe L. Gozon who serves as
Chairman, Former Chisf Justice Artemio V. Panganiban as Vice Chairman, Judith D. Vazqusz
and Laure J. Westfall, membars. The Commities recommends a formal and transparsni
framework of remunaration and evalustion for the members of the Board of Direciors ang kay
executives 10 enable them 1o run the Company successiully.

Auddit Committes

The Audit Sommittee is currently composed of five members with two independent directors as
members. Dr. Jaime C. Laya, an independent director serves as Chairman and former Chief
Justice Artemic V. Panganiban, also an independent direcior, serves as Vice Chairman. Anna
Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar, Judith R. Duavit-Vazquez and Ms. Laura J. Westiall are members of
the Commitiee. The Audit Commitiee assists the Board in its fiduciary responsibiiies by
providing an independent and objective assurance to the Company's management ang
stakeholdars in the continuous improvement of risk management systems, business operations
and propsr safeguarding and use of the Corporation’s resources and assefs. The Audit
Commities provides a general svaluation and gives assistance in the over-all improvement of
ihe risk management, control, and governance process of the Corporation as designsd by
Management and provides assurancs that these are properly funclioning.

The Commitiee conducts ienders for independent audit services, reviews audit fees, ang
recommends the appointmant and fees of the independent auditors to the Board. The Board, in
turn, submits the appointment of the indspendent auditors for approval of the sharehoiders at

the ASM.

The Audit Committee also approves the work plan of the Company’s Internal Audit Group, as
wall as the overall scope and work plan of the independent auditors.



The Audit Commiltes hald five (8) mestings iIn 2011 wherain the Committes "eviﬂwad ang
approved, among others, the Company’s 2010 Consoiidated Audited Financ'ial Statemanis as
preparad by the exiernal audiiors,

Managemaent
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o
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The Chairman of the Board an Executive Officer is Felipe L. Gozon, while Gilberio B
Dyavit, Jr. holds the position of President and Chief Operating Officer.

The CEQ is accountabie to the Board for the development and recommeand ]
anc the exscution of siratagic directions st O\' the Board, while the COC iz esp@.ﬂ_s” e for t
daymto day management of the Company and the implemeniation of the dirsctives provided by
the CEC and the r:;soards policies and decisions. Both the CEQ and f‘Ou are guidsed by the
Company’s Mission, Vision and Co,re Valuses.

Management provides the Board with complete and accurate information on the operations and

affairs of the Company regularly.

Empioyes Relations

oofécies, guidelines for the

zmplovess are provided an employes handbook which contains the
The Handbook aiso detalls the

duties and responsibilities of an emploves of GMA Network, Inc.
benefits and privileges accruing to all reguiar employess,

The News and Public Affairs Efhics Manual, on the other hand, seis the standards and ruiss on
how News and Public Affairs personneal should conduct thermsselves at work.

Through an internal newsistier and the intransat facliliated by the Corporate Affzirs Division of
the Corporate Communications Depariment, employees are upcaizad on matserial developments
within the organization.

The Company also provides iraining programs and seminars for caresr advancsmeni and
deveiopment, The Company has aiso initiaied aclivilies centered on the safely, health and
welfare of ils employses.

Eisk Management

The GMA Network’'s Board of Direciors and management are mindful of the risks and
uncertainties inherent in the business. In the formulaiion of corporate strategy and business
gecision-making, poltential risks are always taken into account. Necessary sieps are iaken ©
minimize, i not eliminaie, such risks.

The Audit Committes assists the Beard in the oversight of the company’'s risk managemant,
ensures that it has the proper conirols in place, identifies and evaluaies significant risk
exposures and contributes to the improvement of risk management and conirol systems.

w
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Both radio and felevision broadcasting are highly competitive businesses. GMA stafions
compeie for listenarsiviewars and advertising revenues within their respactive maﬁf te diractly
with cther radio and/or telavision siations, as well as with other media such as cabie izievision
andfor cable radio, newspapers, magazines, the internel, billboard advertising, amang others,
Audience ratings and market shares ars subject fo change, and any change in & parficular
market could have g malerial adverse effect on the revenue of our siations located in that
market

s

Considering the potential impact of various risks fo the company’s ability o deliver gusiity
content across multipie platiorms, the Company has established a Programming C:}mmtw that
deliberates weﬂkiy on the programming issues and stratagies of the natwork. Regular monthly
masatings of the Cmmpaw" officers arz also held to discuss pnlans, operational issues and
strategies, implementation of projects and recommendations for improvemenis.

The Company's financial results are dependent primarily on iis ability 1o generate adve "’“'r
revenue through rates charged to advertisers. The advertising rates a station is able {c charge |
affacied by many factors, including the rafings of its programs and the general strength of th
incal ang national economiss. Generally, adverlising declines during periods of economic
recession or downfurns in the sconomy. As a resull, the Company's revenue is liksly o be
adversely affectad during such psriods.

(l) [T

Management, being accountabie to the Board, also prepares financial statements In & timel
mannar in accordance with generaliy accepted accounting standards in the Philippine .
Management's statement of raapmcsbl ity with regards ic the Company's financial statemenig is
inciuded in this annual report

The consoiidatad financial statements of GMA Network and its subsidiaries have besn preparsd
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards which are aligned with international
Financial Reporting Standards. The financial statements are audited by exiernal auditors and
reviewed by the Audit Commitiee (with the support of the Internal Audit Group) to ensure tha
they fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position and results of the Company’s
operations befors these are presented {o the Board of Directors for approval.

Fy

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment o
the Company's financial position, performance and prospects sach fime it makes avaiiabie i
quarterly and annual financial staiements {o the pubiic.

0

Prompt Disclosures and Timely Reporting

GMA Network, Inc. adheres to g high level of corporate disclosure and transparency regarding
the company’s financial condition and state of corporate governance on & reguiar basis
Through the Investor Relations and Compliance Division (IRCD), shareholders are providsd
disclosures, announcements and periodic reports filed with the Securities and Dxchangs
Commission (SEC) and the Philippine Stock Exchange. These are also avallable on ling through
the Company's Investor Relations website www, gmangtwork com/corporaie/r,

The Company. through the investor Relations and Compliance Division, holds regular Analysts’
and investors' briefings that are atiended by the Companygs Chief Exscutive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer, Chief Finance Officer as well as other high ranking officers. Meetings with

&0



Fund Managers, Investment, Financial ana research Analysts are likewise handled by the
IRCD.

Consolidated audited financial statements are submitied {o the SkC on or before the prescribed
period and distributed to the sharsholders prior to the ASM.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

pse
oy

ltem 14. Exhibiis and Reporis on 3EC Form

LY

L
{a) Exhibits
Exhikit 1 - Financia! Siatemenis

(b} Reports on SEC Form 17-C

e Raesults of Board Meeting — ASM on May 18, Record Dale on April 20 and approval {9
convert 34,420 preferred shares inic 6,884 common sharas
« Press Releass, GMA New Media, Manile Jockey ink deal ic boost horse racing industry

« Current performance, plans and cullook for 2011 — interview with FLG during the GMA

hNews TV trade launch

Press Release: GMA Nets PhP 2.87 Biliion on PhP 14,288 Billion Gross Flevanues in
2010

s Presentation Materials for the 2010 Full Year Brisfing

e Results of Board Meeting: Declargtion of Cash Dividends and approval of 2010 FS

« Press Relezse: GMA Network pcszs 18% grow‘m in reguiar advertising and subscrintion
unts in Q1 2011 and 2071 Nat incomes {argst

¢« Presaniation Materiais used during the Analyst’s Briefing
e CEQ's 2010 Report during the ASM (May 18, 2011}

e GMA Results of ASM anc Crganizational Boarc Mesling

« Cigrification of News Article (GMA raises 2011 guidance)

rification of news arficle — GMAY dunnad for PhP 823 million in

ia
denied

e Fiepéytoth SEC
business {axes, rap

¢« GMA Network challengss the Querzon City Treasursr’s tax assessment;, Broadcast glant
not liahie to pay taxes S



Results of operations for 1H 2011

Presentation Materials used during the 2Q Brisfing

Clarification of the naws article “NTC fines GMA on iapsed permits’

Subscription Agreement betwesn GWMA New Media and 1P E- Game Ventures inc
Material information discussed during the ambush interview with Atty. Gozon

3" Quarter Performance and net income target for 2011

Matarials used during the 3Q financial briefing

Appoiniment of Officer (Philip Yalong as VP

S

information discussed during interview with officer
Addendum to previous disclosure re: Information discussed during interview with officer

Clarification of reports — offer 1o buy GMA7

[wa]
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reguirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation

Code, this report is signed ? EE?; é;é ﬁne lssuer by the undersigned, thereunio duly
authorized, in the City of R 1 2012

By:

,ﬁf{ <o Mﬂ/’?/@w

FELIPE L. GOZON RomAiﬁo P. MASTRILI
Principal Executive Officer Comptrolier /Principal Accounting Officer

Principal Operatip § Officer

ROBERTO G. PAREL
Corporate Secretary

APR 04 2012
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this _ day of ‘ 2012 affiants
exhibiting fo me their Passport Numbers, as foliows:
Names Passport/S885 No. [ate of Issue Place of issue

Felipe L. Gozon XX17461888 August 4, 2008 DFA, Manila
Gilperto R. Duavit, Jr. EAQQ30704 Febh. 15, 2010 DFA, Maniia
Felipe 8. Yalong XX1282801 May 27, 2008 DFA, Manila
Renaldo P, Mastili EADG20825 January 8, 2010 DFA, Manila

Roberic Q. Pargl 03-663775%-0

Doc. No. ffi*“

Page No. 26
Book No. 4
Series of 2012
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 28, 2012

Securities and Exchangs Commission
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Mandaluyong, Metro Maniia

The management of GMA Network, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, including the additional
componants attachad therein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.  This
responsibifity includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and falr
presentation of the financiatl staterments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.

Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders has examined
the financial staterments of the Company in accordance with Philiopine Standards on Auditing, and in
ts report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such examination.

F
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FEUIPE L. GOZON LEERTO’

Chairman of the Board Prezas dent :
Chief Executive Officer Chief C}perat rsg Officer

PR
ADR 112 ang
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z*% >

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this Cday of .
sffiants exhibited to me their (Felipe L. Gozon) TIN 106-174-605, (Gilberto R Duavit, Jr.} “fiN 188-
147-748 and (Felipe 8. Yalong) TIN 102-874-052.
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Page No. _%2
Book No. _77
Series of 2012
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SyCip Gorras Velayo & Co.
B780 Avala Avenie

1226 Makati City
Philippines

Phone' (532) 881 0307
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
GMA Network, Inc.

GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner EDSA

Quezon City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GMA Network, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31,
2011 and 2010, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Conselidated Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consclidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financia! Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management defermines is necessary (o enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

Audirors’ Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the anditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also inciudes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the conselidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinien.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GMA Network, Inc. and its subsidiaries as at December 31,2011 and 2010, and
their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2011 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO,

Ramon D. Dizon

Pariner

CPA Certificate No, 46047

SEC Accreditation No. 0077-AR-2 (Group A),
February 4, 2010, valid until February 3, 2013

Tax Identification No. 102-085-577

BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-17-2009,
June 1, 2009, valid until May 31, 2012

PTR No. 3174582, January 2, 2012, Makati City

March 28, 2012




GNMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

201

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 29 and 30)

21 ,207,976,12\3“

L3 10 R
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™I Rty ey L)
Trade and other receivables (Notes 7, 19, 29 and 30) 4,191,137,923 5,531,971,950
Program and other rights (Note §8) 729,998,151 558,072,593
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 9) 695,044,559 605,301,733
Asset classified as held for sale (Note 11) 26,432,472 -
Total Current Assets 6,850,585,228 7,927,698,116
Noncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 10, 29 and 30) 103,796,848 104,966,848
Investments and advances (Notes 11 and 19) 320,500,720 341,513,803

Property and equipment at cost (Note 12)
Land at revalued amounts (Note 13)

3,252,582,543
1,409,585,706

2,872,001,158
1,403,122,465

Investment properties (Note 143 68,029,711 63,343,706
Deferred tax assets (Note 27) 240,349,803 215,769,845
Other noncurrent assets (Note 15) 134,406,627 113,380,042

Total Noncurrent Assets

5,531,251,958

5,114,497 867

212,381,837,186

£13,042,195,983

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current Habilities
{(Notes 16, 19, 29 and 30)

P1,755,563,632

P1,819.281,172

Income fax payable 93,651,733 241,184,421

Obligations for program and other rights (Notes 17, 29 and 30) 39,843,815 75,594,128

Dividends payable (Notes 29 and 30) 4,942,280 5,493,035
Total Current Liabilities 1,894,001,460 2,141,552,756

MNoncurrent Liabilities

Pension liability (Note 25) 312,970,846 252,641,013

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 27) 347,426,327 349,369,736
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 660,397,173 602,010,749

Total Liabilities

2,554,398,633

2,743,563,503

Eguity
Capital stock (Note 18)
Additional paid-in capital {Note 18)

4,864,692,000
1,659,035,156

4,864,692,000
1,659,035,196

Revaluation increment in land - net of tax (Note 13) 744,158,022 744,158,022
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 10) 2,782,687 1,995,687
Retained carnings (Note 18) 2.591,073,835 3,063,024,760
Treasury stock (Notes 18 and 28} (28,483,171) (28,483,171
Underlying shares of the acquired Philippine Deposit
Receipts (Notes 18 and 28) (5,790,016) (5,790,016)
Total Equity 9,827,438,533 10,298,632,478
#12,381,837,186 B13,042,195983

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2011

2010

2009

NET REVENUES (Note 20)

PRODUCTION COSTS (Note 21)

£11,157,043,539

5,104,966,599

R?12,015,137,416

4,593,221,701

P11,500,506,964

4,290,354,511

GROSS PROFIT

6,052,076,640

7,421,915,715

7,210,152,453

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (Note 22)

3,879,277,659

3,732,554,234

3,451,968,170

OTHER INCOME

Interest income (Note 6) 28,567,427 77,221,603 57,755,029
Interest expense and financing charges on
short-term loans (11,479,294) {3,785,282) (8,504,803
Equity in net earnings {losses) of associates and
joint ventures (Note 1 1) 5,019,389 6,867,724 (11,478,071}
Others - net (Note 24) 51,083,876 24,545,162 43,340,160
73,191,398 104,849,207 80,712,315
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,245,990,379 3,794,210,688 3,838,895,598
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 27)
Current 557,448,374 866,402,642 1,026,777,448
Deferred (26,896,367) 6,980,993 (0,132,638}
530,852,007 973,383,635 1,020,644,750

NET INCOME

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME {LOSS)

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
financial assefs - net of tax (Note 10)

1,715,138,372

757,600

2,820,827,053

{175,500}

2,818,250,808

327,819

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

?1,715,895,372

P2,820,651,553

P2,818,578,627

Basie/Diluted Farnings Per Share {Note 28)

P0.353

£0.580

20,580

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2011

2010

2009

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile income before
income tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization (MNetes 12 and 14}
Movement in pension lHability
Interest income (Note 6)
Amortization of software costs (Note 15)
Gain on sale of properiy and equipment (Note 24)
Interest expensc and financing charges on
short-term loans
Equity in net losses (earnings} of associates and
joint ventures (Note 11)
Reversa of impairment loss in buildings and
improvements {Note 14}
Net unrealized foreign currency exchange loss
(gain}
Dividend income (Note 24)
Other noncash expenses
Discount on tax credit certificates (Note 24)
Working capital adjustments:
Decreases (increases) in:
Short-term investments
Trade and other receivables
Program and other rights
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Increases (decreases) in

P2,245,590,375

518,357,318
60,329,833
(28,567,427)
25,711,619
(16,040,347)

11,479,294
(5,019,389)
(4,990,219)

(3,312,399)
(41,529)

1,339,249,381
{171,925,558)
(89,738,826)

P3,794,210,688

506,969,581
(27,893,758}
(77,221,603}
20,213,004
(13,853,541)

3,785,282

{6,867,724)

7,688,256
(58,957

16,518,765
(2,670,692)

23,460,312
(224,740,570)

82,102,818
(217,511,262)

P3,838,895,598

558,686,905
(8,300,036)

(57,755,029)
15,661,449

(10,158,900)

8,904,803

11,478,071

4,945,923
(22,691)

12,158,113

(7,408,499)

(21,393,355)
(769,254,628)
202,572,715

(87,581,462)

Trade payables and other current liabilities (63,717,540} {142,020,487) 250,820,041

Obligations for program and other rights (37,221,513 14,360,475 {47,250,815)
Cash generated from operations 3,780,543,877 3,756,490,587 3,854,998,203
Interest received 28,754,764 80,260,737 56,294,921

Income taxes paid

{704,981,662)

(1,133,065,894)

(1,128,833,511)

Net cash flows from operating activities

3,104,317,27%

2,703,685.430

2,822,459,613

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acguisitions oft

Property end equipment (Nete 12) {903,454,640) (428,438,349) {609,232,201)

Software costs (Note 15) (34,675,5997) {30,761,933) (13,611,584)

Land at revalued amounts (Note 13} (6,463,241 - -

Investment properties (Note 14) {2,815,163) (6,188,853) (79,018)

Available-for-sale financial assets - (250,000) (7,880,201
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 23,675,161 49,558,559 37,309,465
Decrease {increase) in other noncurrent assets (12,062,207 96,989,471 {9,760,895)
Cash dividends received 1,438,838 11,595 822,586
Collection of advances to associates and joint ventures

(Note 11) — 59,281,531 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (934,357,249) (259,797,979 {602,441,848)

(Forward)




Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments oft

Cash dividends (Note 18) (#2,187,640,052) (#3,400,013,834) (P1,699,266,199)

Short-term loans {(950,000,000) (300,000,000) {500,000,000)

Interest and financing charges (11,479,254) (3,785,282) (8,904,803)
Proceeds from availments of short-term loans 950,000,080 300,000,000 500,000,000
Collection of subscriptions receivable - - 7,487,311
Net cash flows used in financing activities (2,199,119,346)  (3,403,799,116) {1,700,683,691)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (29,159,316) (959,911,608%) 519,334,074
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,783,599 (7,930,313) (7,247,372)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,232,351,840  2,200,193,813 1,688,107,116
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ATEND OFYEAR B1,207,976,123 P1,232.351,840 P2200,193 818

See accompanying Notes o Consolidated Finaneial Statements.




GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

OMA Network, Inc. (the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as

“the Group™) are incorporated in the Philippines, The Group is primarily involved in the business
of radio and television broadeasting. The Group is also involved in film production and other
information and entertainment-related businesses. The registered office address of the Parent
Company is GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA, Quezon City. The Parent
Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 14, 1950,

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are publicly listed and traded in the Philippine Stock
Exchange.

On July 20, 19935, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the extension of the corporate term of
the Parent Company for another 50 years from June 14, 2000, In 1997, the SEC approved the said
gxfension, ‘

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group were approved and authorized
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the BOD on March 28, 2012,

2. Basis of Preparation, Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures, and Basis of
Consolidation

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS also includes Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and interpretations of International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Council.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and land used in operations, which are measured at fair
value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent
Company’s functional and presentation currency under PFRS. All values are rounded to the
nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the following new and amended PFRSs and Philippine Interpretations which were adopted starting
January 1, 2011:

v PAS 24 (Amended), Related Farty Disclosures, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2011

= PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification of Rights Issues,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after February 1, 2010

= Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
{(Amendment), effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011
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= Philippine Interpretation [IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equiry

Instruments, effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010

»  Improvements to PFRSs (issued 2610)

Improvements to PFRSs (issued 2010). Improvements to PFRSs, an emnibus of amendments to
standards, deal primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There
are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

= PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Measurement options available for non-controlling interest

= PFRS 3 (as revised in 2008), Business Combinations - Contingent consideration arising from
business combination prior to adoption of PFRS 3

@ PFERS 3, Business Combinations - Unreplaced and voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards PFRS 3, Business Combinations

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments - Disclosures

= PAS 1, Presemtation of Financial Staiements

s PAS 27, Conselidated and Separate Financial Statemenis
a  PAS 34, Interim Financial Statemenis

The adoption of the above interpretations and amendments and improvements to PFRSs did not
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Standards Issued but not vet Effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the consclidated financial
statements are listed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards when these become
effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect the adoption of these new and
amended standards and interpretations to have significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

s PAS 1, Financial Statement Preseniation - Presentation of liems of Other Comprehensive
Income - The amendments to PAS | changed the grouping of items presented in other
comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit or loss at a
future point in time (for example, upon derccognition or seitlement) would be presented
separately from items that will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentfation
only and has therefore no impact on the consolidated financial position or performance. The
amendment becomes effective for annual perieds beginning on or after July 1, 2012,

v PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recovery of Underlying Assets - The amendment clarified the
determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value. The amendment
introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment property measured using
the fair value model in PAS 40, fnvestment Property, should be determined on the basis that
its carrying amount wilt be recovered through sale. Furthermore, it introduces the requirement
that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the revaluation model in
PAS 16 should always be measured on a szle basis of the asset. The amendment becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after Janvary 1, 2012,




PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment) - Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental
changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan
assets to simple clarifications and re-wording, The Group is currently assessing the impact of
the amendment to PAS 19. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements {as revised in 2011) - As a consequence of the new
PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PFRS 12, Disclosure of mterests in Other
Entities, what remains of PAS 27 s limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities, and asscciates in separate financial statements. The amendment becomes effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,

PAS 28, Investments in dssociates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011} - As a consequence
of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Join! Ventures, and describes the application of the equity
method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. The amendment becomes
effective for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2013,

PAS 32, Finoncial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Asseis and Financial
Ligbilities - These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to
settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simuitaneous. While the amendment is expected not to have any
impact on the net assets of the Group, any changes in offsetting is expected to impact Jeverage
ratios and regulatory capital requirements. The amendments to PAS 32 are to be
retrospectively applied for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure
Reguirements - The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have
been transferred but not derecognized to enable the user of the financial statements to
understand the relationship with those assets that have not been derecognized and their
associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment requires disclosures about continuing
involvernent in derecognized assets to enable the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement in those derecognized assets. The
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2611,

PFRS 7, Financial Instrument. Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities - These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off
and related arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required
for all recognized financial instruments that are set-off in accordance with PAS 32. These
disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or “similar agreement”, irrespective of whether they are set-off in
accordance with PAS 32. The amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format
unless another format is more appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information.
This is presented separately for financial assets and financial Habilities recognized at the end
of the reporting period:

a. The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial Habilities,

b, The amounts that are set-off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining;
the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;

¢. The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;




d. The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b} above, including:

i.  Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii,  Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash coilateral); and

e. The net amount after deducting the amounts in {d) from the amounts in (¢) above.

The amendments to PFRS 7 are o be retrospectively applied for annual pericds beginning on
or after January 1, 2013,

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement - PFRS 9, as issued, reflects
the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabiiities as defined in PAS 39. In subsequent phases, hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets will be addressed with the completion of this
project expected in 2012, The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will not have an effect on
the classification and measurement of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities,
The Company will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to
present a comprehensive picture. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2018, :

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements - PERS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, which addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in Standing Interpretations
Committee (SIC)-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. PFRS 10 establishes a single
control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes
introduced by PFRS 10 will require management fo exercise significant judgment fo determine
which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent,
compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27, This standard becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Inferests in Joint Ventures, and
SIC-13, Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11
removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities using proportionate consolidation.
Instead, jointly-controlled entities that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted
for using the equity method. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013,

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures
that were previously included in PAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well
as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and PAS 28, These
disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required, This standard becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under
PFRS for all fair value measuremenis. PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to
use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS when
fair value is required or permitted. This standard becomes effective for annuat periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013.




@ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, dgreements for the Consiruction of Real Estate - This
interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion,
except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under
PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is
recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the
construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the
buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The
SEC and the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of
this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by International Accounting
Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against
the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed.

*  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine - This interpretation applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface mining
activity during the production phase of the mine (“production stripping costs™) and provides
guidance on the recognition of production stripping costs as an asset and measurement of the
stripping activity asset. This interpretation becomes effective for annual periods beginning on
or after Janvary 1, 2013,

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011,

Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains contro!, and continue to be consclidated until the date when such control ceases. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company, using consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealized
gains and losses resuiting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity fransaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

®  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest

= Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

#  Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

3 Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

*  Reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the
following subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, which are all incorporated in the
Philippines:

Percentage
Principal Activities of Ownership
Entertainment Business;
Alta Productions Group, Inc. (Alta) Pre- and post-preduction services 100
Citynet Network Marketing and Productions,

Inc. (Citynet) Television entertaimment production 100
GMA Network Filims, Inc. Film production 100
GMA New Media, Inc. (GNMI Converging Technology 100

(Forward)




Percentage
Principal Activities of Ownership

GMA Worldwide (Philippines), Inc. International marketing, handling foreign

program acquisitions and

international syndication of the

Parent Company’s programs 106G
RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. Music recording, publishing and video

{GMA Records) distribution 100

Scenarios, Inc. (Scenarios) Design, construction and maintenance of

sets for TV, stage plays and

concerts; transportation services 100
Script2010, Inc. (Script2010)* Design, construction and maintenance of

sets for TV, stage plays and

concerts; transportation and

manpower services 100

Advertising Business:

GMA Marketing & Productions, Inc. (GMPI)  Exclusive marketing and sales arm of

GMA’s airtime 106
Digify, Inc. (Digify)** Crafting, planning and handling

advertising and other forms of

promotion including muli-media

productions 100

Others;

MediaMerge Comporation** Business development and operations for

the Parent Company’s online

publishing/advertising initiatives 100
Ninja Graphics, Inc. (Ninja)*** Ceased commercial operations in 2001 51

*indirectly owned through Citynet
¥+ fndirectly owned through GNMI
X fndirectly owned through Alta; ceased commercial operations in 2001

Incorporation and Acquisition of Subsidjaries

In Qctober 2011, the Group, through GNMI, paid in cash a totah of £3.13 million for the 100%
capital subscription of Digify issued and outstanding shares. Drigify was registered with the SEC
on December 26, 2011.

On January 1, 2010, the Group, through Citynet, acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding
shares of Script2010 (formerly Capitalex Holdings, Inc.) for a total cash consideration of
21.07 million which is equal to the fair value of net assets acquired at acquisition date.

(U]

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are shori-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amoumnts of cash with ori ginal maturities of three
(3} months or less from acquisition date and that are subject to insignificant risk of change in
value.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measuremeni, Financial asscts within the scope of PAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or foss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition and where allowed appropriate, re-cvaluates such designation
at every consolidated statements of financial position date.




All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at FVPL.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and nontrade receivables
{excluding advances to suppliers), refundable deposits, included under “Other noncurrent assets”
account in the consolidated statements of financial positions, and AFS financial assets.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group does not have any financial asset at FYPL, HTM
investments or derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

“Day 1" Profit or Loss. Where the transaction price is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique

- whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value of the financial instruments (a “Day 1 profit or loss)
in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset, In cases where data
which is not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is
only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become chservable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing
the “Day 1™ profit or loss amount.

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as described below:

®  Loans and receivables. Leans and receivabies are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted m an active market. After initial measurement,
such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest amortization is included in interest income in profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized under “General and administrative expenses” account
in the statements of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables are ciassified as current assets when the Group expects to realize the
asset within 12 months from reporting period, Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
assgets.

= AFS financial assets. AFS financial assets include equity investments. Equity investments
classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at
FVPL.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized as other comprehensive income in the *“Unrealized gain
{loss) on AFS financial assets” account until the investment is derecognized, at which time the .
cumulative gain or loss is recognized in other income, or the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the “Unrealized gain (loss} on
AFS firancial assets” account to profit or loss in interest expense,
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AFS equity investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any impairment. If a reliable measure of fair value subsequently becomes available, the
asset Is remeasured at that fair value, and the gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive
income {provided it is not impaired). If a reliable measure ceases to be available, the AFS
equity investment is thereafter measured at cost, which is deemed to be the fair valie on that
date. Any gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income shall remain in
equity until the asset has been sold, otherwise disposed of or impaired, at which time it is
reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial asseis in the
near term s still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to do so significantly
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the
definition of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets
for the foreseeabie future or until maturity. Reclassification to the HTM category is permitted
only when the entity has the ability and intention to hold the financial asset accordingly.

For a financial asset reciassified from the AFS category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on the
asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortized
cost and the maturity amount is aiso amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets under this category are classified as current if expected to be realized within
12 months from reporting period and as noncurrent assets if maturity date is more than a year
from reporting pericd.

Derecognition of Financial Asseis. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecegnized when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

= The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; or

=  Either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
{b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred contro! of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred contro] of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.




Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required fo repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Group assesses, at each reporting period, whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event™) and that foss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated, Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

* Financial assets carried at amortized cost. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the
Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying

~amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit
losses that have not yet been incurred), The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate,

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss, Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The accrued interest is
shown under interest income in profit or loss, Loans together with the associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event cccurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account, If a previous write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to interest expense in profit or loss.

s AFS financial assets. For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost,
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of
impairment, the cumuiative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
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the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in
profit or loss - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity invesiments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive income,

Financial Liabilities

[nitial Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at FVPL and loans and borrowings. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition,

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and
borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities under this category are classified as current if expected to be settled within 12

months from reporting period and as noncurrent if maturity date is more than a year from reporting
period,

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables and other current liabilities (excluding
payable to government agencies), obligations for program and other rights and dividends payable.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group does not have financial liabilities at FVPL,,

Subsequent Measurement, After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective inferest method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in interest expense in profit or loss.

The Group’s interest-bearing short-term loans are availed and paid within each financial reporting
year,

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial fiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original Hability and the recognition of a new
liabiiity, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statements of financial position if, and only if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the assets and settle the Habilities simultanecusly. This is not generally the case with master
netting agreements, therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented at gross in the
consalidated statements of financial position,




Fair Value of Financial Instraments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting period is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for fong
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction cosis. When
current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the fransaction.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation te chniques. Such techniques may include:

s Using recent arm’s length market transactions;
s Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; or
s A discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

Program and Other: Rights

Program and other rights with finite lives are stated at amortized cost less any impairment in
value. The cost is amortized on accelerated method based on the manner and pattern of USage of
the acquired riglats, Programs and other rights are fully amortized on the date of expiry.
Amortization expense is shown as program and other rights usage.

For series of rights acquired, the cost is ciaarged to income as each series is aired on a per episode
basis.

For rights intended for airing over the in ternational channels, the cost is amortized on a straight-
line basi+; over the number of years indi cated in the contract.

Progre.m and other rights are classificd. as current assets because the Group expects to &.i any
given title at any time within its norma| operating cycle.

Trepaid Production Costs

Prepaid production costs, included wader “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” ar count in
ihe consolidated statements of finan cial position, represent costs incurred prior to the aiing of the
programs or episodes. These costs ‘elude talent fees of artists and production staff ane other
costs directly attributable to produrction of programs. These are charged fo expense upa airing of
the related program or episodes. (Costs related to previously taped episodes determinedinot to be
aired are charged to expense,

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets”
account in the consolidated statements of financial position, is stated at the lower of cosi or net
realizable value, Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Net realizable vilue is the
current replacement cost,

Tax Credits _
Tax credits represent claim s from the government arising from airing of government corrmercials
and advertisements availes | under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362, Pursuant to PD I\h 1362,
these will be collected in t he form of tax credits which the Group can use in paying for myzort
duties and taxes on impor ted broadcasting related equipment. The tax credits cannot bewedio
pay for any other tax obli gation to the government. Tax credits are classified as current assets if
these are expected to be » atilized within 12 months from reporting period. Otherwise, thes: are
classified as noncurrent / assets.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group does not have tax credits classified as noncurent.
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Asset Classified as Held for Sale

Asset classified as held for sale is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. An asset is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed fo the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

investments and Advances

Investments in Associares. This account consists of investments in and permanent advances to
associates.

The Group’s investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity method. An associate
is an entity in which the Group has significant influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the consolidated statements
of financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associate, Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is netther amortized nor individually tested for impairment,

The consoclidated statements of comprehensive income reflect the share of the resuits of operations
of the associate. When there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resuiting from
ransactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associate.

The Group’s share in profit {loss) of the associates are shown on the face of the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, which is the profit (loss) attributabie to equity holders of the
associates.

‘The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting peried as the Group,
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.

After application of the equity methoed, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize
an additional impairment foss on its investment in its associate. The Group determines at each
reporting pericd whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in associates are
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the receverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recegnizes the amount
in the “Equity in net earnings (losses) of associates” account in the consclidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associates, the Group measures and recognizes any
retaining investments at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investments and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.
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Interests in Joint Ventures. This account consists of inferests in and permanent advances to joint
ventures.,

The Group has interests in joint ventures, which are jointly controlled entities, whereby the
venturers have a contractual arrangement that establishes joint contrel over the economic activities
of the entity. The agreement requires unanimous agreement for financial and operating decisions
among the venturers. The Group recognizes its inferests in the joint ventures using the equity
method. The financial statements of the joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Group. Adjustments are made where necessary to bring the accounting policies in fine with
those of the Group. :

Adjustments are made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements to eliminate the Group’s
share of intragroup balances, fransactions and unrealized gains and losses on such transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures. Losses on fransactions are recognized immediately if
the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realizable vaiue of current assets or an
impairment loss. The Group ceases to use the equity method of accounting on the date from
which it no longer has joint control over, or significantly influence in the joint ventures or when
the interests become held for sale.

Upon loss of joint control, the Group measures and recognizes its remaining investment at its fair
value, Any difference between the carrying amount of the former joint controlled entity upon loss
of joint control and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in profit or foss. When the remaining Investment constitutes significant influence, it is
accounted for as investment in an associate.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization and
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in
the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

TLand is measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognized after the
date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed frequently to ensure that the fair value of a
revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

Any revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and hence, credited to the
“Revaluation increment in land” account under equity, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case, the
increase is recognized in profit or loss, A revaluation deficit is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the “Revaluation
increment in land” account.
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Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Buildings, towers and improvements 11-20 years
Antenna and transmitter systems and breadcast equipment 5-10 years
Communication and mechanical equipment 3-3 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment : S years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and metheds of depreciation are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of real estate held for capital appreciation and rental.

[nvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any
impairment in value,

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over 11 - 20 years,

The remaining useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each financial year-end.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. Fora
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-cccupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Investment in Artworks
Investment in artworks, included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position, is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Software Costs

Costs incurred in the aéquisition and customization of new software, included under “Other
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position, are capitalized and
amortized on a straight-line basis over three (3) to five (5) years.
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Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying values of program and other rights, prepaid production costs, tax credits, invesiments
and advances, property and equipment, investment properties and software costs are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, and if the carrying value exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are considered impaired and are written down fo their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of these nenfinancial assets is the greater of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s fair value less cost to sell or value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the
sale of an asset in an arm’s-length fransaction less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to'which the asset belongs. Impairment losses, if any, are
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no fonger exist or may have decreased. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss,
except for land at revalued amount where the revaluation is taken to other comprehensive income,
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in
profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization charges are adjusted in
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. For land at revalued amounts, the impairment is
also recognized in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

In the case of investments in associates and interests in joint ventures, after application of the
equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any additional
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investments in associates and interests in joint
ventures. The Group determines at each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that the investments in associates and interests in joint ventures are impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable
amount of investments in associates and the acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for ali shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Treasury Stock and Underlying Shares of Acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs)

The Parent Company’s own reacquired equity instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or
Joss is recognized in the consolidated statemenis of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
issuance or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
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Dividends on Common Shares of the Parent Company
Dividends on common shares are recognized as lability and deducted from equity when approved

by the BOD of the Parent Company. Dividends for the year that are approved after reporting
period are dealt with as an event after reporting period.

Revenues

Revenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the armnount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Group assesses
its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or
agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements,
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Alrtime Revenue, Revenue is recognized as income in the period the advertisements are aired.
Such revenues are net of agency and marketing commissions and co-producers’ share. The fair
values of capitalizable exchange deals are included in airtime revenue and the related accounts,
These transactions represent advertising time exchanged for program materials, merchandise or
service.

Payments received before broadceast (pay before broadcast) are recognized as income on the dates
the advertisements are aired. Prior to liquidation, these are net out against accounts receivables
since a right of offset exists between the pay before broadcast balance and the regular accounts
receivable with credit terms.,

Goods received in exchange for airtime usage pursuant 10 ex-deal contracts executed between the
Group and its customers are recorded at fair market values of assets received. Fair market value is
the current market price.

Tax credits on aggregate airtime credits from government sales availed of under PD No. 1362 are
recognized as income upon actual airing of government commercials and advertisements and
when there is reasonable certainty that these can be used to pay duties and taxes on imported
broadcasting related equipment.

Subscription Income. Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
subseription agreements.

Commission. Revenue is recognized as income on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms
of the related marketing agreements,

Production and Others. Production revenue is recognized when project-related services are
rendered. Others pertain to revenue from sponsorship and licensing income. Revenue from
sponsorship and licensing is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
agreement.

Rental Income. Revenue from lease of property and equipment is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease term,

Dividend Income. Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective
yieid on the asset.
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Agency and Marketing Commissions and Co-producers’ Share
These are deducted from gross revenues in profit or loss in the period the advertisements are aired.

Agency commissions are recognized at a standard rate of 15% of revenue recognized.

Share of co-producers on revenues of specific programs are covered by duly authorized contracts
entered into between the Group and the co-producers. The co-producers normally undertaks the
production of such program in return for a stipulated percentage of revenue.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of
the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing

costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Expenses
Expenses presented as “Production costs™ and “General and administrative expenses” in the
statements of comprehensive income are recognized as incurred,

Pension Benefits

The Parent Company and one (1) of its subsidiaries have funded, noncentributory defined benefit
retirement plans covering its permanent emplioyees, The cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses
for the plans at the end of the previous reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are
recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in
the plans.

The past service cost, if any, is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average
period unti] the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following
the introduction of, or changes to, pension plans, past service cost is recognized immediately.

The pension liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
actuarial gains and losses not recognized, reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and the
fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such aggregate is
negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative
unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in the future contributions to
the plans.

If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
service cost and the present value of any econemic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plans or reduetions in the future contributions to the plans, net actuarial losses of the current
period and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately to the extent that
they exceed any reduction in the present value of those economic benefits. If there is no change or
increase in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial losses of the current
period and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately. Similarly, net
actuarial gains of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period
exceeding any increase in the present value of the economic benefits stated above are recognized
immediately if the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial
losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
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refunds from the plans or reductions in the future contributions to the plans. If there is no change
or decrease in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial gains of the
current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period are recognized
immediately.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date, whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent on the

use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases, Operating lease payments are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income on 2 straight-line
basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
incurred.

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
are recognized as income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating iease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are
carned.

Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency exchange rate at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency closing exchange rate at financial reporting period. All
differences are taken to profit or loss in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. For income tax purposes, foreign exchange gains and losses
are treated as taxable income or deductible expenses when realized.

Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabifities for the current period are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used fo compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enactad at
reporting period. '

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not
in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions talen in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided using the liabitity method on temporary
differences at reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting period.
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Deferred tax asscts are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits
of excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover
(NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefiis of excess MCIT and unused
NOLCOQO can be utilized, except:

* where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liabijity in-a fransaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

= inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interest in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered, '

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

= where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

@ inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
assoclates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
vear when the asset is realized or the Hability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Income tax relating to other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income
section of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of
VAT.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part
of “Prepaid expenses and other current assets™ or “Trade payables and other current liabilities”
accounts in the consolidated statements of financial position,

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income, net of income attributable to preferred shares,
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, with retroactive
adjustments for any stock dividends declared.
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Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net income (inclusive of income attributable to preferred
shares) by the weighted average number of common shares ocutstanding during the year, plus the
weighted average number of common shares that would be issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential common shares.

Seoment Renorting

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed
separately into three business activities. Such business segments are the basis upon which the
Group reperts its primary segment information. The Group considers television and radio
operations as the major business segment. The Group operates in two geographical areas where it
derives is revenue.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to setile the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an cutflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the
reporting period {adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes o consolidated financial
staternents when material.

Significant Accounting Judgmenis, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and related notes at the end of the reporting pericd. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements,

Functional Currency. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso,
which is the Parent Company’s functional currency. The Philippine peso is also the functional
currenicy of the subsidiaries. It is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates.




Asset Classified as Held for Sale. In January 2011, the Group, through GNMI’s BOD, announced
its decision to dispose of its sharcholdings in X-Play Online Games Incorporated  (X-Play), a
jointly controlled entity (see Note 11). The Group assessed that the interest in X-Play met the
criteria to be classified as held for sale at that date for the following reasons:

= X-Play is available for immediate sale and can be sold to a potential buyer in its current
condition,

GNMI's BOD had entered into preliminary negotiations with a potential buyer.

#= [P E-Games Ventures, inc. (IPE) and GNMI subsequently executed an Option Agreement
whereby GNMI was granted an option o seil its shareholdings in X-Play to IPE, which can be
exercised within a period of one (1) year from execution date on Octeber 19, 2011.

Operating Leases - Group as Lessee. The Group has entered into various lease agreements as a
lessee, The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that the lessors retain all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases,

Rent expense charged to operations amounted to 2851.93 million, £737.50 million and
R693.40 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 26).

Tax credits. The parent company has determined that tax credits earned from airing of
government commercials and advertisements are recognized based on the Parent Company’s
forecast of importation for the next twelve (12) months from reporting period in which the tax
credits will be applied and when the application is reasonably certain.

Revenue from tax credits recognized in profit or loss amounted to £67.20 million, B84.00 million
and £50.00 miliion in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the conselidated financial
statements were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Estimating Afllowance for Doubtful Accounts, Provisions are made for specific and groups of
billed and unbilied accounts where objective evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates
these accounts based on available facts and circumstances that affect the collectibility of the
accounts. The review is accomplished using a combination of specific and collective assessment.
The factors considered in specific and collective impairment assessments include, but not limited
to, the length of the Group’s relationship with customers, customers® current credit status based on
third party credit reports and known market forces, average age of accounts, collection experience
and historical loss experience. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any peried would
differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized different methodologies, An increase in
allowance for doubtful accounts would increase the recorded general and administrative expenses
and decrease current assets.
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Provision for doubtful accounts amounted to B24.55 million, 230.60 million and $#8.17 million in
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts, amounted to 4,191.14 miilion and £5,531.97 million as at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively (see Note 7).

Amortization of Program and Other Rights. The Group estimates the amortization of program and
other rights with finite lives based on the manner and pattern of usage of the acquired rights. The
Group estimates that programs are more marketable in their initial airing as compared to the
succeeding airings. In addition, estimation of the amortization of program and other rights is
based on the Group’s experience with such rights. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the
factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances.

Program and other rights, net of accurnulated impairment loss, amounted to #730.00 million and
P558.07 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 8).

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. The Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other
objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or
“nrolonged” requires judgment. The Group treats “significant” generally as 20% or more of the
original cost of investment, and “prolonged” as greater than 12 months. In addition, the Group
evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted equities and the future
cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities.

The carrying value of AFS financial assets amounted to #105.80 million and #104.97 million as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively {see Note 10). There were no impairment iosses
recognized on AFS financial assets in 2011, 2010 and 2009,

Estimating Allowance for Inventory Losses. The Group provides allowance for inventory losses
whenever the net realizable value becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration,
obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The allowance account is reviewed
periodically to reflect the accurate valuation in the financial records.

The carrying value of materials and supplies inventory amounted to #108.96 million and
P108.99 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 9). There were no
provisions for inventory losses in 2011, 2010 and 2009,

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment, Software Costs and Investment Properties.
The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment
properties based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use
of the assets. In addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs
and investment properties is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future resulis of
operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the
factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A réduction in the estimated useful lives
of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties would increase the recorded
general and administrative expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.
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There has been no change in the Group’s estimate of useful lives of its property and equipment,
software costs and investment properties in 2011 and 2010,

Revaluation of Land. The Group engages an independent appraiser to determine the fair value of
the land used in operations. Fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. The
fair value amount would differ if the Group made different judgments and estimates or utilized a
different basis for determining fair value.

Valuations from an independent appraiser are performed every three (3) to five (5) years to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from ifs carrying amount.

The revalued amount of land amounted to 1,409,359 million and 21,403.12 million as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 13).

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. For prepaid production costs, tax credits, investments and
advances, property and equipment, investment properties and software costs, impairment testing is
performed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger
an impairment review include the following:

s significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

= significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

= significant negative industry or economic trends.
The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and the
asset’s value in use. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not

possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The balance of nonfinancial assets as at December 31 follows (see Notes 9, 11, 12, 14 and 15Y)

2011 2010
Property and equipment R3.252,582,543 $2,872,001,158
Investments and advances 320,500,728 341,913,803
Prepaid production costs 219,404,918 168,300,805
Tax credits 118,368,267 109,054,955
Investment properties 68,029,711 63,343,706
Software costs 48,423,523 36,457,145

P4,027,307,682  $3,624,071,572

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. 'The Group’s assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax assets on nondeductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO
and excess MCIT is based on the forecasted taxable income of the five (5) reporting periods. This
forecast is based on the Group’s future expectations on revenues and expenses.

Deferred tax assets amounied to B240.35 million and £215.77 million as at December 3 1,201
and 2010, respectively (see Note 27).
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Pension Benefits. 'The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of pension benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts,
Those assumptions are described in Note 25 and include, among others, discount rate, expected
rate of return on plan assets and expected rate of salary increase. In accordance with PFRS, actual
results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and,
therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.

Pension liability amounted to P312.97 million and #252.64 million as at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses) amounted to $£66.52 million and
(B39.35 million) as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 25).

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities. The Group carries AFS financial assets at fair
value, which requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments. The significant
components of fair value measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence

(i.e,, foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates). However, the timing and amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilized differeat valuation methodologies and
assumptions, Any changes in the fair value of AFS financial assets would affect the reported fair
value of this financial asset.

The fair value of financial assets and liabitities are enumerated in Note 30,

Segment Information

Business Segments
For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on its products and
services and has three reportable segments, as follows:

¢ The television and radio segment, which engages in television and radio broadcasting
activities and which generates revenue from sale of national and regional advertising time.

= The international subscription segment which engages in subscription arrangements with
international cable companies.

»  Other businesses which include movie production, consumer products and other services,

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on net income or loss and is measured consistently with net income or loss in the
consolidated financial statements. On a consclidated basis, the Group’s performance is evaluated
based on consolidated net income for the year.

Geographical Segments .

The Group operates in two major geographical segments. In the Philippines, its home country, the
Group is involved in television operations. In the United States and in other locations (which
include Middle East, Europe, Australia, Canada and Japan), the Group ties up with cable providers
to bring television programming cuiside the Philippines,

The Group’s revenues were mostly generated from the Philippines, which is the Group’s country
of domicile, Revenues from externzl customers attributed to foreign countries from which the
Group derives revenue were individually immaterial to the consolidated financial statements.
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Noncurrent assets consist of property and equipment, fand at revalued amounts, investment
properties and intangible assets which are all located in the Philippines.

The Group does not have a single external customer whose revenue amounts to 10% or more of
the Group’s revenues.

Inter-seoment Transactions
Segment revenues, segment expenses and segment results include transfers among business
segments and among geographical segments. The transfers are accounted for at competitive

market prices charged to unrelated customers for similar services. Such transfers are eliminated
upon consolidation,
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

2011 2010
Cash on hand and in banks 739,028,819 2708,365,390
Short-term deposits 468,947,304 523,986,450

$1,207,976,123  21,232351,840

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income, net of final tax, eamed from bank deposits amounted to 28,57 million,
£77.22 million and B57.76 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Trade and Other Receivables

2011 2010
Trade:

Television and radio airtime £3,631,453,604 B4,974,423,522
Subseriptions 311,859,621 267,676,284
Related party (see Note 19) 60,622,219 50,898,039
Others 155,203,912 117,289,926

Nontrade:
Advances to suppliers 199,978,803 198,301,803
Advances to officers and employees 34,738,409 0,625,412
Others 35,218,973 118,145,159
4,429,075,541 5,745,360,145
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 237,937,618 213,388,195

P4,191,137,923  P5,531,971,950

Trade Receivables

Television and Radio Airtime. Television and radio airtime receivables are noninterest-bearing
and are generally on 60-90 day terms upon receipt of invoice by the customers. Invoicing
normally takes around 30 days from airing,

Television and radio airtime receivables include unbilled airtime receivables, arising when
advertisements have been aired during the year but billing or acceptance by the customner has been
delayed due to time lag in completing all required documents.

Television and radio airtime receivables are presented net of payments received before broadeast
amounting to £128.13 million and B145.87 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, since a right of offset exists between the advance payments and the regular trade
recetvables with credit terms.

Subscriptions Receivable. Subscriptions receivable include receivables from international channel
subscriptions and advertisements, These are noninterest-bearing and normaily collected within
30-60 days.




Related Party. Terms and conditions of receivables to related party are discussed in Note 19,

Other Trade Receivables. Other trade receivables are noninteresi-bearing and are generally on
60-90 day terms upon receipt of invoice by the customers.

Nontrade Receivables

Advances to Suppliers. Advances to suppliers are non-inferest bearing and are generally applied to
acquisition of inventories and fixed assets and availment of services and others within the next
financial year.

Advances to Officers and Employees and Other Nontrade Receivabies. Advances to officers and
employees and other nontrade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are normally coliected
within the next financial year.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounis
The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows:

2011
Television and
Radio Alrtime Others Total
Balance at beginning of vear B210,840,89% 81,547,299 £113,388,195
Provision for the year
(see Note 22) 23,799,588 749,835 24,549,423
Balance at end of year R234,640,484 $3,297,134 B237,937.618
2010
Television and
Radio Alrtime Others Total
Balance at beginning of year B206,355,660 B2,097.002 £208,452,662
Provision for the year
{sce Note 22) 30,000,000 599,355 30,599,355
Write-off {25,514,764) {149.058) {25,663,822)
Balance at end of vear P210,840,896 £2,547,299 £213,388,195

The allowance for doubtful accounts for television and radio airtime and other recetvables in 2011
and 2010 are results of specific and collective impairment assessments performed by the Group as
follows:

2011 2010
Individually impaired P126,867,516 2197.664,882
Collectively impaired 11,870,102 15,723,313

$237.937,618 R213,368,195
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As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the aging analysis of receivables that were not impaired

follows:
2611
Trade

Television and

Radio Airtime  Subscriptions  Related party Others Nontrade® Total
Neither past dug nor

impaired 22,052,849,685 P140,911,528 R60,622,219 P63,521.270 P37,547,734 PRI357451,442

Past due but not impaired:

1-30 days 260,649,826 89,404,778 - 5,128,207 7,801,413 362,975,224
31-60 days 239,043,565 21,046,947 - 20,254,421 4,668,658 305,005,391
61-90 days 18,179,674 16,755,356 - 4,606,461 4,697,818 44,239,249

G1-180 days 74,829,169 23,664,791 ~ 2,247,745 8,524,317 106,266,022
181-365 days 237,536,716 14,583,349 - 19,509,362 4,625,353 276,254,786
Over one year 493,733,485 5,452,872 ~ 34,639,360 5,100,089 538,965,812
£3,396,813,126  PB311,859,621 P60,622,219  PIS1,006,778 269,957,382 $3,991,15%,120

*Excliding advances (o suppliers amounting to P199.98 million as

at December 31, 2011,

2010
Trade
Televiston and
Radio Airtime  Subscriptions  Related party Others Nontrade™® Total
Weither past due nor
impaired B3,046,277,536 R174,784,481 759,898,039 220,716,562 16,537,655 R3,327214,673
Past due but not impaired:

1.39 days 419,457,061 15,303,212 - 16,511,231 9,133,181 460,406,685
31-60 days 246,448,895 13,149,773 - 17,616,326 12,520,799 289735793
61-90 days 102,794,526 16,940,704 - 9,772,600 10,508,168 200,015,998

91-180 days 175,050,274 17,449,907 - 7,140,366 5,212,865 204,853,412
181-365 days 239,660,518 14,590,070 — 24,743,480 42,587,376 321,581,444
Over ong year 473,893,816 15,458,137 - 9,241,662 31,268,527 529,862,142
£4,763,582,626  B267,676,284 P59.898 039  R114,742,627  PIZ7.770,571 P5333,670,147

*Exeluding advances to suppliers amounting to B198.30 million as

al Decermber 31, 2010,

Trade and other receivables that were not impaired are assessed by the management of the Group

as good and collectible,

The Group’s unbilled receivables amounted to Bl

(7.87 million and 8136.76 million as at

December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. These are included in trade receivables as "neither

past due nor impaired” but with age of 31-60 day

s from date of airing.

Program and Other Rights

2011
Program  Story Format
Rights Rights Film Rights Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year P452,015,772 89,563,129 P19,195,952  B560,774,853
Additions 440,091,709 21,354,264 28,000,000 489,445,973
892,107,481 110,917,353 47,195952  1,050,220,826
Program and other rights usage
(see Note 21) (273,054,958) (39,423,487 {5,040,000)  (317,520,415)
Balance at end of year 619,052,523 71,491,936 42,155,952 732,706,411
Accumulated impairment in value - .
Balance at beginning and
end of year (2,702,260 - - (2,702,260}
B616,350,263 P71,491,936 R42,155,052  ®729,998,151




231 -

2010
Program Story Format
Rights Rights Film Rights Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year 545,370,858 P77,447,289 R20,059,324  B642,877.671
Additions 313,352,327 59,408,209 9,000,000 381,758,536

858,723,185 136,853,498 29,059,524  1,024,636,207
Program and other rights usage

(see Note 21) (406,707,413) {47.290,369) (0,863,572)  (463,861,354)
Balance at end of year 452,015,772 89,563,129 19,195,952 560,774,853
Accumulated impairment in value -
Balance at beginning and
end of year (2,702,260) - - {2,702,260)
P449,313312 #89,563,129 P19,195952  B3558,072,593

No impairment loss on program and other rights was recognized in 2011 and 2010.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assels

2011 2010
Prepaid production costs £219,404,918 £198,300,805
Tax credits 118,368,267 109,054,955
Materials and supplies inventory at cost 108,959,185 108,989,821
Input VAT 104,099,498 81,793,312
Prepaid expenses 85,194,126 59,192,186
Creditable withholding taxes 58,800,765 47,780,854
Others 232,800 189,800

2695,040,559 £605,301,733

Tax credits represent claims of the Parent Company from the government arising from airing of

government commercials and advertisements. The Parent Company expects to utilize these tax
credits within the next financial year.

. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

2011 2010

Investments in shares of stock:
Unguoted $83,257,256 B83 257,256
Quoted 22,539,592 21,709,592

105,796,848 104,966,848

A significant portion of AFS financial assets consist of investments in unguoted shares of stock
which are carried at cost, less any accumulated impairment in value. The fair value of these
financial instruments is not reasonably determinable due to unpredictable nature of future cash
flows and lack of other suitable methods in arriving at fair value.

AFS financial assets include net unrealized gain amounting to 82,75 million and #2.00 million,
net of deferred tax liabilities amounting to B0.22 million and 80.21 million as at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 27). The net unrealized gain on AFS financial assets are -
deferred and presented separately under the equity section of the consolidated statements of
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financial position. The movement in the net unrealized gain-on AFS financial assets is presented
under the consolidated statements of changes in equity. No portion of the net unrealized gain on
AFS financial assets was transferred to profit in loss in 2011 and 2010,

11. Imvestments and Advances

2011 2010
[nvestments in associates and interests in joint

ventures accounted for under the equity method B233,415,063 P254,828,146

Permanent advances to associates and joint ventures
(see Note 19) 87,085,657 87,085,657
£320,500,720 £341,913,803

The movements in the above amounts are as follows:

2011 2010

Investments in associates and interests in joint
ventures accounted for under the equity method
Acquisition cost:

Balance at beginning of year
Interest in joint venture classified as held for

sale - net of subscription payable
(see Note 4)

B327,722,056

(50,000,000)

B327,722,056

Balance at end of year

277,722,086

327,722,056

Accumulated equity in net Josses:
Balance at beginning of year
Accumulated equity in net losses associated

(72,893,910}

(79,761,634)

with the asset held for sale 23,567,528 -
Equity in net earnings during the year 5,019,389 6,867,724
Balance at end of year ' (44,306,993} (72,893,510)
233,415,063 254,828,146

Advances to assoclates and joint ventures:

Balance at beginning of year 87,085,657 146,367,188

Collection of advances during the vear - {59,281,531)

Balance at end of year 87,085,657 87,085,657
Total investments and advances £320,500,720 R341,913,803

The ownership interests in associates and joint ventures which are all incorporated in the
Philippines consist of the following:

Percentage of Ownership

Principal Activities 2011 2010
Associates:
RGMA Network, Inc. (RGMA) Radic Broadcasting 49.0 49.0
Mont-Aire Realty and Development
Corporation (Moni-Alre) Real Estate 49.0 43.0
Joint Ventures; *
H-Play (see Note 4) Casual Online Interactive Games - 50.0
INQ7 Interactive, Inc. (INQ7} Internet Publishing 50.0 50.0
Philippine Entertainment Portal, Inc,
(PEP} Internet Publishing 30,0 50.0




The carrying values of investments accounted for under the equity method and the refated
advances are as follows:

2611
Advances
Investments (see Note 19) Total
Associates:

RGMA P21095,064,444 P £195,064,444
Mont-Aire 38,350,619 84,475,370 122,825,989

Joini venture -
TNQ7 - 2,610,287 2,610,287
$133,415,063 - BR7,085,657 £320,500,720

2010
Advances
Investments (see Note 19) Total
Assoclates!

RGMA £160,045,055 P £190,045,055
Mont-Aire 38,350,619 84,475,370 122,825,989

Joint ventures:
X-Play {see Note 4) 20,432,472 - 26,432,472
ING7 - 2,610,287 2,610,287
P254 828,146 BB7.085,657 £341,913,803

X-Play

As discussed in Note 4, the Group, through GNMI’s BOD, announced its decision to dispose of
its sharcholdings in X-Play on Janvary 1, 2011, and classified its investment in X-Flay as asset
held for sale. The carrying value of asset held for sale previously classified as investment and
advances to X-Play is shown below:

Investment cost £100,000,000
Less subscription payable 50,000,000
Net investment cost 50,000,000

Less accumulated equity in net losses associated with
the asset held for sale 23,567,528
226,432,472

In connection with the planned disposal of X-Play, on October 19, 2011, GNMI entered into an
option agreement with [PE whereby IPE grants GNMI the option to sell alf, but not less than all, of
shares in stock of X-Play for purchase price of 875.00 million in cash. Also, on March 23, 2G12,
GNMI agreed to subscribe to £130.00 million worth of shares of IPE’s authorized but unissued
capital stock to be offered on its Initial Public Offering in exchange for GNMI shares of stock in
X-Play at a subscription price per share equivalent to the offering price,

PEP

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, accumulated equity in net losses of PEP exceeded the Group’s
interest in joint venture, thus, the carrying value of interest in joint venture with PEP has been
reduced to zero. Unrecognized share of income (losses) in PEP amounted to #2.11 million,

(£0.03 million) and (R3.27 million) in 2011, 2010 &nd 2009, respectively. The accumulated
unrecognized share of losses in PEP amounted to B1.19 million and £3.30 million as at

December 31,2011 and 2010, respectively,
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INQ7T
Losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess of the Group’s interest were applied
against its advances to the Parent Company. INQ7 ceased operations in 2007,

Establishment of a New Joint Venture
On March 22, 2012, the Group, through GNMI, executed a Sharcholder’s Agreement with Manila

Jockey Club, Inc. for the establishment of a joint venture corporation namely Gamespan, Ine. The
joint venture will be operational in 2012,

All associates and joint ventures are not listed in any public stock exchanges.

The table below shows the condensed financial information of the associates:

Total Assels  Total Liabilities Revenues Net Income

RGMA 2011 £126,139,501 R785.172,507 B146,714,016 £10,243,651
2010 105,255,491 64,568,415 167,385,748 29,735,040

Mont-Alre 2011 160,136,147 94,460,607 - -
2010 160,136,147 94,460,607 - —

The aggregate amounts related to the Group’s 50% interest in INQ7, PEP and X-Play follow:

INQ7 PEP X-Play {see Note 4)

2011 2010 2011 2010 2411 2019
Current assels 27,699,679 27,699,079 218,950,186 P17.875,121 B 210,484,469
MNoncurrent assets 2,582,230 2,182,230 691,274 973,206 - 38,680,114
Carent Habilities 29,032,924 29,032,924 21,734,766 23,039,948 - 22732111
Revenuss - - 12,422,343 7,042,017 - 18,431,805
Expenses - - 14,315,032 12,562,019 - 26,134,251
Net income (losses) - - 2,107,311 (5,520,002) - {7,702 ,446)

. Property and Equipment at Cost

20t

Additions/

Depreciation

{see Notes 21
Jannary 1 and 22) Disposals  Rechnssifteations Derember 31

Cost:
Bulldings, towers and improvemen's $2,466,432,706  R84,495293  (P13,587,65%) £50,833  £2,531,391,147
Antenpa and transmitter systems and
broadeast equipmaent 4,256,889,902 559,920,132 (21,088,207) 29,715,828 4,825,470,655
Communication z i ont 636,205,627 105,743,565 (4,003,070} {1,048,972) 736,897,150
Transpartation 346,917,213 81,642,642 (43,349,158) 1,604,221 380,814,911
Fumiture, fixtures and cgu 161,473,218 9,331,503 (2,873,i00) 672,992 168,604,612
7,861,918,666 841,133,135 {84,868,218) 30,994,902 8,649,178,485
Accumnulated Depreciation and Amortization:

Buildings, towers and improvements 966,924,378 122,701,067 {8,638,594) - 1,080,986,851
3,364,927,642 245,062,810 (22,147,659} (648,063)  3,557,194,730
: o i = 477,823,991 72,395,926 (3,708,750} (627,767) 545,883,400
Transportation equipment 204,263,013 63,169,102 {41,316,970) 15,000 226,130,148
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 129,580,664 11,209,536 {1,421,431) e 140,068,769
5,143,519,688 515,238,441 (77,233,404) (1,260,830) 5,580,263, 895

Construction in progre ™
for installation 153,602,180 62,321,305 - {32,255,732) 183,667,953

®2,872,001,158  P38B,216,199 (R7,634,814} B P3,252,581,543
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2010
Additions/
Depresiation
(see Notes 21
Januvary | and 22) Drsposals  Reclassifications Docemiber 31
Cost:
Buildings, towers and im nis £2,640,110,537 R20,870,175 (#4,800,342)  (R195747,664) $2,460432,706
Antenna and wansimiiter systems and .
broadcast H 4,052,769,124 186,016,131 52,760,835y 70,865,452 4,256,889 902
Commurnicatio 576,372,201 47,523,060 (13,293,958} 25,604,324 636,205,627
Transpertation cquipm 336,544,464 62,386,026 (77,715,320) 25,702,043 346,917,213
Fumniture, fixtures and e 153,720,112 5.942,323 {545,980} 2,756,763 161,473,218

7.759.516,438 93737715 (149,516.435) {70.819,052)  7.361,018,666

Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization:
Buildings, towers and improvements 856,089,394 110,615,311 {896,394) 1,116,067 966,924,378
Antenna and transmitter systems

t 3,175,013,821 244,043,554 (34,564,080) {19,565,65%) 3,364,927 642

1equipmaont 417,191,279 3,114 291 (2,959,833} 478,256 477,823,991

204,385,626 §7,733.582 {67,853,301) 2,854} 204,263,013

Furniture, fixtures and 118,243,259 11,900,948 {337,807% {25,776} 129,580,664

4,770,923 ,419 304,407,686 (113,811,417) (18,000,000)  5,143,519,688

Construction in progress and equipment for
instzllntion 35443122 105,700,634 - 12,458,424 153,602,180
£3,024,035,141 {B75,666,337) (R35,705,018) (B40,360,628) #2.872,001,158

Depreciation and amortization on property and equipment charged to operations amounted to
£515.24 million, £504.41 million and £555.90 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
These amounts include amortization of previously capitalized borrowing costs amounting to

£10.08 miliion each year. No borrowing cost was capitalized in 2011 and 2010,

The cost of fully depreciated assets still used by the Group amounted to £3,641.83 million and
B3 356,26 millien as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Construction in progress pertains to the costs incurred for signals strengthening of transmitters
nationwide and construction/improvement of studios in the regions and in the GMA Network
Compound Amnex Building,

. Land at Revalued Amounts

2011 2010
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year #2346,039,576 £340,039,576
Additions 6,463,241 —
Balance at end of year 346,502,817 340,039,576
Revaluation increment -
Ralance at beginning and end of year 1,063,082,889 1,063,082,889

£1,409,585,706 £1,403,122.463

Land used in operations were appraised by an independent firm of appraisers on December 23,
2008 and January 5, 2009.

While fair values of the land were not determined as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group’s
management believes that there were no conditions present in 2011 and 2010 that would
significantly reduce the fair value of the tand from that was determined as at January 5, 2009,
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in determining the fair value of the land, the independent appraisers considered the local market
conditions, the extent, character and utility of the property, sales and holding prices of similar
parcels of land and the highest and best use of the land,

14. Investment Properties

2011
Land and Buildings and
Improvements  Improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year $33,399,381 871,326,338 B104,725,719
Additions 576,000 2,235,163 2,815,163
Balance at end of year 33,975,381 73,565,501 107,540,882
- Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of year - 34,346,621 34,346,621
Depreciation during the year
(see Notes 21 and 22) - 3,119,377 3,119,377
Balance at end of year — 37,465,998 37,465,998
Accumulated impairment in vaiue:
Ralance at beginning of year - 7,035,392 7,035,392
Reversal during the year
{see Note 24) - (4,956,215} (4,990,219)
- 2,045,173 2,045,173
£33,975,381 £34,054,330 268,025,711
2010
Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Total
Cosf:
Balance at beginning of year 233,399,381 PH3,137,485 208,536,866
Additions - 6,188,853 6,188,853
Balance at end of year 33,399,381 71,326,338 104,725,719
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of year — 31,784,726 31,784,726
Depreciation during the year
(see Notes 21 and 22) — 2,561,895 2,561,895
Balance at end of year - 34,346,621 34,346,621
Accumulated impairment in value -
Balance at beginning and
end of year - 7,035,392 7,035,352
£33,399.381 £29,944,325 863,343,706

The reversal of previously recognized impairment loss in 2011 resulted from the increase in fair
value of certain buildings and improvements of GMP1 amounting to £4.99 million as determined
by an independent appraiser as at December 31, 2011. The fair market value of investment
properties owned by GMPI and Scenarios amounted to £23.75 mitlion as at December 31, 2011
while the rest of the investment properties owned by the Parent Company and Alta amounted to
£102.13 million as at December 31, 2005, as determined by independent appraisers. The fair
value represents the amount at which the assets can be exchanged between a knowledgeable,
willing seller and a knowledgeable, willing buyer in an arm’s-length transaction at the date of
valuation in accordance with International Valuation Standards.
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While fair values of the majority of investment properties were not determined as at December 31,
2011 and 2010, the Group’s management believes that there were no conditions present in 2011

and 2010 that would significantly reduce the fair value of the investment properties from that

determined in 2005,

2011 2010 2009
Renta! income derived from
investment properties 22,175,581 83251,844 82,250,297
Direct operating expenses
{inciuding repairs and
maintenance) froin
investment properties (3,097,803) (2,561,895) (2,783,436)
(8522,222) P6RG,040 (533,139
15, Orther Noncurrent Assets
2011 2010
Software cosls B48,421,523 30,457,145
Deferred input VAT 36,986,364 26,346,896
Refundable deposits (see Notes 29 and 30 18,925,664 14,132,084
Guarantee deposits 18,086,984 18,959,434
Investment in artworks 18,406,255 10,406,254
Video right and deferred production costs 4,085,340 3,708,732
Others 3,464,497 360,497
B134,406,627 £113.380,042
The movements in software costs follow:
2011 2010
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year 2151,840,863 P121,078,930
Additions 34,678,997 30,761,933
Balance at end of year 186,516,860 151,840,863
Accumulated amortization:
RBalance at beginning of year 112,383,718 62,170,714
Amortization during the year (see Note 22) 25,711,615 20,213,004
Balance at end of year 138,095,337 112,383,718
248,421,523 B39.457,145
16, Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities
2011 2010
Trade:
Suppliers B301,091,337 £338,169,060
Related parties (see Note 19) 19,331,690 7.762,136

(Forward)
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2011
2756,299,280

2010
$£853,989,103

Payable to government agencies
Accrued:

Sick and vacation leaves 232,224,516 187,856,299
Production costs 171,706,931 197,203,867
Payroll and talent fees 132,262,774 125,505,014
Commission 37,667,964 28,688,244
Other general and administrative expenses 91,456,382 69,068,856
Others 24,128,758 21,035,591

21,755,563,632  B1.3819,281,172

Trade payables (o suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are normally seftled on terms ranging from
7-30 days.

Terms and conditions of payables to related parties are discussed in Note 19.

Payable to government agencies is remitted within 30 days after reporting period.

Accried sick and vacation leaves comprise of accumulated allowable credit leaves. Excess sick
leaves over maximum credit leaves are reimbursed to the employees annually while excess

vacation leaves are forfeited.

Accrued expenses and other payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled within the
next financial year.

17,

Obligations for Program and Other Rights

This account represents Habifities to foreign and local film suppliers for program and other rights
purchased by the Group. The liabilities are noninterest-bearing and are generally payable in equal
monthly or quarterly installments. The amounts presented in the consolidated statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2011 and 2010 represent the face amounts of the obligations
which are expected to be settled within the next 12 months.

18. Equity

a. Capital Stock

Number Number
of Preferred of Common
Shares Shares
Authorized - B0.20 par value per preferred
share/R1.00 par value per common share 7,500,000,000 5,000,000,000
Subscribed and issued at beginning
and end of vear 7,500,000,000 3,364,692,000
Treasury shares 492,816 3,645,000
Underlying shares of acquired Philippine Dleposit
Receipts (PDRs) - 750,600
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The preferred shares are of equal rank, preference and priority and are identical in all respect
regardless of series. Preferred shares are participating at the rate of one fifth (1/5) of the
dividend paid to commion shares, the rate of which is adjusted proportionately by the Parent
Company’s BOD consequent to any stock split or stock dividend declaration affecting the
common shares and preferred shares. Preferred shares are convertible at the option of the
shareholders at the ratio of five {5) preferred shares to one (1) common share, based on par
value.

Preferred shares enjoy priority over commen shares in the distribution of assets of the Parent
Company in the event of dissolution and liguidation, at such rates, terms and conditicns as the
BOD may determine, Each preferred share is entitled to one vote and shall have the same
voting rights as the common shares,

The Parent Company’s BOD may specify other terms and conditions, quaiifications,
restrictions and privileges of the preferred shares or series/classes thereof, insofar as such
terms, conditions, qualifications, restrictions and privileges are not inconsistent with the
articles of incorporation and any applicable law or regulation.

The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company’s registration of securities
with the SEC which was approved on June 20, 2007, as required by Securities Regulation
Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011):

Authorized Number of Issue/Offer

Securities Number of shares issued shares Price
fnitial public offering 91,346,000 91,346,000 28,50
Underlying common shares

of PDRs 945,432,000 945,432 000 8.50
Over-allotment common shares 13,701,000 13,701,000 g.50
Common shares covering

employee stock option plan 57,000,000 57,000,000 8.50
Philippine deposits receipts 945,432,000 945,432,000 8.50

Retained Earnings

The retained earnings of the Parent Company is restricted for the payment of dividends to the
extent of £34.27 million as at December 31, 2011 and 20190, representing the cost of shares
held in treasury amounting to #28.48 million in 2011 and 2010 and underlying shares of the
acquired PDRs amounting to £5.79 million in 2011 and 2010.

Consolidated retained earnings include undeclared retained earnings of subsidiaries amounting
t0 54,80 million and 38.21 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, The
Parent Company’s retained sarnings available for dividend declaration, computed based on the
guidelines provided in SEC Memorandum Circular No. 11, amounted to £2,262.68 million
and ¥2,774.60 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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The BOD of the Parent Company approved the declaration of the following cash dividends, in
2011, 2010 and 2009:

Total Cash

Cash Dividend Dividend

Year Declaration Date Record Date Per Share Declared
2011 March 11,2011 April §, 2011 P45 ?2,187,089,297
2010 March 5, 2010 April 14, 2010 B0.45 B2,187,089,297
October 28, 2010 November 17, 2010 0,25 1,215,049,609
£3,402,138,906

2000 April 2, 2009 April 21, 2609 R0.35 £1,701,069,453

Events afier Reporting Period

On March 28, 2012, the BOD approved the Parent Company’s declaration and distribution of'a
cash dividend of 20.40 per share totaling £1,944.08 million to all steckholders of record as at
April 16, 2012,

19.

Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in meking financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to comman

confroi,

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured, interest-free and settlement occurs in cash, except
for cash advances intended for future capital subscription. There have been no guarantees
provided or received for any related party receivable or payable. For the years ended

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Group did not make any provision for doubtful accounts
relating to amounts owed by related parties. An assessment is undertaken at each financial
vear-end by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the
related party operates.

Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Permanent

3 and Trade Trade
Nature of Joint Ventures  Receivable Paynbles
Retated Party  Relationship Transaction Year Revenucs Expenses  (sse Note 11) (see Nole 7) {see Nole 16}
RGMA Associaic Alriime 2013 PO6,SE61,323  BES022,107 B BGDAZ22I9 214,488,308
sales and 2010 F4B750,798 41,353,408 - 55,898,035 6,178,754
commissions
GMA Kapuse Common Grant of 2411 - 1,702,205 - -
Foundation,  stockholders noninterest- 2010 - 11,567,888 -
Inc, (GMA bearing
Feundation) advances
INQ7 Joint veniure Grant of 2011 - - 2,610,287
nepinterest- 2010 - 2,610,287 -~ -
bearing

{Forward})

sAdunraps
alyanogs
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Permanent

Associntes and Trade Trade
Nature of Joint Ventures Receivabls Payabics
Related Party  Relationship Transaction Year Revenuss Expenses  (see Note 11} {see Note 7} (see Note 16)
Mont-Aire Associate Grant of 2011 B B PB4,475370 f 2
nortinterest- 2010 - - 84,475370 - -
bearing
advances
image One Assotiate Advertising fee 2011 - - - - 1,023,382
2010 - - -~ - 1,023,382
Belo, Gozon, The Parent Legal and 2011 - 16,769,120 - - -
Elma Law Company's retainers’ 2010 - 6,498,421 - - -
(BGE Law), Chairman of foes
the Board is a
principal
pariner of
BGE Law
Others Common Consulting fee 2011 - 3,820,000 - - 3,826,008
stockholders and others 2010 — 1,439,829 - 560,000

2011 P60,561,323 P101,313.432 BR7,085,657 R60,622,215 RI19.331,690
2010 148,750,798 60,859,546 87,085,657 59,808 030 1,762,136

The advances made by the Parent Company to Mont-Aire in previous years are intended for future
capital subseription.

Others

These include FLG Management and Development Corporation, 3LM Koblenz Management
Corporation and Majent Management and Development Corporation which are owned or partly
owned by some officers of the Parent Company and GMPL. GMPI employs the services of these
related parties in sourcing and hiring competent and capable personnel and in conducting studies
to improve GMPD’s capability in providing efficient services to clients.

The compensation of key management personnel of the Group, by benefit type, follows;

2011 2010 2009
Salaries and other short-term benefits P247,631,477 P252,212,804 RB283,304,804
Pension benefits 38,455,825 37,374,611 37,451,095
B256,087,302 P286,587,415 320,845,989
20, Net Bevenues
2011 2010 2009
Television and radio airtime 211,881,201,505 R13,192,728,856 R12,691,612,973
Subscription income (see Note 26) 964,592,031 925,370,205 855,182,973
Production and others 237,012,538 181,417,798 224,080,655
13,082,806,071 14,299,516,859 13,770,876,643
Agency cominissions (1,894,059,868) (2,204,415,271) (2,060,006,684)
Co-producers’ shares (31,702,664) {79,964,172) (210,362,995

(1,025,762,332) _ (2.284,379,443)  (2,270,369,679)
$11,187,043,530  B12,015,137,416  F11,500,506,964
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21. Production Costs

2011 2010 2009
Talent fees and production personnel
costs (see Note 23) £1776,389,552  B2,330,496,360  £2,101,146,857
Rental {se¢ Note 26) 763,296,407 658,905,787 613,057,118
Tapes, sets and preduction supplies 572,365,965 534,769,220 488,161,380
Program and other rights usage
(see Note 8} 317,520,415 463,861,354 524,436,570
Facilities and production services 249,539,604 197,433,955 256,145,441
Depreciation and amortization
{see Notes 12 and 14) 224,202,422 210,468,361 206,608,697
Transportation and communication 201,652,534 197,286,664 100,798,448
£5,104,966,899 £4,593,221,701 P4.290,354,511
29. General and Administrative Expenses
2011 2010 2009
Personnel costs (see Note 23) £1,714,2006,604 £1,626,148,103 P1,612,077,169
Advertising 435,348,586 441,373,131 289,620,121
Depreciation and amottization
{see Notes 12 and 14) 294,155,396 296,501,220 352,078,208
Communication, light and water 270,459,165 240,967,848 203,915,007
Taxes and licenses 211,405,328 161,293,163 191,409,221
Repairs and maintenance 187,580,420 202,020.277 145,085,737
Professional fees 140,393,183 136,879,522 145,306,859
Research and surveys 112,664,696 105,380,084 96,084,168
Sales incentives 101,227,612 129,027,683 77,240,586
Rental (see Note 26) 88,633,501 78,591,408 80,347,252
Transportation and ravel 63,559,183 68,532,979 68,937,835
Amortization of software costs
(see Note 15) 25,711,619 20,213,004 15,661,449
Provision for doubtful accounts, net
of reversal (see Note 7) 24,549,423 30,599,358 8,168,203
Insurance 21,872,912 18,631,682 15,263,455
Materials and supplies 19,745,493 20,890,902 20,032,851
Entertzinment, amusement and
recreation 14,372,425 13,996,511 11,318,261
Dues and subscriptions 11,036,693 11,391,554 11,345,758
Others 152,355,364 140,115,206 168,077,03C

P3,879,277,659 $£3,732,554,234 £3,451,969,170

Pravision for doubtful accounts in 2009 is presented net of reversal of long-outstanding television
and radio airtime receivables, previously covered by allowance for doubtfyi accounts, which were
subsequently collected in 2009 amounting to P56.91 million.
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23, Personnel Costs

2011 2010 2609
Talent fees B2,660,734,083 P2.216,418,735 B1,993,248,283
Salaries and wages 1,268,569,522 1,165,840,843 1,022,555,260
Emplovee benefits and allowances 417,563,885 446,428,667 551,097,150
Sick and vacation leaves expense 72,680,965 33,634,836 31,153,159
Net pension expense (see Note 25) 71,047,761 94,321,384 115,170,174
B4,490,596.216 £3,956,644,465 £3,713,224,026

The abave amounts were distributed as foilows:
2011 2010 2009

Production costs {see Note 21)
General and administrative expenses

$2,776,389,552

£2,330,456,360

P2,101,1406,857

(see Note 22} 1,714,200,604 1,626,148,105 1,612,077,169
P4,490,596,216 £3,556,644,465 P3,713,224,026
24, Others
2011 2010 2009
Gain on sale of property
and equipment 216,040,347 £13,853,541 210,158,900
Tax refund of GMA Pinoy TV 14,781,093 17,845,874 13,336,397
Merchandising license fees and
others 6,781,724 1,076,674 1,661,697
Net foreign currency exchange loss (5,772,109 (25,511,661 (9,176,385
Reversal of impairment loss
{see Note 14) 4,990,219 - -
Commissions 4,011,520 3,515,842 4036479
Rental {see Note 26) 3,815,060 4,947 469 4,525,381
Income from mall shows 2,443,521 1,873,000 5,741,334
Sales of DVDs and integrated
receiver-decoders 1,196,179 2,516,687 3,889,832
Dividends 41,529 58,957 22,691
Income from unretwned video tapes 34,925 508,106 1,241,144
Discount on tax credit ceriificates - 2,670,692 7,408,499
Proceeds from nsurance claims - — 412,553
Reversal of long-outstanding
payables and reimbursement of
IPO charges by selling
shareholders - - §1,636
Others 2,719,868 1,189,981 —
B51,083,876 P24,545,162 243,340,160
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25. Pension Benelits
The following tables summarize the components of net pension expense recognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the funded status and amounts recognized

in the consolidated statements of financial position for the plans:

Net pension expense {see Note 23}

2011 2010 2009

Current service cost B60,692,904 P64.975,622 P61,730,1561

Interest cost 65,716,350 79,841,216 62,345,036
Expected return on plan assels (55,423,986} (43,864,915) (18,018,493)
Actuarial losses (gains) recognized 62,493 (6,630,539) 9,107,470
B71,047.7601 P04 321,384 P115,170,174

Pension liability
2011 2010 2009
Present value of defined benefit

obligation (RO07,487,812) (B828,936,473) (8721,781,243)
Fair value of plan assets 527,997,996 615,649,657 487,231,208
(379,489,816} (213,286,816 (234,550,035)
Unrecognized actuarial losses (gains) 66,518,970 {39,354,197) (45,984,736}

(B312,970,846)

(P252,641,013)

($280,534,771)

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2011 2010 20009
Balance at beginning of year PB28.,936,473 R721,781,243 P746,444,672
Current service cost 60,692,904 64,975,622 61,736,161
Interest cost 65,716,350 79,841,216 62,345,036
Benefits paid (40,569,500) (37,601,608) (22,594,803)
Actuarial gains (7,288,415) (126,149,823)

Balance at end of year B9G7,487,812

P828,936,473

R721,781,243

The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2016

26811 2009
Balance at beginning of year R615,649,6587 P487,231,208 P149.767.773
Contribution during the year 4,898,620 122,215,142 123,470,210
Benefits paid (40,569,500) (37,661,608} (22,594,803)
Expected return on plan assets 55,423,986 43,864,915 18,018,493
Actuarial gains {losses) (107,404,767) 218,569,535

Balance at end of year B527,997,996

615,649,057

P487,231,208

Actual retum {loss) on plan assels (B51,980,781)

P£43,850,809

$236,588,028

At each reporting period, the Group determines its distribution based on the performance of its
retirement fund. ‘
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The major categories of plan assets as percentage of fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Equity securities S BO0% 82% 83%
Investments in government securities 7% 8% 12%
Cash and cash eguivalents 3% 8% 1%
Others 0% 2% 4%
100% 100% 10G%

The principal assumptions used in determining pension lability for the Group’s plans are shown
below:

2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 6-11% 10-11% 7-8%
Expected rate of return on plan

assets 9-16% 8-10% 9%

Expected rate of salary increase 6% 0% 6%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The amounts for the current and previous four vears are as follows:

2011 2010 2008 2008 2007
Present value of defined benefit obligation (R907,457,812) (R828036,473) (R721,781,243) (R746,444,672) (B653,787,108)
Plan assets 527,997,996 615,649,657 487,231,208 146,767,173 131,559,055
Deficit (379.489,816)  (213.286,816)  (234,550,035) (596,676,899}  (522,228,033)
Experience adjustments on plan Habilities - - 126,149,823 - 124,676,343
Experience adjustments on plan assets - - 218,565,535 {66,781,596) (92,133}

26.

Agreements

Lease Agreements

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as lessee. The Group entered into various lease
agreements for the land, building, studio spaces, satellite and airtime that it presently occupies and
uses for periods ranging from three to twenty five years. The leases are cancellable at the Group’s
option,

The Parent Company also entered into a non-cancellable lease which will expire in 2012, The
rental rate is subject to 10% annual escalation rate commencing on the third year of the lease.

Total rental expense amounted to £851.93 million, #737.50 million and P693.40 million in 2011,
2010 and 2000, respectively (see Notes 21 and 22).

The future minimum rentals payable under the non-cancellable operating leases follow:

1611 2010

(Tn Millions}
Within one year B62.00 P118.38
After one year but not more than five years 62.00

B62.00 2180.38
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Operating Lease - Group as Lessor. The Group also leases out certain properties for a peried of
one year, renewable annually. Total rental income amounted to 83,82 millicn, 24.95 million and
24.53 miflion in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 24).

Subscription Agreements

The Parent Company entered into various subscription agreements with international cable
providers for the airing of its programs and shows abroad. The agreements generally have terms
of three (3) to five (3) years and are based on certain agreed service package rates.

Total subscription income amounted to 2964.59 million, B925.37 million and 2855.18 million in
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 20),

27

Income Taxes

The components of the Group’s provision for income tax are as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Current income tax:
RCIT £556,410,645 BO66,162,662 R1,026,567,363
MCIT 1,837,729 239,980 210,085
557,448,374 066,402,642 1,026,777,448

Deferred tax expense (benefin)
relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary
difference (26,596,367) 6,980,993 (6,132,658)
P530,852,007 2073 383,635 P1,020,644,790

Income tax related to the revaluation of AFS financial assets amounted to £0.67 million,
20.01 million, 80.52 mitlion in 2011, 2010 and 2609, respectively.

Current Income Tax
The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate and effective income tax rates on income
before income tax is shown below:

2011 2010 2009
Statutory income tax rate 30.00% 30.00% 30.00%
Additions (deductions) in income tax
rate resulting from;
Income tax holiday (6.82) 420 (3.31}
Interest income already
subjected to final tax {0.38) 0.6 {0.45%
Nonclaimable foreign tax cradit 0.94 0.54 0.52
Equity in net losses {earnings) of
assoclates and joint ventures {007y . (0.05) 0.09
Others - net {0.03) (0.02) (0.06)

Effective income tax rates 23,04% 25.65% 26.55%
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Deferred Income Tax

The components of deferred tax assets and labilities follow:

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts P72,705,756 65,565,880
Accrued sick and vacation leaves 68,670,434 58,302,408
Pension liability 92,570,893 74,511,935
Accrued rent 4,220,634 10,970,867
MCIT 1,083,681 821,828
Discounting of long-term obligation
for program and other rights 635,659 635,659
NOLCO 40,226 524,416
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 12,520 2,251,503
Allowance for impairment loss - 1,923,146
Unamortized past service costs - 262,203
£240,349,803 £215,769,845
Deferred tax liabilities:

Revaluation increment in land (F318,924,867) (B318,924,867)
Unamortized capitalized borrowing costs (27,208,313 {30,231,459}
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (1,606,737 -
Revaluation of AFS financial assets {286,410 (213.410)
(2347,426,327) (R349,369,736)

The components of unrecognized deferred tax assets of Scenarios, GMA Records and GMA Films

follow:

2011 2010

Allewance for doubtful accounts $1,733,390¢ 21,508,440
NOLCO 1,150,629 -
Pension liability 561,737 330,017
Accrued sick and vacation leaves 407,764 313,791
MCIT 30,016 -
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - 37,887
B3,B83,532 R2,190,135

The above deferred tax assets were not recognized as management believes that future taxable

income against which the deferred tax assets can be used may not be available,

As at December 31, 2011, the Group’s MCIT and NOLCQ are as follows:

Date Paid/Incurred Carry forward Benefit Up To MCIT NOLCO
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2012 P198,429 B
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2613 254314 -
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2014 670,954 3,969,517

£1,123,697 R3969,517
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Board of Investments (BO1) Regulation
On February 19, 2007, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new export producer
of television and motion picture on a non-pioneer status under the Omnibus Investments Code of

1987 (Executive Order No. 226). As a registered enterprise the Parent Company is entitled to
income tax holiday for the registered activities for four years starting from registration date.

On December 10, 2010, the BO1 granted the Parent Company an additional one (1) year of tax

holiday for its registered activity from February 19, 2611 to February 18, 2012,

The total tax incentives availed of in 2011, 2010 and 2009 amounted toc B153.21 millien,
2159.87 million and P134.88 million, respectively.

28. EPS Computation

The computation of basic and diluted EPS follows:

2011 2010 2009
Net income (a) ®1,715,138,372 £2,820,827,053 F2,818,250,808
Less attributable to preferred
shareholders 529,519,974 870,532,881 869,737,829
Net income attributable to common
sharehoiders (b) P1,185,618,398 £1,950,294,172 P1,948,512,%79

Common shares issued at the
beginning of year

3,364,692,000

3,364,692,000

3,364,692,000

Treasury shares {sce Nots 18) (3,643,600 (3,645,000) (3,645,000
Underlying shares on acquired PDRs
{see Note 18) (750,000 {750,000) (750,000)

Weighted average number of
common shares for basic EPS {¢}

3,360,257,000

3,360,297,000

3,360,297.000

Weighted average number of
commeon shares

3,360,2597,000

3,360,297,000

3,360,297,000

Effect of dilution - agsumed

conversion of preferred shares 1,504,000,600 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
Reacquired preferred shares (98,563) (98,563) (58,563)
Weighted average number of

commeoen shares adjusted

for the effect of dilution (d) 4,860,198,437 4.860,198,437 4. 860,198,437
Basic EPS {b/c) £0.333 £0.580 £0,580
Diluted EPS (a/d) £0.353 20,580 20,580

29. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main
purposes of these {inancial instruments include raising financing for the Group’s operations and
managing identified financial risks. The Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and nontrade receivabies, refundable deposits, trade payables and other current labilities
(excluding payable to government agencies), obligations for program and other rights and
dividends payable, which arise directly from its operations and AFS financial assets. The main
risks arising from the use of financial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign currency exchange

risk, interest rate risk and credit risk.




49 -

The BOD reviews and approves the Group’s objectives and pelicies.

Liguidity Risk. The Group is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business
environment and/or its operations would result in substantially higher working capital
requirements and subsequently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital.

The Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining a pool of credit lines from {inancial institutions
that exceeds expected financing requirements for working capital. The Group likewise regularly
evaluates other financing instruments and arrangements to broaden the Group’s range of financing
SOUTCes.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets used for liquidity
rigk management purposes and financial liabilities based on confractual undiscounted payments as
at December 31

2011
L.ess than
On Pemand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months Total
Cash and cash equivalents £739,028,819  B468,947,304 P~ PB1,207,976,123
Trade receivables:
Television and radio airtime 1,373,232,296  2,052,849,685 205,371,623 3,631,453,604
Subscriptions 170,948,093 140,911,528 - 311,859,621
Related party - 60,622,219 - 60,622,219
Others 29,682,636 65,521,276 - 155,203,912
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and
employees 12,465,421 22,272,988 - 34,738,409
Others 19,944,227 15,274,746 - 35,218,973

$2,405301,492 P2,826,399,746  B205,371,623 P5,437,072,861

Trade payables and other current

Habilities* 280,410,680 432,488,052 286,365,610 $99,204,357
Obligations for program and other

rights ' - 12,456,082 27,387,733 39,843,815

Dividends payable 4,942,280 - - 4,942,280

P285,352,060  B444,944,134  R313,753,353 P1,044,050,447

* Excluding payable 1o government agencies which s not considered as financial liability.

2010
{ess than
On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months Total
Cash and cash equivalents P708,365,390 P323.980,450 P B1,232,351,840

Trade receivables:
Television and radio airtime 1,870,127806  3,046,277,536 58,018,080 4,974,423,522

Subscriptions 149,515,861 118,160,383 - 267,676,284
Related party - 59,898,039 - 59,898,039
Others 97,765,251 19,524 675 - 117,289,925
MNontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and
employees 8,167,850 1,457,562 - 9,625,412
Others 103,065,066 15,080,093 - 118,145,159

®2,037.007,364 PB3,784,384,738 58,018,080 P6,779,410,182
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2010
Less than
On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months Total
Trade payables and other current
Habilities* 364,235,021  P424,465983  R176,591,065  P965292,06%
(bligations for program and other
rights - 56,536,850 19,057,278 75,594,128
Dividends payable 5,493,035 - - 5,493,035

P360,728,056  P481,002833 P195,648,343 P1,046,379,232

* Excluding payable to government agencies which is not considered as financial liability.

Fareign Currency Exchange Risk, Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk results from its business
transactions depominated in foreign currencies. It is the Group’s policy to ensure that capabilities
exist for active but conservative management of its foreign currency exchange risk.

The Group’s fereign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities follow:

2011 2010

Assels

Cash and cash equivalents $5,781,923 B233.479,504 $7,899,864 P346,330,038
Trade receivables 7,269,030 318,674,275 6,280,149 275,321,732

$13,050,953 P572,153,779  $14,180,013 P621,651,770

tiabilities

Trade payables $239,042  R10,479,601 $280,864  P12,313,078
Obligations for program and other rights 335,672 14,715,860 1,545,242 67,743,409

$874,714  B25,195,461 51,826,106 880,056,487

in translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities into peso amounts,
the exchange rate used was £43.84 to USF1.00, the Philippine peso to LLS. dollar exchange rate as
at December 31, 2011 and 2010,

"The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in US$ exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax from
reporting period up to next reporting period {due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and lizbilities). There is no impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting profit
or loss.

Appreciation Effect on

{Depreciation) income before

of B income Tax

2611 0.50 {£6,24 million)
(0,50 6.24 miilion

2010 0.50 (B6.18 million)

{0.50) 6.18 million




Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure 10
changes in interest rates is aitributed to cash and cash equivalents and shori-term loans.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debs.

The foliowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax from reporting

period up to next reporting period. There is no impact on the Group’s equity other than those
already affecting profit or loss.

Increase
{Decrease) in  Effect on Income Before Income Tax
Basis Points 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents 50 25,97 million B5.05 million
(50) (5.97 million) (6.05 million)
Short-term loans 50 (4.75 miilion) (1.50 million)
: (50) 4,75 million 1.50 million

Equity Price Risk. Equity price risk arises from the changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of the individual stocks traded in stock exchange. The Group’s exposure o equity price risk
arises from its investment in quoted equity shares, The Group’s policy is to maintain the risk to an
acceptable level. Movement of share price is monitored regularly to determine its impact on its
statement of financial position. As such, the Group’s exposure to equity price risk is deemed
minimal.

Credit Risk, Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of
credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. It is the Group’s policy to enter into
transactions with a diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group ensures that sales of products and services are made to customers with
appropriate credit history, The Group has an internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit
and management of credit exposures. The Group has made provisions, where necessary, for
potential losses on credits extended. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the instruments. The
Group does not require any collateral for its financial assets.

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Group using high grade and standard grade
as internal credit ratings.

«  High Grade. Pertains to a counterparty who is not expected by the Group to default in settling
its obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal. This normally includes prime financial
institutions and companies and top 20 advertisers in terms of volume of sales, who
consistently pay on or before the maturity date and related parties.

Standard Grade. Pertains to & counterparty with tolerable delays (normally from 1 to 30 days)
in settling its obligations to the Group. The delays may be due to cut-off differences. This
includes customers outside the top 20 advertisers In terms of volume of sales, who
consistently pay on maturity date and officers and employees.
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As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the credit guality of the Group’s financial assets is as follows:

2011
Neither Past Due Nor Impaired Past Due
but not
High Grade Standard Grade Impaired Impaired Toial
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents®*  21,193,084,343 B 2 - P1,193,084,345
Trade receivables:
Television and radio
airtime 107,874,576 1,202,591,926 2,086,346,618 234,640,454 3,631,453,604
Subseriptions 140,911,528 - 170,948,093 - 311,859,621
Related party 60,622,219 - . - 60,622,219
Others - 65,521,276 86,385,502 3,297,134 135,203,912
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers '
and employees - 34,470,831 247,578 - 34,738,409
Others - 3,076,903 32,142,870 - 35,218,973
Refundable deposits 18,925,664 - - — 18,925,664
$£1,521,418,332  B1,305,660,036 ¥2,376,089,861 B237.937,618 $5,441,106,747
*Excluding cash on hand amounting to B14.89 million as at December 31, 2011
2010
Neither Past Due Nov Impaired Past Due
High Grade  Standard Grade _but not fmpaired Impaired Total
Loans and receivables: -
Cash and cash equivalents*  B1,209,617,365 P P P P1,209.617365
Trade receivables:
Television and radio
airtime 1,489,990,113 1,556,287,423 1,717,305,6%C 210,840,896 4,974,423.522
Subscriptions 174,784,481 - 62,891,803 - 267,676,284
Related party 56,208,036 - e - 59,898,039
Others - 19,671,202 65,071,425 2,547,299 117,289,926
Nontrade receivables:
Advances io officers and
employees - 1,457,562 8,167,850 - 9,625,412
Others 3,523,807 11,356,280 103,065,066 - 118,145,159
Refundable deposits - 14,132,084 - - — 14,132,084
£7,951,045.889 B1,588,972,473  $1.016,501,234 B213.388,195 B6,770,807,791

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to B22.73 million as at December 34 2010,

Canital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support ifs business and maximize shareholder

value,

The Group manages its capital siructure and makes adjustments to it, in the ligh

1t of changes in

economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, pay off existing debis, return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the three years ended

December 31,2011, 2010 and 2009,

The Group monitors its capital gearing by measuring the ratio of interest-bearing debt to total
equity. Interest-bearing debt includes all short-term and long-term debt. The Group has no
existing interest-bearing debt as at December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Group’s total equity as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 amounted to 29,827.44 million and £10,298.63 million,

respectively.
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30. Financial Assets and Liabilities

The table below presents the carrying values and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,

by category and by class, as at December 31:

2011

2010

Carrving Value

Fair Value

Camrying Value

Fair Value

Financisgl Assets
l.oans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables:
Television and radio airtime

21,207,976,123

3,396,613,120

$£1,207,976,123

3,396,813,120

£1,232,351,840

4,763,582,626

PB1,232,351,840

4,763,582,626

Subscriptions 311,859,621 311,859,621 267,676,284 267,676,284

Related parties 60,622,219 60,622,219 55,898,039 59,898,039

Others 151,906,778 151,906,778 114,742,627 114,742,627

Nontrade receivables:

Advances to officers and

employees 34,738,409 34,738,409 9,623,412 9,625,412

Others 35,218,973 35,218,973 118,145,159 118,145,159

Refundable deposits 18,925,664 16,821,962 14,132,084 12,230,259

5,218,060,907 5,215,9587,208 6,380,134,071 6,578,252,286

AFS financial assets 105,796,848 105,796,848 104,566,848 104,966,848

$5,323,857,755 85,321,734,053 B6,683,120,919  P6,683,210,134

Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings:
Trade payables and other current

liabitities™® 7999,264,352
Obligations for program and other

rights 39,843,815

Dividends payable 4,942,280

£999,264,352

39,843,815
4,942,280

£865,292,060

75,594,128
5,493,035

£065,292 069

75,594,128
5,493,035

P£1,044,050,447

£1,044,050,447

£1,046,379.232

£1,046,379,232

*Excluding payable to governmant agencies which are not considered as financial Hability.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Trade and Nontrade Receivables

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents and trade and nontrade receivables are the
approximate fair values primarily due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial

instruments.

Refundable Deposits

The fair value of refundable deposits is based on the present value of the future discounted cash
flows, Discount rates used range from 2.17% to 3.17% in 2011 and 3.43% to 4,10% in 2010.

AFS Financial Assets

These are investments in quoted and unguoted shares of stock. The fair value of quoted shares is
based on quoted market prices. For unguoted shares, the carrying amounts (cost less allowance
for impairment losses) approximate fair values due to unpredictable nature of future cash flows
and lack of other suitable methods for arriving at reliable fair value. ' :
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Trade Pavables and Other Current Liabilities, Obligations for

Program and Qther Rights and Dividends Pavable

The carrying values of trade payables and other current liabilities, obligations for program and
other rights and dividends payable are the approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term
maturity of these financial instruments.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

a. Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

b. Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or lability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices); and

c. Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs),

The financial instruments carried at fair value only pertain to the Group’s AFS financial assets,
which consist of quoted equity securities and club shares. As at December 31, 2611 and 2010,
these securities were categorized under Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group has no
financial instruments categorized under Level 2 and Level 3. There were no transfer between
levels of fair value measurement in 2011 and 2010,

31, Reclassifications

In 2011, the Group reclassified certain expense account, The 2010 and 2009 consolidated
statements of financial position were revised to conform to the 2011 presentation and
classification. The Group did not present a consolidated statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period since the reclassifications made were minimal and
did not have an impact on the consolidated net income,
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULES
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2011

1. Supplemental schedules required by Annex 68-E

A. Financial assets Attached
B. Amounts receivable from directors, officers, employees, Not applicable
related parties and principal stockholders (other than
related parties)
C. Amounts of receivables and payable from/to related parties  Aftached
which are eliminated during consolidation process of
financial statements
D. Intangible assets - other asset Attached
E. Long-term debt Not applicable
F. Indebtedness to related parties (Long-term loans from Not applicable
related parties)
G. Guarantees of securities of other issuers Not applicable
. Capital stock Attached
i[.  Schedule of all the effective standards and interpretations Attached
I1I. Reconciliation of retained earnings available for dividend Attached
declaration

IV. Map of the relationships of the Company within the Group Attached



GMA NETWORK, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

1. SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-E

AS AT DECERMBER 31, 2011

Schedule A. Financial Assetls

Amount shown
Name of issuing entity ~ Number of shares or  in the statements

Value based on
market quotation

Income

and association of each  principal amount of of financial atend of received and
issue honds and rates position _ reporting period accrued
Cash in Banks - £739,028,815 - $1,513,838
Peso Placements

Abacus Capital & - -

Investiment

Corporation R133,607,322 12,602,034
Philippine National - -

Bank 117,408,878 3,198,058
Land Bank of the - -

Philippines 75,000,600 2,918,674
Malayan Bank - 50,000,000 - 1,917,764
Unicapital, inc. - 32,001,150 — 1,398,620
Metrobank - 2,458,007 - ~1
Philippine Bank of - -
Communications - 1,171,,249
Union Bank of the - -

Philippines - 1,081,913
Banco De Oro - — - 1,089,502
Asia United Bank - - - 198,319
Doliar Placements - -

Asia United - Dollar - -

Placement 6,098,019 113,538
Fastwest - Dollar - -

Placement 29,565,215 480,964
UBP - Dollar - -

Placement 22,768,713 472,546
Total Placements . - $58,431,947 21,067,448




Amount shown

Value based on

Name of issuing entity ~ Number of shares or  in the statements  market quotation Income

and association of each  principal amount of of financial atend of received and

EERE bonds and rates position  reporting period acerued

AFS Financial Assefs

Philippine Long

Distance Telephone

Company (FLDT) 21,810 243,400 £2243.400 B

Manila Electric

Company shares 45,108 7,467,200 7,467,200 -

Export - Industry Bank 5,545,000 2,107,160 -

Unicanital, Inc. 51,124,300 -

Manila Southwoods A 1 330,000 330,000 -

Royale Tagaytay

{Tagaytay Country

Club) pi 290,000 260,060 -

Metropelitan Club

(Metroclub) A 3 1,150,600 1,150,000 -

Baguio Country Club i 650,000 650,000 —

Ayala Alabang

Country Club - A 1 1,800,600 1,800,060 -

Camp John Hay Golf

Club 1 100,000 100,600 -

Mabuhay Philippines

Satellite 29,060,000 -

Optima Studio 11,023,156 -

Others 511,692 -
2105,796,848 212,030,600 B
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Schedule D. Intangible Asset - Other Asset
Other
charges
Beginning Additions at Charge to cost Charged to additions Ending
Description balance cost and expenses  other accounts (deduction) balance
Program P452,015,772 2440,091,70% (2273,054,958) (22,702,200} B~ B616,350,263
rights
Story formal 89,563,129 21,354,264 (39,425,457) - - 71,491,936
rights
Film rights 19,195,952 28,000,000 (5,040,000) - 42,155,952
Software 39,457,145 34,675,997 (25,711,619} 48,421,523
cost
2600,231,998 B524,121,970  (R343,232,034) (82,702,260} B R778,419,674
Schedule H. Capital Stock
Number of
Number of shares shares
issued and  reserved for
outstanding as options,
shown under Wwarrants, Directors,
Number of related statements  conversion ' Number of officers,
Title of shares of financial and other  shares held by and
is5ue authorized  position caption rights related parties  employees Others
Common 5,000,000,000 3,361,047,000 NA 3,103,590,848 7,888,356 249,567,796
Preferred 7,500,000,000 7,499,507,184 NA  7,428,344,388 27,294 71,135,502



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

1. SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND

INTERPRETATIONS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2011

1. List of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) effective as at December

31,2011

7 PFRSs Adepted/Not adopted/Not applicable

PERS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards Adopted

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment Not applicable

PERS 3, Business Combinations Not applicable

PFRS 4, Insurance Coniracts Not applicable

PERS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Adopted
Discontinued Operations

PERS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral | Not applicable
Resources

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures Adopted

PFRS 8§, Operating Segments Adopted

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements Adopted

PAS 2, Inventories Adopted

PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows Adopted

PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Adopted
Accounting Estimates and Evrors

PAS 10, Events after the Reporting Period Adopted

PAS 11, Construction Contracts Not applicable

PAS 12, Income Taxes Adopted

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment Adopted

PAS 17, Leases Adopted

PAS 18, Revenue Adopted

PAS 19, Employee Benefits Adopted

PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Not applicable
Disclosure of Government Assistance

PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Adopted
Exchange Rates

PAS 23, Borrowing Costs Adopted

PAS 74, Related Party Disclosures Adopted

PAS 26, Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Adopted
Benefit Plans

PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Adopted
Statements

PAS 28, Investments in Associates Adopted

PAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

Not applicable

| PAS 31, Inferests in Joint Ventures

Adopted




[ -

-

Interesis arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-6, Liabilities
arising from Participating in a Specific Market -

Not applicable

PIRSs Adepted/Not adopted/Not applicable J
PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation Adepted |
PAS 33, Earnings per Share Adopted
PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting Not applicable
PAS 36, Impairment of Assets Adopted
PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Adopted
Contingent Assels
PAS 38, Intangible Assets Adopted
PAS 39, Financial Instruments. Recognition and Adopted
| Measurement
PAS 40, Investment Property Adopted
PAS 41, Agriculture Not applicable
Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-1, Charnges in Not applicable
Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Stmilar Liabilities
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-2, Members' Not applicable
Shares in Co-operative Entities and Similar '
Instruments
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC4, Determining Not applicable
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-5, Rights to Not applicable

l‘ Waste Flectrical and Electronic Equipment
P

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

hilippine Interpretation IFRIC-7, Applying the Net applicable
Restatement Approach under PAS 29, Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Lconomies
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9, Reassessment of | Not applicable
Embedded Derivatives '
Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-10, Interim Not applicable
Financial Reporiing and Impairment
Whiiippine Interpretation [FRIC-12, Service Not applicable
Concession Arrangements
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-13, Customer Not applicable
 Loyalty Programimes
Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-14, PAS 19- The | Adopted
Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Miniraum
| _Funding Requirements and their Interaction |
Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-16, Hedges of o Not applicable

Non-cash Assets to Owners
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-18, Transfers of
Assets from Customers

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-17, Distributions of

Not applicable

Not applicable

l
|
|
|

SR T S



' PFRSs

Adopted/Not adepted/Not applicable j

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-19, Extinguishing
Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

Not applicable

Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating
Activities

Philippine Interpretation SIC-7, Introduction of the | Not applicable
Euro
Philippine Interpretation 81C-10, Government Not applicable

Philippine Interpretation SIC-12, Consolidation -
Special Purpose Eniities

Not applicable

Philippine Interpretation SIC~13, Joinily Controlled
Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers

Not applicable

Philippine Interpretation SIC-13, Operating Leases
— Incentives

Not applicable

Philippine Interpretation SIC-21, Jncome Taxes -
Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

Adopted

Philippine Interpretation SIC-25, Income Taxes -
Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its
Sharcholders

Not applicable

Philippine Interpretation SIC-27, Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease

Adopted

Philippine Interpretation SIC-29, Service
Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

Not applicable

Philippine Interpretation SIC-31, Revenue - Barter
Transactions Invelving Advertising Services

Adopted

Philippine Interpretation SIC-32, Infangible Assets
- Web Site Costs

Adopted




11, List of New and Amended Standards and [nferpretations and Improvements to

PFRS that became effective as at January 1, 2011

PERSs

Adopted/Not adopted/MNot
applicable

New and Amended Standards and Interpretations

PAS 24 (Amended), Related Party Disclosures

Adonted

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation
(Amendment) - Classification of Rights Issues

Adopted

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14 (Amendment),
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

Not applicable

PERS 1, First-time Adoption of IFRS — Limited
Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters

Not appiicable

Improvements to PFRS

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of IFRS:
» Accounting policy changes in the year of
adopiion
s Revaluation basis as ‘deemed cost’
¢ Use of ‘deemed cost’ for operations subject to
rate regulation

Not applicable

PFRS 3, Business Combinations:

o Transition requirements for contingent
considaration from a business combination that
occurred before the effective date of the
revised [FRS.

¢ Measurement of non-controlling interests

e Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-
based payment rewards

Not applicable

PERS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Clarification of disclosures

Adopted

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements —
Clarification of statement of changes in equity

Adopted

PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements — Transition requirements for
amendments made as a result of [AS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Adopted

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting — Significant
events and transactions

Not applicable

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Customer
Loyalty Programmes ~ Fair value of award credits

Not applicable

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19, Extinguishing
Fingncial Ligbilities with Equity Instruments

Adopted

]

Note: The standards marked as “Not applicable” have been adopted by the entity but have no significant covered
cransactions as at and for the vears then ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

11I. SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE

FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Unappropriated consolidated retained earnings, at beginning of year

P3,063,024,760

Less: Accumulated earnings of subsidiaries 38,213,918
Beginning deferred tax assets 215,769,845
Unappropriated retained earnings of the Parent Company, as adjusted to
available for dividend declaration, beginning 2,809,040,997
Consolidated net income actually eamed during the year 1,715,138,372
Less: Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 16,588,878

Net income actuaily earned by the Parent Company during the year,
as reported
Add: Unrealized foreign exchanges loss - net of tax

Less: Effect of recognized deferred tax asset during the year

1,698,549,494 -
1,029,840
24,579,958

Net income actually earned by the Parent Company during the year,
as adjusted

1,674,999,376

Unappropriated retained earnings of the Parent Company, as adjusted,

before dividend declaration during the year 4.484,040G,373
Less: Dividend declarations during the year 2,187,089,297
Treasury shares 28,433,171

Underlying shares of the acquired Philippine Deposit
Receipts 5.760,016

2.221,362.484

Unappropriated retained earnings of the Parent Comipany as adjusted to
avaitable for dividend declaration, at end of year

£2,262,677,889
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